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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Results %18

For the year ended 31 December

BET-AST-HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

—Z-mE —F-=F 2 —Z-TF —2-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AE®TT AREFT ARETT ANRETT ARETT

Operating income BRI 844,469 893,448 1,225,525 1,314,753 1,015,825

QOperating proft BEAE 54,929 118,196 107,190 208,651 20,645

Profit before taxation Gillekz 57,551 128,055 112,840 213,095 52,893

Net profit for the year R 58,399 127,530 110,906 209,559 47,336

Attributable to: RER -

Equity shareholders of KRAfAE

the Company 58,399 127,530 110,906 208,636 47,381

Non-controlling interests DERE - - - 923 (45)

Basic earnings per share (Note) SRRERZH () RMBAR#0.146%T RVBAK®0.31270 RMBARE02677C RMBAKH04897C RMBARE01117T

Note: Basic earnings per share was adjusted after the share consolidation on the basis of every 10 shares with a nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated share with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each be effective on 28 January
2013.

i SREAENERR-T-=%—F=1+/\BERZERAEARK00TZETIREASHATREEARS1.007T2
— B BHRD 2 BB & OF R ©

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
ELTBERELRT
(AE#FT)
(RMB’000)

250000 F — - ———————— = — - — - ————— — -

20000 - - - - - -+ - - - - - -"-"-"—--—-——-——-

150,000 F - ———=——=7 J——=———— - — — — — — — —

100,000 | - = = = — — - -

50,000 |- — — — — — — - -

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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Assets and Liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilties
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
ELFERELER

BERAR

2014

—Z-mE

RMB’000

AE®TT

AEBE 2,157,629

fiEEE 617,982
KARMEE

FElbfER
1,539,647
DEIREIER -

(AR¥TT)
(RMB’000)
1,650,000

1,500,000
1,350,000
1,200,000
1,050,000
900,000
750,000
600,000
450,000
300,000
150,000

0

2013
—%-=F%
RMB'000
ARETTL

2,442,161

906,525

1,635,636

Financial Highlights
MEBERE

As at 31 December

MZA=1+-H
2012 2011
—5--F —F—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT
2,202,496 9,233,764
773,940 845,001
1,428 556 1,388,673

2010
%%
RMB'000
NS

2,191,175

989,756

1,196,407
5,011

2010

2011

2012 2013

2014

—Z—MEFFH Annual Report 2014

5



Chairman’s Statement

ETRBEE

| am pleased to submit to the shareholders the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB844,469,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared to
approximately RMB893,448,000 last year, representing a
decrease of approximately 5.5%. The gross profit margin was
approximately 23% for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately 20%. The profit attributable to equity shareholders
was approximately RMB58,399,000 for the year under review,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB69,131,000 over
the previous year of approximately RMB127,530,000. Basic
earnings per share was approximately RMB0.15.

The decrease in turnover of the Group was mainly due to the
decrease in international market price of juice concentrate.
Adversely affected by the overall international market, the
international market price of the juice concentrate industry in China
continue to drop in 2014, which in turn has the impact on the
export price of the Group.

Under the trend of steady appreciation of Renminbi against US
dollar, the Group has enhanced its cooperation with international
renowned financial institutions and entered into term loan
agreements with certain financial institutions to appropriately adjust
the Renminbi and US dollar loans portfolio. The directors of the
Company (“Directors”) believe that maintaining an appropriate
proportion of US dollar loans can reduce the Group’s exchange
rate risk and finance costs, and can better facilitate its business
development. In expanding the domestic market sales, the Group
continued to maintain close and stable business relationships
with certain renowned beverage manufacturers in China and has
developed new good customers with broadened sales channels. Its
market share in terms of sales volume in the domestic market also
increased from the previous year. For research and development,
the Group accomplished the acceptance of both “Planting
of High-Yield Lemon Seediing and Efficient Deep Processing
Technology of Lemon” in the National and International Scientific
and Technological Cooperation Project and “Research on and
Industrialization of Technology of Decomposing Molecular Material
in Apples by Multiple Enzymes” in the Science and Technology
Development Plan Project of Yantai city; participated in the
formulation of National Standard of “Fruit & Vegetable Juice and
Drink” GB/T 31121-2014 which was issued on 3 September
2014 and will be implemented on 1 June 2015; continued to
undertake the research project under the National Science and

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #&dHZERRTRAERAA
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Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the
“Research and Industrialization Demonstration of Key Technologies
on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the research project
under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on
“Efficient Processing Technology Integration and Industrialization
Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”, Shandong Innovation
Project 2013 on “Construction of Professional Information
System for Apple Processing and Optimization and Application
Demonstration of Apple Juice Processing Technology” and the
International Scientific and Technological Cooperation Project 2013
of Yantai city on “Research on Critical Technology for Processing
Peach Puree”; undertook “Research on Key Processing Technology
of Highly Enriched Apple Puree” of the Science and Technology
Development Plan 2014 of Yantai city; and applied for two national
invention patents.

Analysis of Industry and Our Market Share

In 2014, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 455,800 tonnes, representing a
decrease of 24% as compared to approximately 598,000 tonnes
in 2013. Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry
has only begun mass production since the late 90’s of last century,
the industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed a world
market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing to the
abundant apple supplies in the PRC. Excluding China, Europe is
the second main production site of apple juice concentrate in the
world. Hence the export volume and price of the China’s apple
juice concentrate is affected not only by global economy, but also
the production and sales of apple juice concentrate in Europe. In
the first half of 2013, since the global economy was growing in
a slow pace, the demand of juice market became weak and the
international market price of apple juice concentrate decreased
significantly. In the second half of 2013, the international market
price of apple juice concentrate gradually became stable and was
recovered to a reasonable level. In 2014, due to the increasing
competition of producers of apple juice concentrates in Europe and
low growth pace of global economy, the international market price
of apple juice concentrate remained low.

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, people’s increasing pursuit
for green and healthy food, is bound to bring more rooms for
development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80% of the
world’s apple juice consumption market is concentrated in the
developed countries with solid demands and steady growth. In
these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, we believe that
the dense population in the developing countries and people’s
increasing attention on dietary nutrition, natural apple juice will
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

undoubtedly be one of the best options. This gradually maturing
consumer market will surely become a take-off area of future apple
juice consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure juice will
become more and more popular.

Being a leader in the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry and
through our proactive and visionary leadership, we have gradually
expanded the market shares of our products and will seek to
secure our leading position in the industry for more rapid and better
development.

Prospects and Outlook

As a mild raw material, apple juice concentrate can be mixed with
different fruit and vegetable juice, to fulfill the market requirements
like low cost and good taste. Therefore the demand of apple juice
concentrate is solid and steady.

With the rising demand brought by the global economic recovery,
we expect both the export volume and export price of apple juice
will steadily stabilise at a rational and normal level. In addition, with
the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable to the
agricultural industry under the PRC government’s macroeconomic
policies as well as the gradual improvement of various relevant
PRC laws and regulations, the Group will enjoy better development
and financing opportunities. Aiming at enlarging its business
scale, the Group will strive to further enlarge its market, enhance
productivity, diversify products, expand sales, disperse markets
and to develop financing channels, etc.

In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry will
force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises out of
the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will favour industry
consolidation and improve industry competition. The Group aims
to further increase its annual juice concentrate production capacity
and to strengthen its leading position in the industry by targeting
small and medium enterprises in the industry, both domestic and
abroad, through merger and acquisitions and to rationally adjust
the Group’s existing production capacities according to changes
in the sources of raw materials and to extend the research on
different types of juice concentrate and production capacity. On
domestic market sales, as the domestic consumer market for
apple juice concentrate gradually expands, the Group will continue
to maintain good business relationships with existing customers in
the coming year while actively exploring new customers through
our prime product quality and comprehensive services, with a view
to opening a new page in our domestic market sales. On research
and development, in 2015, as the presiding unit, the Group will

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #&dHZERRTRAERAA
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continue to undertake the research project under the National
Science and Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year
Plan” on the “Demonstration on the Research and Industrialization
of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the
research project under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer
Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing Technology Integration
and Industrialization Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”
and Shandong Innovation Project 2013 on “Construction of
Professional Information System for Apple Processing and
Optimization and Application Demonstration of Apple juice
Processing Technology”, the Scientific and Technological Project
of Yantai city on “Research on Critical Technology for Processing
Peach Puree” and “Research on Key Processing Technology of
Super Fold Apple Puree”.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board of Directors (the “Board”) and
| have full confidence in the Group’s future development. Our
employees will continue to support the Group and to contribute to
the Group’s continuous and steady development.

Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of approximately RMB0.05 per
share for the financial year 2014 in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, although the international market price
of apple juice concentrate decreased, due to the decrease in cost
of raw apples, both the gross profit and gross profit margin of the
Company still increased. The Directors strongly believe that the
Company will have even more development opportunities in 2015,
given that some small and medium domestic enterprises have
been forced out of the market and the whole international market
is gradually recovering. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all the investors, loyal customers
and suppliers for their appreciation and unfailing support to the
Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An
Chairman

12 March 2015

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s turnover
decreased to approximately RMB844,469,000 as compared to
approximately RMB893,448,000 in 2013, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB48,979,000 or 5.5%. The Group’s turnover
was principally derived from the manufacture and sale of apple
juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, feedstuff and related
products. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the sale of apple
juice concentrate was approximately 81% of the total sale of the
Group (2013: approximately 84%). The decrease in turnover was
mainly due to the decrease in international market selling price of
the apple juice concentrate in the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately RMB199,592,000 and the gross profit margin was
approximately 23%. For the corresponding period in 2013, the gross
profit was approximately RMB180,044,000 and gross profit margin
was approximately 20%. The increase in gross profit and gross profit
margin was mainly due to the decrease in cost of raw materials.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company) decreased to approximately RMB58,399,000
as compared to approximately RMB127,530,000 for the
corresponding period in 2013, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB69,131,000 or 54%. The decrease in net profit
was mainly attributable to the decrease in investment income.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group disposed its
18.95% equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. (“Andre
Pectin”) and recorded investment income of approximately
RMB74,201,000. No such income was recognized in the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB49,942,000, as compared
to approximately RMB55,533,000 in 2013, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB5,591,000 or 10%. The Group’s distribution
costs mainly included transport, export inspection and marketing
expenses. Such decrease was mainly due to increase in sales in
terms of FOB, thereby reduced the distribution costs by sea.

10  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1IHZERETRHDERLF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB50,421,000 as
compared to approximately RMB51,322,000 in 2013, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB901,000 or 2%. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the tightened control of administrative
expenses by the Group.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the net finance costs of
the Group were approximately RMB37,963,000, as compared to
approximately RMB29,425,000 for the corresponding period in
2013, representing an increase of approximately RMB8,538,000
or 29%. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in average
annual balance of the loans of the Group.

Investment Income

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the investment income
recognized by the Group was approximately RMB2,731,000 as
compared to approximately RMB80,195,000 in 2013, representing
a significant drop of RMB77,464,000 or 97%. For the year ended
31 December 2013, the Group disposed its 18.95% equity interest
in its associate, Andre Pectin, and recorded investment income of
approximately RMB74,201,000. No such income was recognized
in the year ended 31 December 2014,

Share of Profit from an Associate and a Joint Venture

For the year ended 31 December 2014, share of profit from an
associate and a joint venture of the Group was approximately
RMB1,643,000, as compared to approximately RMB5,209,000 in
2018, representing a decrease of approximately RMB3,566,000
or 68%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the disposal of
18.95% equity interests in its associate, Andre Pectin, in the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the production of
condensed juice and bio-feedstuff by the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries was continue to recognize as primary processing of
agricultural produce under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and therefore was exempt from the PRC income tax.
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BEEENWmE DM

Business Review

Acquisition of Anyue Andre

On 29 April 2014, the Company and Yantai Anlin Fruit Co., Ltd.
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to acquire and Yantai Anlin Fruit
Co., Ltd. conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. (“Anyue Andre”)
at a consideration of RMB52,120,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$65,150,000). Anyue Andre is the first domestic enterprise
professionally engaged in extracting lemon oil and lemon juice,
as well as the largest enterprise solely professionally engaged in
deep-processing of lemon in the PRC. The Board believes that
the acquisition provides a prime opportunity for the Company
to diversify its business. Anyue Andre is now a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2014, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging on
its advanced production technology, superb product quality and
comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained steady
growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts, the
Group has already expanded its sales network to major countries
and regions in the world, including the US, Japan, Europe, Oceania
and African countries and PRC market.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
relationships with certain renowned beverage manufacturers in the
PRC and has developed new good customers with broadened
sales channels.

Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and market share, the Group
also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to optimise its
profile of customer base continuously. Currently, the customer
base of the Group mainly comprises renowned beverage
manufacturers of the world.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Research and Development

The Group accomplished the acceptance of both “Planting
of High-Yield Lemon Seedliing and Efficient Deep Processing
Technology of Lemon” in the International Scientific and
Technological Cooperation Project and “Research on and
Industrialization of Technology of Decomposing Molecular Material
in Apples by Multiple Enzymes” in the Science and Technology
Development Plan Project of Yantai city; participated in the
formulation of National Standard of “Fruit & Vegetable Juice and
Drink” GB/T 31121-2014 which was issued on 3 September
2014 and will be implemented on 1 June 2015; continued to
undertake the research project under the National Science and
Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the
“Research and Industrialization Demonstration of Key Technologies
on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the research project
under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on
“Efficient Processing Technology Integration and Industrialization
Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”, Shandong Innovation
Project 2013 on

System for Apple Processing and Optimization and Application

“Construction of Professional Information
Demonstration of Apple Juice Processing Technology” and the
International Scientific and Technological Cooperation Project
2013 of Yantai city on “Research on Critical Technology for
Processing Peach Puree”; undertook “Research on Key Processing
Technology of Highly Enriched Apple Puree” of the Science and
Technology Development Plan 2014 of Yantai city; and applied for
two national invention patents.

Future Prospects

Market Expansion and Product Diversification

Currently the Group has maintained relatively stable market
penetration and customers groups in major consumer markets of
apple juice concentrate in the world, namely the US, European,
Oceania, African countries and Japan. The Company will put more
efforts in the development of various emerging markets, with a
view to breaking through these markets. On the other hand, the
Company has in recent years explored the market opportunities for
its new products and niche products as well as the development
of new customer groups. This will satisfy both the needs of the
market and our customers, as well as fulfill our target of product
mix expansion.
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Further Exploitation of the Domestic Market

As the domestic consumer market for apple juice concentrate
further expands, the Group will continue to maintain good business
relationships with existing customers in the coming year while
actively exploring new customers through our prime product quality
and comprehensive services, with a view to opening a new page in
our domestic market sales.

Continue the Development of Traceability and Farm
Management Improvement Linkages Project

In the coming year, the Group will more strictly implement the
GLOBALGAP standardisation in the regulation and development of
existing and newly established recognition bases. Improvements
will be made in the areas of production, management, storage and
sales, etc. to generate more revenue from the GLOBALGAP bases,
with a view to building up the modelling status so that surrounding
fruityards will follow the GLOBALGAP standardisation.

Develop New Financing Channels

The Group will closely monitor the trend of Renminbi exchange
rate against US dollar and adjust the proportion of Renminbi and
US dollar loans. The Group will continue to actively engage in
cooperation with domestic and international financial institutions to
diversify its financing channels and increase the variety of financing
products, in order to reduce the Group’s exchange rate risk and
finance cost, improve capital structure and facilitate better business
development.

Research and Development
The Group will commit to the following research and development:

1. acting as the presiding unit, undertake the research project
under the National Science and Technology Support
Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the “Demonstration
on the Research and Industrialization of Key Technologies on
Apple Comprehensive Processing”;

2. acting as the presiding unit, undertake the research project
under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer Program
2013 on “Efficient Processing Technology Integration and
Industrialization Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

3. acting as the presiding unit, undertake Shandong
Innovation Project 2013 on “Construction of Professional
Information System for Apple Processing and Optimization
and Application Demonstration of Apple juice Processing
Technology”;

4. undertake the International Scientific and Technological
Cooperation Project 2013 of Yantai city on “Research on
Critical Technology for Processing Peach Puree”; and

5. undertake the Science and Technology Plan 2014 of Yantai
city on “Research on Key Processing Technology of Highly
Enriched Apple Puree”.

Charge of Assets

Except as disclosed in Note V.15 to the Financial Statements, the
Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2014.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note Xll.1
to the Financial Statements.
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BEEENWE DM

Capital Structure

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19
January 2011, the H shares of the Company were transferred and
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”)
and de-listed from GEM. The capital of the Company comprises
only ordinary shares (comprising domestic shares and H shares).
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
V.23 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and loans from banks.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total outstanding bank
loans of approximately RMB473,237,000, all of which was short
term bank loan. As at 31 December 2014, short-term bank loans
of RMB333,237,000 bore interest at rates ranging from 4.28% to
6.30% per annum. Short-term bank loans of RMB140,000,000
bore floating interest rate of 6.24% to 6.60% per annum. In the
year 2014, the Group repaid on time the loans due for repayment.
The Directors consider that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its ongoing operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB191,534,000. The Group’s
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 was approximately 29%
(2013: approximately 37%) which is calculated by dividing the
Group’s total liabilities of approximately RMB617,982,000 (2013:
RMB906,525,000) by the Group’s total assets of approximately
RMB2,157,629,000 (2013: RMB2,442,161,000).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (£%), aged 52, is Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26
June 2001. Mr. Wang is a well known entrepreneur in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions: one
of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (#E8; Z# 5 E A ), an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province (ILE&EFTEHESHE
FEEEFKE), a Top Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province (1L & EZ%E
AT ENTRERAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’
of Reform and Opening in Yantai (AAKERBM=ZTF [FL2
£ 1), an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai
to Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (42:&F BRI 60BFFEREESR
REHZER), one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time
Among the Top 60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of
Socialism in Yantai of Shandong Province (IUE (A& )1t & X &
JATEREAY 2 TELEREAY), and is a representative
of Shandong Province to the National People’s Congress (AKX
). Mr. Wang graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central
Communist Party (R H A RERHIFREZRT) in June 1994. He was
the general manager of Yangma Resort (& 5 &E/BA) for four
years before joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social
services appointments: member of China Business Advisory
Council (PR TEEEEEE), member of the 1st Session of the
Council of Yantai Charity Federation (A& TRESHSE—[E1EE
€3 H). Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment
Holdings Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (LU
ZiEFMEBE AR AT, which are substantial shareholders of the
Company. He joined the Company in March 1996 and has since
been involved in the concentrated juice production industry. Mr.
Wang is responsible for the overall management of the Group.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES - EENSREEE

Mr. Zhang Hui (3&#E), aged 42, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a
Director since 26 June 2001. He was Deputy General Manager of
Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (FF&m TEER
A7]) and Muping material (£2F#)%& ) before joining the Group.
Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December 1998 and has been
involving in the concentrated juice production industry since then.
Mr. Zhang has been Supervisor of the Production Department,
General Manager of a subsidiary of the Company and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Zhang has received the following
awards: Outstanding Member of the Communist Party ({85 L&
#E8) of Muping District, The 9th Session Top Ten Outstanding
Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai city (SBAEMEEH +ALELEFF
%K) and the “May 1st Labor Award” of Yantai city. In March
2007, he was appointed as a member of the standing committee
of the Fruit and Vegetable Processing Division (REEIMITHE) of
the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology. During his
tenure as General Manager of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.* (H7K
ZEFREETER AR, he was appointed as a representative of
the Communist Party in Weinan city (ff ;8 mE A R) and was
a standing member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Baishui County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr.
Wang An in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shandong Agriculture University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Management (majoring in corporate
management) in July 1997. Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (TE%:#%8), aged 38, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (fH&&E &1L KB
JE). Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the Financial
Controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi (2I5RE), aged 48, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the Business Integration
Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He joined Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed as the head
of its Investment Analysis Section. In 2000, he was transferred
to President International Development Corporation, and was
responsible for its investments. He has also been the manager
of the Treasury Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. since
2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/supervisor
of certain member companies of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.,
amongst which Tait Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd. is a
company listed on the Taiwan Gretai Securities Market. Mr. Liu
has over 20 years of experience in banking, corporate finance and
investment. Before joining Uni-President Enterprises Corp., he was
the head of the Credit and Loan Unit of Taipei branch of Cosmos
Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor of Law degree
(majoring in Economics) from National Chengchi University in 1989,
and a Master of Business Administration degree from National
Taiwan University in 1991.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Gong Fan (EER.), aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Gong graduated from Xi’an
Jiaotong University (FA%2 338K 2 ) in July 1987 with a Bachelor’s
degree in Industrial Management Engineering (TEEIE T12). Mr.
Gong has over 20 years of experience in finance and is a certified
public accountant and a certified appraiser in the PRC. Mr. Gong
worked in the Beihai Finance Bureau in Guangxi Province (ErEdtL
EMEE/E) from 1987 to 1992; and Beihai Accounting Firm (3t
JEEEHAIESFT) and Zhong He Accounting Firm (FR A& 5+Al %
FFT) from 1993 to 2000 as a registered accountant. Mr. Gong
was Chief Finance Officer of the Company and Secretary of the
Board from 2001 to 2003, a director and Chief Financial Officer of
Henan Ping Gao Electric Co., Ltd.* CAEF¥aEREHBERAT)
from 2003 to 2004. He has been Chief Investment Officer of Creat
Tian Cheng Investment Holding Co., Ltd.* (BHmKI%EZER B R
A\]) since 2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EENSREEE

Mr. Chow Kam Hung (FE#%4), aged 55, is an independent
non-executive Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Chow
graduated from St. Cloud State University, U.S.A. in May 1986
with a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering, and Newport
University, U.S.A. in December 1998 with a Master of Business
Administration degree. Mr. Chow has over 20 years of experience
in both overseas and PRC investments. Mr. Chow was General
Manager of the Hong Kong company of Creat Group, a China
based investment company which has investments in finance,
manufacturing, real estate and resource sectors, from 1996 to
2014. He was also Chief Operation Officer of Creat Resources
Holdings Limited, an Australia based resources investment and
development company, from July 2010 to August 2013.

Mr. Li Tong Ning (Z[E%), aged 56, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 June 2013. He is a member of
the Communist Party. Mr. Li has around 35 years of working
experience. Mr. Li obtained a college degree in economic
management from Party School of the Shandong Provincial
Committee of C.P.C. in June 2000. Mr. Li worked at Muping
Foreign Trade Bureau from December 1978 to April 1992. He
worked as the manager of Muping Foreign Trade Chemical
Packaging Import and Export Company from April 1992 to April
1994. Mr. Li worked as a deputy general manager of Muping
Foreign Trade Company from April 1994 to June 2005. He is the
chairman of Hailin Trade Co., Ltd. since June 2005.

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Chun Tang (F&ZE), aged 61, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wang has been a Supervisor since 28 May 2007. Mr. Wang
was an officer of the Communications Bureau of Muping, Yantai,
Shandong Province from May 1973 to December 1987. He studied
Economics and Management in the Communist Party School of
Shandong Province from September 1995 to December 1997
and obtained the graduation certificate issued by the Communist
Party School of Shandong Province on 30 December 1997.
From January 1988 to January 2006, Mr. Wang was Supervisor,
Deputy Chief and Managing Deputy Chief of the Publishing Office
of Muping, Yantai, Shandong Province. From January 2006
to January 2009, Mr. Wang was a member of the Executive
Committee of the Yantai Muping National People’s Congress.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Xu Jiang (%%71), aged 61, is the staff representative supervisor
of the Company since 4 February 2013. He has around 40 years
of working experience. He obtained a junior school diploma
from Shandong Muping District Gaoling County Dongtun Village
Chekuang Union Middle School in September 1970. From May
1992 to July 1997, he served as the manager of the project
department of China North Industries Corporation Yangma Resort.
From August 1997 to November 1998, he served as a deputy
general manager of China North Industries Corporation Yangma
North Hotel. From December 1998 to June 2002, he served as a
deputy general manager of Henghua Real Estate Company. From
July 2002 to December 2003, he served as a deputy director of the
general office of the Company. He was the manager of the project
department, the chairman of the labour union of the Company and
the deputy head of office of the Company from January 2004 to
March 2014.

Mr. Zhang Suoping (3KkFTY¥), aged 62, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company. He
has around 35 years of working experience. He obtained a diploma
from Shandong Rushan Normal School in August 1975. From
November 1970 to August 1973, Mr. Zhang served as a teacher of
Yantai Muping District Shuidao County Qinghushan Village Primary
School. From August 1975 to August 1986, Mr. Zhang served as a
teacher of Muping No.2 Middle School. From June 1987 to March
1990, he served as the head of the business department of Muping
Aquatic Products Company and the manager of the store of
Muping Aquatic Products Company from March 1990 to January
1996. He joined in the Company in May 2005. He was the general
manager of Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. from March 2008 to
December 2013.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang An(E%), aged 52, is Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Zhang Hui (3R#8) , aged 42, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%t##), aged 38, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.

EE EEkeAEEE

BI%hE 6l BE-E—ZF_-A
HREAAQRABINRKRES  HHEED
AWFTIEESR - FR—NLEtZSFNLABE
IR A F @ S R SR A B 7T B R S
By -B-—AN_FRAE—AItF
+A BEAPBRILATERRASEEE
BNEEBLEE - B—NAWNLEFNAE
—NANF+—F - HEEPRIL S TE
AAAEEEEI T XA RKEE - B
—HWANEFETZAEEZE_FA &
EIXEEZEREMEAABRAKE B -FF
—FELAREE=F+_F  REELX
REIPRERET - B _TETMF—AE
—E—F = AHRMETARRIIERHE
B IgFFEMRAERIET-

RFTFEE 62 RARAEESE
URFK WEBEBFZ TELR - K
R—NEtREFNAESILRILWLTAEE
PREXZE- B NLEtZEF+—-AZE
—NE=FN\A > REEAERETEFE
KEBEBRIUF/NEHE - B—NERF
NAZE—ANRFNA REEELFH
—HEHE - BE-ANEERAE-AA
ZE=ZF REZFVFKERRIEBKBEE
YE-—AWNEF=AE-NNARF—AE
BYKERNREHLRE - KR _TTHF
ERAMARRR RZFZENF=ZAEZ
E-ZF+ - AEEHMNEZRBANREATE
PRAPIERIE -

SRERE
FTRELE B25 REEREZRNMAT
EF-F2HEF| DHMEREE

RIBIRA - 4258 0 RARBMITEERT
B#aE - m2H &= NEMEERE -

TW®ERL 3BH B-_F—_FA

“HERREAMITES - F2MES| D
ENFTELIERE ©

—Z—EEH Annual Report 2014 21



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EENSREEE

Mr. Yang Tao (#5/8), aged 44, a college graduate, is a vice
president of the Company. Mr. Yang joined the Company in March
1996 and formerly worked as production line leader, workshop
supervisor and general manager of a subsidiary of the Company.
He previously served as member of the 12th Session of the
CPPCC of Longkou City and has been awarded: Outstanding
Communist Party Member of Yantai City and Outstanding Party
Worker of Longkou New and Hi-Tech Zone. Mr. Yang currently
assists the chief executive officer in supervising the production of
the Group.

Ms. Zhao Jing (&), aged 49, is a vice president of the
Company. Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’'s
University of International Business and Economics and obtained a
Bachelor’'s degree in Foreign Business Management in July 1990.
She worked in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of the Foreign
Economics and Trade Commission of Muping from January 1992
to February 1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel Products Co.,
Ltd. from 1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a vice president
responsible for sales and market promotion from 1997 to August
2003; and Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd. from September
2003 to December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the Company in
January 2011 and is currently responsible for both domestic and
overseas sales of the Group.

Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (FIE4), aged 46, a university graduate with
a Bachelor’s degree in Agriculture, is a vice president and the chief
engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company in 1997 to
engage in manufacturing technologies development, quality control
and on-going supervision of production activities. He was the two-
time winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science Advancement of
Shandong Province (IUERERHZEHF=%548), the winner of the
1st Class Award of Science Advancement in Yantai City (/& %}
R H—%4%) and the winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science
Advancement in Yantai City (JA&TEHLHE N =%148). Currently,
he is responsible for the technology, research and development of
the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee (fAf1&), aged 43, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration in 1994. She is a fellow Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has over 20 years of experience in
the field of auditing and accounting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2014, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code, except for the following deviations:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Company is negotiating with the relevant
insurance agents about the liability insurance for the Directors and
will arrange such insurance cover in due course.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

(i) To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

@iy To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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During the year under review, the Board approved the terms of
reference of the Board, the shareholder communication policy,
shareholder enquiry procedures and special request procedures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is managed by its Board of Directors, which has the
responsibility for providing leadership and control of the Company.
Through the Board, the Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total of
seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Wang An (Chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (Chief Executive Officer) and
Mr. Wang Yan Hui; one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu
Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong Ning.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2016.
All Directors are appointed by the shareholders at the shareholders’
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to
20 of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

- convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting on their
work at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings;

- formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting off
of accumulated losses of the Company;

- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger, or dissolution of
the Company;

- formulating the internal management structure of the Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of the
Company and appointing or dismissing the deputy general
manager, financial controller and other senior management
at the recommendation of the chief executive officer of the
Company and determination of matters relating to their
remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;

- formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of
association; and

- carrying out other powers conferred by shareholders’
meetings.
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The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible for
preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-to-day
management of the Company’s business is delegated to the chief
executive officer and the management. The functions of the Board
and the powers delegated to the chief executive officer are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the chairman
is separate from that of the chief executive officer. The chairman
of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman is responsible for
convening and holding general meetings and Board meetings,
tracking the progress of implementation of the resolutions passed
by the Board, signing the securities issued by the Company and
carrying out other powers conferred by the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui
is the chief executive officer of the Company. The chief executive
officer and the management are responsible for the production,
operation and management of the Company, implementation of
the resolutions passed by the Board, implementation of annual
business plans and investment proposals, formulation of the internal
management structure, the basic management system and the
specific governance of the Company. In particular the chief executive
officer is responsible for proposing to the Board for appointment or
dismissal of deputy general manager, financial controller and other
senior management of the Company, appointment or dismissal of
other management staff whose appointment and dismissal does
not require approval from the Board and carrying out other powers
conferred by the Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Upon appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company
has been encouraging the Directors and senior executives to enrol in
a wide range of professional development courses or and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance or act and
corporate governance practices organised by professional bodies
and independent auditors so that they can continuously update and
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in discharging their duties. During the year, the company
secretary, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen has completed over 15 hours
professional training.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on
the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in compliance with the new requirement of the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the year:

Executive Directors HMTES

Wang An T

Zhang Hui RiE

Wang Yan Hui T
Non-executive Directors JEMITES

Liu Tsung-Yi 2IRE
Independent non-executive Directors BEIEBRITESE
Gong Fan BER,

Chow Kam Hung BRI

Li Tong Ning FR=E
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for board meetings, and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The chairman
also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their skills,
knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their initial
induction, ongoing participation at board and committee meetings,
and through meeting key people at head office and in the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary to the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to
ensure the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to
each executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibility.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
All committees have its terms of reference which fulffill the principles
set out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes
of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees is reported to the Board.
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The Board held five meetings during 2014. The financial controller
also attended all of the Board meetings to advise on corporate
governance, risk management, statutory compliance, mergers and
acquisitions and accounting and financial matters. The attendance
(other than attending by authorised representatives) of individual
Directors at the Board meetings, the meetings of other committees

Corporate Governance Report

and the general meetings in 2014 is set out in the table below.

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY)
BHEA(B/A/E)

19/03/2014
29/04/2014
19/05/2014
21/07/2014
26/08/2014

Annual General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY)
BEA(B/A/F)

25/06/2014

Chair person
E WA
WA
N/A
WA
N/A
N/A

DU N N NN

Chair person
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AT "R~ IV2N

TEERBRE
Audit and Review Committee Meeting B EEEER
Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
BEI(A/R/%) E GF
18/03/2014 GF v
26/08/2014 GF 4
Nomination Committee Meeting REZESSE
Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
BEA(H/RB/F) £33 WA
15/03/2014 WA v
Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting FHREREZEESEE
Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
HEA(RA/R /%) £
12/03/2014 GF
Note: i
WA Wang An Tz
ZH Zhang Hui oRIE
WYH  Wang Yan Hui TE%E
LTY  Liu Tsung-Yi 2IRE
GF Gong Fan A
CKH  Chow Kam Hung AR
LTN  LiTong Ning FREE
Symbols: 9%
“v"” means attended the meeting [VIRELEEH
“—” means not attended the meeting [ REREEEH
“N/A” means not applicable [NA] RETEA
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction in
which a Director has conflict of interest, the Director has to declare
his interest and is required to abstain from voting and withdraw from
the meetings as appropriate. The Company seeks confirmation from
the Directors annually in respect of any transactions of the Company
or its subsidiaries which are related to Directors or their associates.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities and
derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2014.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2014.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee of the Company comprises three
members of which two are recommended by shareholders and
one is an employee representative elected by the employees.
The Supervisory Committee is responsible for supervision of the
Board, members of the Board and senior management, to prevent
authority abuse, shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect
legal interest of the Company and its employees. During 2014,
the Supervisory Committee held one meeting, during which the
committee members reviewed the Company’s financial position,
legal compliance of the Company’s operations and diligence of the
senior management.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. Procedures
for the Company’s internal control system have been designed in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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A review of the Company’s internal control system covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management is conducted annually.
In particular, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place to
identify, control and report on significant risks involved in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are
monitored by the Board with the support of various committees
and senior management. For the year under review, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control system was
adequate and the Company had complied with the code provisions
on internal control under the CG Code.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department provides an independent review
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system.
The department is headed by a manager who is familiar with the
Company’s operation. Its scope of work mainly includes auditing of
financial and operational systems, observance of relevant policies
and regulations, regular and special auditing, auditing of production
effectiveness, etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk
assessment methodology, is discussed and agreed every year by
the Audit and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual
schedule of work, the Internal Audit Department conducts other
special reviews as required.

The primary reporting line of the Internal Audit Department is to the
chairman of the Board but there is also direct access to the Audit
and Review Committee. Internal audit reports are sent to the chief
executive officer, the financial controller, external auditors and the
relevant management of the departments under audit. A summary
of major audit findings is reported to the Audit and Review
Committee. The Board and the Audit and Review Committee
actively monitor the number and seriousness of findings raised by
the Internal Audit Department and also the corrective actions taken
by relevant departments.
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Detailed control guidelines have been set and made available to all
employees of the Company regarding handling and dissemination
of corporate data which is price sensitive.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

Risk Management Committee

The Company has established a Risk Management Committee
which coordinates the proper application of operational risk
management procedures throughout the Company. The
Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Company and its subsidiaries in, among others, the following
areas:

- establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

- reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

- reviewing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
process, system and internal control, including whether the
development of the Company’s business is prudent and in
compliance with the legal requirements.

The terms of reference of the Committee do not include financial
risk management and the coordination of the Company’s policy
on environmental issues. The Committee is chaired by the financial
controller of the Company and includes senior representatives from
each division as well as the human resources manager and the
head of Internal Audit Department. The Committee reports to the
Audit and Review Committee on a regular basis.
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AUDIT AND REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and making relevant recommendations to the
Board. All of its members are independent non-executive Directors
(namely Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong Ning)
and its current chairman is Mr. Gong Fan.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Review Committee are
based on the guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit and Review Committee met twice in 2014. During
2014, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and listing rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2014 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

In 2014, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,480,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out on pages 65 to 66 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) for the audit work
of the Company for the financial year 2015. This resolution has
been endorsed by the Board and is subject to final approval and
authorisation by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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REMUNERATION AND REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Gong
Fan and Mr. Li Tong Ning as members with Mr. Gong Fan as
the chairperson. Both of them are independent non-executive
Directors. The Committee’s responsibilities are as follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration; and
- to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of the directors and senior
management personnel.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package including the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a director, director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met once in 2014
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2014. At that meeting, the Committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2014.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee
to the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s executive remuneration
package include basic compensation (comprising of director
fee) and discretionary bonus without capping. In determining
guidelines for each compensating element, the Company refers
to remuneration surveys conducted by independent external
consultants on companies operating in similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars are
contained in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for 2014 by band is set out
below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of the
Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus based
on the Company’s results and the degree of responsibilities of each
of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2013 and
2014 are disclosed in Note V.37 to the Financial Statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wang An, an
executive Director, and comprises Mr. Gong Fan and Mr. Li Tong
Ning, both independent non-executive Directors, as members. The
role of the Committee is to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board composition
and the management of Board succession with reference to
certain guidelines as endorsed by the Nomination Committee.
These guidelines include appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, personal ethnics, integrity and personal skills,
and time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship including the consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professional when necessary.
The Nomination Committee met once in 2014 to discuss the Board
structure, size and composition and to evaluate the independence
status of the independent non-executive Directors.
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As at the date of this report, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below is
the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a
wide range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee
will review the diversity of the Board and report to the Board
the composition of the Board members and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current Board
composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skill and experience appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness on determining the optimal composition of
the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which
were revised on 19 March 2014 to adopt the Board Diversity Policy
have been posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Company is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available
to meet with the shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major shareholders is
through the chief executive officer and financial controller of the
Company.
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To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the financial controller was established. The
Information Disclosure Review Committee is responsible for
the establishment of procedures to compile, verify and report
the Company’s financial and operational statistics and other
information as well as to supervise the drafting and publication of
periodic reports.

Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to all
shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting was held
on 25 June 2014 at 2nd Floor, No. 18 Andre Avenue, Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Shandong Province,
the PRC. The meeting was open to all shareholders and members
of the press and was attended by all substantial shareholders
personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives.
A wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is
made available to investors and the public through the corporate
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. Webcasts of
the meetings announcing the interim and annual results are also
available on the corporate website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

In 2014, the Company held 11 meetings and conference calls
with analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices.
These activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly by
questions at an annual general meeting or special Shareholders’
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special shareholders’ meeting of the Company may
also be made to the Company by the same means.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed in
accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the articles of association of the Company, the Board shall give
written feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10
days after receiving the proposal.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by
relevant shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the board of Supervisors to hold the SGM
in writing.

If the board of Supervisors agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by
relevant shareholders.

If the board of Supervisors fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the board of
Supervisors does not convene or preside over the shareholders’
meeting. Exceeding 90 continuous days, the shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
may hold the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the shareholders’ meeting held by the
board of Supervisors or shareholders by themselves shall be born
by the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

When the Company holds the shareholders’ meeting, the Board,
the board of Supervisors and the shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing 10
days before the SGM.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April
2012 under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website at
www.andre.com.cn.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the company secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Room 1505, Wheelock House,

20 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.
Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@biznetvigator.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company, amendments
to the Articles of Association of the Company were approved
by the shareholders of the Company, to reflect the change of
domestic shareholders. An updated version of the Articles of
Association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, feedstuff
and related products. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1 to the Financial Statements.

Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company and its interest in
joint venture as at 31 December 2014 are set out in Notes VII.1
and VII.2 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in pages 67 to 228 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5 of
this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the US market, Japanese market and European market, and was
expanding its market to other countries. The sales attributable to
the top five customers of the Group accounted for about 39.01%
of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to about 13.22%.
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Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 23.42% of total purchases for the year. The largest
supplier accounted for about 17.39% of the total purchases of the
Group for the year.

None of the Directors, Supervisors, their respective associates or
any shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
approximately RMB19,630,000 (inclusive of tax), or RMBO0.05 per
share for 2014. This proposed dividend will be distributed first
from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company generated in or before 2007. Any
insufficiency will be distributed from the profit for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company generated in or after 2008. The
proposal to declare and pay this final dividend will be submitted to
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 26 May 2015. Final dividend for Domestic
Shares will be distributed and paid in Renminbi whereas dividend
for H Shares will be declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The final dividend will be paid to those shareholders whose
names appear on the Companys’ register of members at the close
of business on 10 June 2015 (the “Record Date”). To determine
the identity of the shareholders entitled to receive the final dividend,
the register of holders of H Shares of the Company will be closed
from 5 June 2015 to 10 June 2015 (both days inclusive) during
which no transfer of H Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for entitement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of H
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited at 22/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2015. The final dividend is expected to be
distributed on 23 July 2015.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax rate
of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of non-resident
enterprise deriving from PRC is 10%. Pursuant to the Corporate
Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise (including
our Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder shall withhold corporate income tax at 10% for and pay
by the Company on behalf of such shareholder. At the same time,
pursuant to the provisions of the Preferential Policy on Profit Earned by
Foreign Investors from Foreign Investment Enterprises in the Circular
of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation
Concerning Several Preferential Policies Relevant to Corporate Income
Tax, any profit accumulated and not yet distributed before 1 January
2008 by foreign investment enterprise when distributed to non-
resident enterprise in or after 2008, will be exempted from corporate
income tax. Any dividend distributed to non-resident enterprises from
profit accumulated since 2008 will be subject to corporate income tax.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income Tax
Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993]
No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the non-resident
individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses from domestic
non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong,
individual income tax shall be withheld by the withholding agent
according to the domain of “interest, dividends and bonuses”.
The non-resident individual shareholders of domestic non-foreign-
invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong, shall enjoy
the taxation preferences in accordance with the agreements
between countries of their origins and China and the regulation
on taxation arrangement between the Mainland and Hong Kong
(Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as provided by taxation
agreement is generally at a rate of 10%. In order to simplify the
collection and management of taxation, the individual income
tax with a rate of 10% in general will be withheld when dividend
is paid by the domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which
issued shares in Hong Kong without making applications. Where
the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it will be handled according to
the following requirements: (1) for residents of countries which
have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a tax rate
lower than 10%, the withholding agent may apply for the relevant
entittements hereunder on their behalf. Upon examination and
approval by the competent tax authorities, the additional amount
of tax withheld will be refunded; (2) for residents of countries
which have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a
tax rate of 10% or more but less than 20%, the withholding agent
shall withhold individual income tax at the agreed tax rate when
distributing dividends or bonuses, and no application for approval
is needed; (3) for residents of a country or which has not entered
into any tax treaties with the PRC and in any other circumstances,
the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at the tax
rate of 20% when distributing dividends and bonuses.

Report of Directors

EEEHRSE

BRE_ZENF - —BERZ(PEA
RAMBE R EMRETE)MEBBGH (&
BCRERBHE))  FEREXRAF
BEARGRAEREEMSHRRERES
10% ° RIFEEA BN ETAFER
WER(BEARB) AFEREXEER
KRS - AL RB10% 2 BEAM
BH - R REMBE - BRHEEER
(BAREEMEHRE TESRRNBA)T
[SNEIR B B WS IR B XS F B E
BERIRE  —TFN\F—A—HZH
BRELEERONRBERDEHNE - £=
TEN\FURDERIFBERERN - 2
TEMRBHR : —TT N\FRARFEING
BREGCENENENRGEIFEREEN
TEBNEEMER -

R IRCE R B 7542 /5 B3 5 B ¢ 2% [1993]045
SRR LR EBEEAMSHRIEEBEN
FE) (BT K [2011]3485% ) BIHRE » BN
EREABREXBEAFFIINEEECETER
BETBRERSNRELAFMSE  ERR
FEREAFFETER AINAE
BARERIDRBEATBR - ERIEH
ARETEERBRTRE  HBEINER
BAABREREEERSMHITBERESH
FENHURE R A A E S GRPI) R
WZHMBRE  EXHBHRESR - B
FE A B U 17 7B Ko T Uk 22 HF 38 TE MO AR AR 2.
ME—ME10%  BELHERLEE  ®F
BETRENERNIEIFREDEIRER
BALFIEE - — RT3 10% 5 R B8 A BT
SBH BEFVIERBEHE  HREHET
B10% 5N - A THREDE « ()ER
10%HENHBERRER - MARBAA
RERBEZEZEEREHBERE  KXF
RIS BEEZALER W MEF KT
RE (&R 10% B 20% R ER
RER - NEEB AR B AR R ER
WEERHENBEANGH - EFHIE
HEELET QRERKBTERER
N EABIEI - OB 75 A K 3 BB AT 7 B
1% 20% TN ME A FT1SHL -

—Z—EEH Annual Report 2014 45



Report of Directors

ESERSE

Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han[2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends to
non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax Law)
for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

For this purpose, any H Shares registered under the name of
non-natural persons in the H Share register of members of
the Company on 4 June 2015 (Thursday), including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other groups
and organizations, will be treated as non-resident enterprise
shareholders.

The Company anticipates that all the proposed dividend will
be distributed from the balance of the profit of the Group for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company generated in or
before 2007. Pursuant to the preferential policy of the Corporate
Income Tax Law, the Company currently proposes not to withhold
10% corporate income tax and to distribute the final dividend
to such non-resident enterprise shareholders at gross amount
before corporate income tax. This arrangement is conditional
upon obtaining the final approval from the relevant tax authority.
If the Company cannot obtain final approval from the relevant tax
authorities regarding the exemption of corporate income tax for
non-resident enterprise shareholders as mentioned above, the
Company will distribute the final dividend to such non-resident
enterprise shareholders after withholding corporate income tax of
10% as required by the Corporate Income Tax Law. For individual
shareholders who hold the Company’s H shares and whose names
appear on the register of members of H shares of the Company
(the “Individual H Shareholders”) shall pay individual income tax at a
tax rate of 10% upon their receipt of distribution of dividends from
the Company, which shall be withheld and paid by the Company
on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax effects with
respect to the holding and disposing of H shares of the Company.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding.
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Share Capital

The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.23 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company in the year is set out
in the statements of changes in equity of the Group and the
Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately RMB371,972,000 (2013:
approximately RMB382,372,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB8,231,000,
mainly for the construction of new production line and acquiring
plant and equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group is set
out in Note V.10 to the Financial Statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the Company Law of the PRC
which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year 2014, the Company repurchased a total of
16,388,000 shares of its H shares of par value of HK$1.00 each on
the Stock Exchange at prices ranging from HK$1.90 to HK$3.16
per H share, for a total consideration of HK$42,806,005.
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Directors believe that through repurchase of shares, earnings per
share and asset value per share will increase, which in turn will
improve the Company’s capital structure and shareholders’ equity.

Details of share repurchased
No. of
Shares
Repurchased
ElfER 8 E
June 2014 4,402,000
July 2014 11,986,000

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2014.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors of the Company or their
respective associates was granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries any right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any such
right as at 31 December 2014.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

On 29 April 2014, the Company and Yantai Anlin Fruit Co., Ltd.
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to acquire and Yantai Anlin Fruit
Co., Ltd. conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Anyue Andre at a consideration of RMB52,120,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$65,150,000). Since the completion on 15 May
2014, Anyue Andre became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies have been made by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Significant Investments

No significant investment was held by the Group as at 31
December 2014,

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 995
employees (2013: 1,003 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013 were approximately RMB40,305,000
and approximately RMB37,796,000 respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.37
and 38 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.

Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in note V.18 to the Financial
Statements.

Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2014 and up to the date of this report, the
Directors and Supervisors of the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors:  Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi
Director:

Independent Gong Fan, Chow Kam Hung and Li Tong Ning
non-executive
Directors:

Supervisors: Wang Chun Tang, Zhang Suoping and Xu

Jiang
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Independence of Independent non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All
independent non-executive Directors are considered as independent.

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

There was no material change to the directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the reporting period.

Continuing Connected Transactions

l. On 17 September 2012, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Andre Pectin for the sale of
pomace to Andre Pectin and determined the annual caps for
the sale of pomace for the three years ended 31 December
2015. The framework agreement took effect on 1 January
2013 and shall expire on 31 December 2015.

As of the date of signing the above framework agreement,
Andre Pectin was an associate of Andre Group, which was
a substantial shareholder of the Company and controlled
37.90% interest in Andre Pectin as of the date of signing the
agreement. Andre Pectin was also an associate of Mr. Wang
An, who was a Director and indirectly controlled 37.90%
interest in Andre Pectin through his 90% interest in Andre
Group. Therefore, Andre Pectin was a connected person of
the Company. The sale of pomace by the Company to Andre
Pectin as contemplated under the framework agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
under the framework agreement were only subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with the
Listing Rules.
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Under the framework agreement, the pomace products shall
be sold to Andre Pectin in accordance with the following
pricing principles (and in the following order):

- price prescribed by the PRC government; or

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government; or

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, a price determined through
tender process or other available market price; or

- where none of the above is applicable or available, a
price to be agreed between the parties. The agreed
price shall be calculated based on the reasonable
costs incurred in providing the pomace products plus
reasonable profits. In setting the price, the parties may
refer to the prices for previous relevant transactions, if
available.

The annual transaction cap was determined based on
the historical amounts of pomace sold by the Group to
Andre Pectin, estimated potential growth of the Group, the
expected economic growth of the PRC, demand by Andre
Pectin and the pomace price will increase. The cap for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB25,000,000. The
actual sale of pomace by the Group to Andre Pectin for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB22,032,869 and is
subject to annual review requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into a product
purchase framework agreement with President, whereby
President agrees to purchase and the Company agrees to
supply the Company’s products (including but not limited
to different kinds of juice) to regulate the product purchase
between the Group and President for the three financial years
ending 31 December 2014.

* For identification purpose only
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As at the date of signing the agreement, President holds
14.94% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Under the Listing Rules, President is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and thus is a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the product purchase framework agreement between
the Group and President constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. As an applicable percentage
ratio in respect of the annual caps under the product
purchase framework agreement (other than the profit
ratio) exceeds 5% and the respective annual caps exceed
HK$10,000,000, the transactions contemplated under
the product purchase framework agreement constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under
Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
requirements of reporting, announcement, independent
Shareholders’ approval and annual review under the Listing
Rules.

Under the product purchase framework agreement, prices of
products to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to the following principles in orders:

the price prescribed by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, the market price (including
tender price); and

- where any of the above prices is unavailable or
inapplicable, the agreed price between the parties.

As President has developed new products and the sales of
such products are very promising, the demand by President
on the Company’s products (including but not limited to pear
juice) will substantially increase. Therefore, on 17 September
2012, the Company entered into a supplementary
agreement with President to revise the 2012, 2013 and 2014
annual caps to RMB100,000,000, RMB200,000,000 and
RMB270,000,000.
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The actual sale of product by the Group to President for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB75,759,074 and is
subject to annual review requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 26 August 2013, the Company has entered into a
construction and installation services framework agreement
with Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xinping
Company”), pursuant to which Xinping Company has
agreed to provide services for installation for various kinds
of constructions and indoor and outdoor decoration to the
Group for the three financial years ending 31 December
2015.

As at the date of signing the agreement, Xinping Company is
wholly owned by Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the wife of Mr. Wang
An who is an executive Director and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Under the Listing Rules, Xinping Company
is an associate of Mr. Wang An and thus is a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Since
the applicable percentage ratios for the highest proposed
annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 December
2015 for the continuing connected transactions under
the framework agreement are more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, in accordance with Rule 14A.34 of the Listing
Rules, the continuing connected transactions under the
framework agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Rules14A.45 to 14A.47
of the Listing Rules and are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

Under the framework agreement, prices of services to be
provided by Xinping Company shall be determined according
to the following principles in orders:

- the price prescribed by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, the market price (including
tender price); and

- where any of the above prices is unavailable or
inapplicable, the agreed price.
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As the Group intends to establish and upgrade the
production lines for pear juice concentrate and various juice
concentrates, and also to construct new buildings for the
future business development of the Group, the needs for
services for installation for various kinds of constructions and
indoor and outdoor decoration will substantially increase.
Therefore, the Board expects the annual caps under
the framework agreement for each of the three financial
years ending 31 December 2015 will be RMB10,000,000,
RMB10,000,000 and RMB10,000,000, respectively.

The actual consumption of service by the Group from Xinping
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB3,644 and is subject to annual review requirement under
the Listing Rules.

All the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions had been conducted on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than those
available to independent third parties under the prevailing local
market conditions and were entered into the Group’s ordinary and
usual course of business, and were fair and reasonable and in the
best interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have confirmed in a letter to the Board to the following effect with
respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Company
that such transactions:

(i) have received approval from the Board;
(i) were conducted in accordance to the pricing policy;

(i)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the cap amount for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014 disclosed in the relevant
announcement.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note VI to the
Financial Statements. Some of these related party transactions
constituting connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have complied
with the disclosure requirements thereon.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2014.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were (a) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and (b) required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the directors of
the Company as referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
were as follows:

Report of Directors

EEEHRSE

RS X5

HE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—RHLFE "

$¢lﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%&ﬂ¢ﬁ
W5  BETES@EEARIEKET
ﬁW%MA§¢ﬁEm%‘§%ﬁ%%ﬁ@
ERXSEETERERE -

EFEREERaNCER

BAREPREIN R_T—HFR - #
BEFHREFRNUAEEXGAEATE
ZARRBMET AKX T ERRE RS A EM
EDN ol

EFE BEERTHAKNRELFR
7 - BERGHRBHEEPHERZ R
nRE

RZE—NE+_A=+—H &5 &
ERTREERA AR R EEEEE (&
(BHELHEBEBRINDETRENRE)ES ()
RIB(EHFRAEGRINE+REE7 X8
MZREBNEARNE) MR A (BERE
(BHREEGD) 2 35 E B E AR IE
HEERIORR)  RIRBCGER KR
16151 )28 352 7B T 17 < B e M A d iR
B EMRBIM SR+ B E AR R KRBT
BRETETERRG 2BG - EXRBRHG
EREFEWT ¢

—Z—-mEFHR Annual Report 2014 55



Report of Directors

ESERSE

Name of Class of Number of
Directors Shares shares held Capacity
Bspg R AR FrsRH#A &t
Wang An Domestic 121,010,501 (1) Interest of controlled
(Note 1) Shares corporations (Note 2)
Iz KA 121010501 (&) REHIEEER (f:r2)
(FtsE1)
H Shares 1,708,500 (L) Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 3)
Hi& 1708500(%)  R¥EH)EEMER (f5E3)
Liu Tsung-Yi H Shares 195,400 (1) Beneficial owner
PN Hik 195,400(K) ERZREA
Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

M

*

As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled (a)
90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited, which
held 46,351,961 Domestic Shares and 1,708,500 H Shares,
representing 11.81% and 0.44% interests in the total issued share
capital of the Company, respectively; (b) 90% interest in Shandong
Andre Group Co., Ltd*(IURZEFEBEBRAR), which held
74,658,540 Domestic Shares, representing 19.02% interest in the
total issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings
Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (IIER Z /= F| £ @ AR
NCIDS

The long position in 1,708,500 H Shares was held by China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Wang An was deemed to be
interested in these H Shares through his 90% interest in China
Pingan Investment Holdings Limited.

For identification purpose only
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Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of
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Interest HEnER/ HisERA

BRES HRESDHL Bt

Personal 48.30% () (&) 30.82% (L) (k)
fEA

Personal 120% (U (R) 0.44% () (&)
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Personal 0.14% () (&) 0.05% () (&)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FTERRRAMALTHREFILFR
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, 7 - BEEXEBROREEERHEER
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the e

Company

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors are aware, the BESEM RZE—NF+_A=1+—
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief A BRARAIES  BEFRITEHEHIN
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the TEARRB 2B - ARG REEET#
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which EERBEBEERPERINETREES 2R

were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO 3 ZBEMEBERE  MERLAKNATIR
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to B(EAE L EEMYE R IEZHREREEL
section 336 of the SFO: T oalike cREREMAL
LU
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Domestic Shares/ total share
Name of Number of Type of H Shares capital
shareholders Class of shares shares held Capacity Interest NERER/ HIEBRA
RREE 3R st = &t BRES HRED L BAK
China Pingan Investment Domestic 46,351,961 ()  Beneficial owner Corporate 18.50% (L) (&) 1.81% ()(&)
Holdings Limited Shares (Note 1) EREEA 2]
W&KR 46,351,961 (R)
(PzE1)
H Shares 1,708500(L)  Beneficial owner Corporate 1.20% (U () 044% () (&)
HE&  1,708500(%) ERAAA 2]
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* Domestic 74,658,540 () Beneficial owner Corporate 29.80% () (&) 19.02% () (&)
(LRZEFEEERAR) Shares (Note 2) EREEA AH]
NER  74,658,540(K)
(M3x2)
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. Domestic 65,779,459 ()  Beneficial owner Corporate 26.26% () (&) 16.75% (L) (&)
Shares (Note 3) EnBBA N
NER 65,779,459 (K)
(H3x3)
* For identification purpose only ©(EHERF
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Name of
shareholders Class of shares
RREH REGER
Uni-President Enterprises Corp. Domestic
S—LERHERAT Shares
NER
H Shares
HP&
Norges Bank H Shares
HHR
Mitsui & Co., Ltd. H Shares
SHYERA g HE&
Citigroup Inc. H Shares
Hix
HSBC Global Asset Management H Shares
(Hong Kong) Limited (Formerly HER

known as HSBC Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited)

HSBC Global Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited ( 27& 5
HSBC Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited)

* For identification purpose only

Number of
shares held

i RO%E

63,746,040 (1
(Note 4)
63,746,040 (&)
(Fiz4)

237,000 (1)
237,000(%)

12,390,500 ()
12,390,500 (&)

21,340,000 (1)
(Note 7)
21,340,000 (&)
(MzE7)

11,603,500 ()
11,603,500 (&)

11,603,500 P)
11,603,500 (f§)

7,808,500 (1)
7,808,500 (&)

Capacity
af

Interests of
controlled
corporations
(Note 5)
RiEEERR
(PitsEs)
Beneficial owner
(Note 6)
ERBAA
(Ft3te6)

Beneficial owner

BEBAA

Beneficial owner

BRBAA

Custodian
corporation/
approved
lending agent
TEREE/
REBEREA

Investment
manager
REWE
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Type of
Interest

RHER

Corporate
NS

Corporate
NS

Corporate
NS

Corporate
NS

Corporate
NS

Corporate
A7

©EREE

Approximate
percentage of
Domestic Shares/
H Shares
BiEnER/
HREZ

25.44% () (&)

017% ) (R)

8.72% (L) (&)

15.02% () (&)

8.17% () (R)

8.17% (P) ()

550% (L) (&)

Approximate
percentage of
total share
capital
HisBRA
il

16.23% () (&)

0.06% (L) (&)

3.16% () (&)

544% (L) (&)

2.96% (L) (&)

2.96% (P) (&)

1.99% () (&)
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Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Domestic Shares/ total share
Name of Number of Type of H Shares capital
shareholders Class of shares shares held Capacity Interest HEwER/ HIEBRA
RREH REGEH FrisRHEE at ERER HREDH® At
Hongan International Investment  Domestic Shares 65,779,459 (1) Interest of Corporate 26.26% () (&) 16.75% (U (R)
Co. Ltd. AR 65,779,459 (K) controlled A7
DRERRERRAT corporations
Rt EERR
HShares  34,771,380()  Bensficial owner Corporate 24.48% (1) (R) 8.86% (L) (&)
Hit  34,771,380(%) ERHAA A
Zhang Shaoxia Domestic Shares 121,010,501 (L) Interest of spouse Personal 48.30% ()(K) 30.82% () (&)
RAE WER 121010501 (R) (Note 8) faA
REER
(F3E8)
H Shares 1,708,500 (L) Interest of spouse Personal 1.20% () (F) 044% ()(&)
HEE  1,708500(K) (Note 9) (N
iBER
(FzE9)
Wang Meng Domestic Shares 65,779,459 (L) Interest of Personal 26.26% () (K) 16.75% (U (K)
TH# WER 65,779,459 (K) controlled fEA
corporations
(Note 10)
Rt EERR
(Fit3E10)
HShares 34,771,380 (1) Interest of Personal 24.48% (1) (&) 8.86% (L) (&)
HiR 34,771,380 (K) controlled fEA
corporations
(Note 11)
R EERR
(FitzE11)
Notes: BtsE -
The letter “L” denotes a long position. The letter “P” denotes interests in a [R]FRKA [ ] FRAHE IR -
lending pool.
1) Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these Q) AREMEFIR - FBEBHK China
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in China Pingan Pingan  Investment Holdings Limited
Investment Holdings Limited. 290% iz m AR EHE A A BRI
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Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in Shandong Andre Group
Co., Ltd.* (IURZEAMEEFRAF]).

The long position in 65,779,459 Domestic Shares was directly
held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.. Based on the information
provided by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., Hongan International
Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms. Wang Meng were deemed to be
interested in these 65,779,459 Domestic Shares.

The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. (fi—1EBRHBERAF),
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (K##— %R RAERA
A]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM#—1%BBRAF]), which held
21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises Corp.
(H—DERHERAQT) was deemed to be interested in such
63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic Shares
were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-President
Enterprises Corp. (#i—1ZERMHBRAF), of which 42,418,360
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 10.80% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, were held directly by Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (FK##— %R RAERA
A]) and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
5.43% of the total issued share capital of the Company, were held
directly by Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BN & —1%
BRAF]).

These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China Holdings
Ltd..

After the capitalization issue of shares by the Company in 2007, the
number of H Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd. was adjusted from
97,000,000 H shares to 213,400,000 H shares. Upon the share
consolidation of the Company in January 2013, the number of H
Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd was further adjusted to 21,340,000
H Shares.

121,010,501 Domestic Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the
husband of Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was
deemed to be interested in these shares.

1,708,500 H Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the husband of Ms.
Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

For identification purpose only
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Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. B##HH ° B
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. J2 891
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China Holdings Ltd. FEiBEMEE2ENE
NAKEFE— T ERMBRAR (EHEHE
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ﬁ °

BE(ELERBREIEONEXVE  H—1%
IR DB R A RHARIERE A 63,746,040 BRI
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(10) Ms. Wang Meng indirectly held 100% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Domestic Shares. Therefore Ms. Wang Meng was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

(11)  Ms. Wang Meng directly held the entire issued share capital of
Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
34,771,380 H Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wang Meng was deemed to
be interested in these shares.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholder of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group or has or may have any other
conflicts of the interest with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.
Practices and Procedures of the Board of
Directors

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard
was sent to each Director two months before the date of the
Board meeting to approve the Company’s 2014 annual results,
with a reminder that the Directors cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to
notify the Chairman of the Company and receive a dated
acknowledgement in writing before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman of
the Company himself, he must notify the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and receive a dated acknowledgement in writing before
any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

Report of Directors
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Report of Directors
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Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established an Audit and Review Committee
with written terms of reference based on the guidelines
recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The primary duties of the Audit and Review
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control of the Group, ensuring compliance
with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and
Review Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Gong Fan, who is the chairman of the Audit and
Review Committee, Chow Kam Hung and Li Tong Ning.

During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Audit and Review
Committee held two meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) shall retire and a
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained

unchanged.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2015

* For identification purpose only
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of
the Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work seriously
and with diligence to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the vyear, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company
and provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the
Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised
the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association of the
Company, and in the interests of its shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited financial statements and the dividend to be proposed
by the Board for presentation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. We are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief
executive officer and other senior management of the Company
are able to strictly observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently,
to exercise their authority faithfully in the best interests of
the Company and to work in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. The operation is becoming more
regulated and the internal control is becoming more perfect. The
transactions between the Company and connected parties are
in the interests of the shareholders as a whole and under fair and
reasonable price.

* For identification purpose only
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
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Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and senior
management staff had been found to have abused their authority,
damaged the interests of the Company or infringed upon the
interests of its shareholders and employees. None of them was
found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or the Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement

and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2014 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Xu Jiang

12 March 2015

*  For identification purpose only
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KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 1500414

All Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet as
at 31 December 2014, the consolidated income statement and
income statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and
cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements. This
responsibility includes: (1) preparing these financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China, and fairly presenting them; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control which is necessary to enable that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Auditor’s Report
BirdE
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Auditor’s Report
Bt E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position and financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated financial performance and financial performance
and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Lei Jiang
Zhao Ying
Beijing, China

12 March 2015
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Goodwill

Total non-current assets

Total assets

RE
REEE :
gXES
eSS
R ERTK
FARFOR
Hfth UK
53

AfHESHEE

Hith g & E

MENEEA

p=1113

ERBEE -
RERERE
B & E
FEIRE
B AE
GRS

FRBEERR

BEAR

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note

V.1
V.2
V.3
V.4
V.5
V.6
V.7
V.8

V.9
V.10
V.1
V.12
V.13

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Company are set out in Note V. 20.

EHEEREBR

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2014412 A31H

(2REEN - ARKT)

2014 2013

B s —E—MmE —ET—=F
h 1 191,534,476 437,065,445
h-2 290,000 -
AL S &) 145,680,730 150,402,183
h- 4 8,981,451 31,863,443
L e B 1,938,070 975,712
16 781,344,637 874,700,484
h-7 10,000,000 -
h -8 60,263,754 88,282,300
1,200,033,118 1,583,289,567

a9 53,762,081 57,569,260
F 10 794,464,571 714,661,263
h 11 15,311 1,934,652
h 12 100,700,677 79,119,390
h 13 8,653,575 5,586,976
957,596,215 858,871,541
2,157,629,333  2,442,161,108

TSR ESOE EF 228 B MBI B RKRM T A
KRB IERERNWAKE D - BEREMAARD A
PRER A% B 2 s B E Mz « 20 ©
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EHEERER

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2014412 A31H

(DFEEB T - ARKT)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Accounts payable
Advances from customers
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Interest payable
Other payables
Non-current liabilities
due within one year

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term payables

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity:

Share capital

Capital reserve

Surplus reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

Consolidated Balance Sheet

RRMERRER
mERIE
FEERRER
AR
FAWFOR
FERTRL T B
ERME
RARIFIE
HAERR
—FRE B
FRBAE

mEREAF

FRBAE
REIEMR

FRBABSE

BR#Em AR

BEMB RS AT

V.16
V.17

V.18
V.19

V.21

V.22

V.23
V.24
V.25
V.26

M H BHH HH

B

+ 16
~17

~ 18
© 1

~ 21

22

23
24
> 25
> 26

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
BRI ENR2015F3 A 12 BEZEESHE -

2014 2013
—=—QmE =%
473,237,000 672,259,392
66,563,565 135,195,416
2,748,318 1,519,209
16,365,153 15,889,032
15,184,010 31,464,766
3,371,233 -
39,820,248 26,678,703
- 22,863,375
617,289,527 905,869,893
692,453 655,420
692,453 655,420
617,981,980 906,525,313
392,600,000 408,988,000
94,622,523 112,395,766
104,236,707 103,144,993
948,188,123 911,107,036

1,539,647,353

1,635,635,795

2,157,629,333

2,442,161,108

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
SEEREA ESS FEEHIEARA _ THE
Chief Accountant: LiLei

GHEEEA T

FIEHRESOE EF 228 B MBI B RRM T A
REFIERER MR E D ©

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Dividends receivable
Other receivables
Inventories
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

RE
REEE :
gXES
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FEM RS
BARFOR
FEARRH
HoA LR
T

A ESREE

HipRehEE

MEEEAR

p=[1]

FRBEE
REIEIRE
BEEE
ERTE
BV AE

FRBEERR

BEAR

Note B 5E

X1 +H -
XvV2 +H-2
XV.3 +#H- 3
XV4  +H-4
XV5 +H- 5
XV.6 +H-6
X7 TH-7
XvV.8 +H -8
XV.9 +H-9
XV.10 +3 10

Balance Sheet

EEEER

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014512 A31 H
(RHEE - ARMT)

2014 2013
—=—QmE =%
180,498,375 432,732,849
290,000 -
115,540,380 132,203,501
6,244,882 27,100,561
57,674,279 196,783,956
394,032,828 244,551,905
74,558,681 171,351,318
10,000,000 -
42,902,832 58,087,647
881,742,257  1,262,811,737
592,831,754 544,795,343
131,786,270 135,872,733
- 66,355
28,871,696 29,422,192
753,489,720 710,156,623

1,635,231,977

1,972,968,360

REATEERIR VAR EE D ©
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Balance Sheet

EEEEX

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2014412 A31H

(DFEEB T - ARKT)

2014 2013
Note B 5E —E—mF —E—=F

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BERMBREREES

Current liabilities: MEAE

Short-term loans 52 HAfE R XV.i12 +3# 12 423,237,000 572,259,392
Accounts payable FETRRK XV.13 +3 13 100,028,822 203,188,093
Advances from customers TRUGRIR 1,471,406 933,292
Employee benefits payable JE TR T 57 XV.14 +H 14 2,463,514 1,778,254
Taxes payable ERFE 956,756 =
Interest payable FERT AL, 3,371,233 =
Other payables H T 5K XV.15 +# 15 114,029,748 138,802,253

Non-current liabilities due —EREEA
within one year ERBAE - 22,863,375
Total current liabilities RBBEAR 645,558,479 939,824,659
Total liabilities BEAF 645,558,479 939,824,659

Equity: MR

Share capital AR V23 H 23 392,600,000 408,988,000
Capital reserve BARRNIE XV.16 +3 - 16 120,865,221 138,638,464
Surplus reserve BENTE XVi7 +& 17 104,236,707 103,144,993
Retained earnings R B FE 371,971,570 382,372,244
Total equity RS AR 089,673,498  1,033,143,701

Total equity and liabilities BEMRR A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.

HIAEBRREN2015F3 A 12 HEESESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer:
EERRA : B TEGHIHEAEA
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BHBBEEA __FE

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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| Operating income
Il Less: Operating costs

Business taxes and surcharges
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative

expenses
Financial expenses
Impairment losses
Add: Investment income

Including: Share of profit from
an associate and
ajoint venture

lll Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income

Including: Gains on disposal
of non-current

assets

Less: Non-operating expenses
Including: Losses from disposal
of non-current assets

IV Profit before income tax
Less: Income tax expenses

V' Net profit for the year and net
profit attributable to shareholders

of the Company

V

V

and total comprehensive income
attributable to shareholders of

the Company

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

W

.
/ 7~

Consolidated Income Statement

BRI
R R

EER SR
HEER
EEER

MHER
EERERX
IIRRE- L6
A gtk
MEERSE

MR & lan

EENE

s BRI
He : ERBEE
EEME

B BRI
Heb: ERPEE
RERK

TR

B ARRER

ENEREER

SR AR

Note

V.27
V.27
V.28
V.29
V.30

V.31
V.32
V.33

V.34

V.35

V.41
V.36

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

B OFAE R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014 F[Z

(2REE - ARKT)

2014 2013

Mt —2-mF —T-=F

h27 844,468,613 893,447,926

R27 644,877,041 713,404,255

28 6,098,700 5,762,938

h29 49,941,905 55,532,775
H-30

50,421,314 51,322,110

h 3 37,963,346 29,425,143

h-32 2,967,908 =

£33 2,730,676 80,195,181

1,642,821 5,208,958

54,929,075 118,195,886

534 2,791,619 9,992,486

214 6,935,530

35 170,007 133,566

41,348 98,224

4 57,550,687 128,054,806

h-36 (848,216) 525,166

58,398,903 127,529,640

58,398,903 127,529,640

TIEN FEB0 A = £ 228 A I ISR M LR
REATEERR AV ER D
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Consolidated Income Statement

B O RIE &

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20144 /%

(DFEEB T - ARKT)

2014 2013
Note BizE —2—mF —E-=F
VIl Earnings per share: N\~ EiRGE -
(1) Basic earnings per share (=) EXERYE V40 F 40 0.146 0.312
(2) Diluted earnings per share (Z)HEERYE V40 R 40 0.146 0.312

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
LB TR ER 2015F 3 A 12 HEESESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
SEEREA ESES FTESHIEEEA:_ THIE

Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SHMEREA  _ F&

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial TSR ESOBE B F 228 E MBI SRR T A
statements. REA SR VBRI D ©
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Income Statement

A &R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014 F[Z

(2REE - ARKT)

2014 2013
Note BisE —ZT—mE —E-=F
| Operating income — EEWA Xv.18 +H 18 587,447,194 577,767,279
Il Less: Operating costs =R EERA Xv.18 +H 18 498,568,898 528,737,306
Business taxes and surcharges BEM S KN 1,674,587 3,729,953
Selling and distribution expenses HEER 30,681,010 34,215,198
General and administrative EHEEMR
expenses 16,825,118 24,349,178
Financial expenses HBER XV.19  +H 19 34,271,164 23,602,216
Add: Investment income m: ZEWES XV.20 A 20 1,909,266 79,696,358
Including: Share of profit from Hep : Siipap
an associate and a et
joint venture B3R W 821,411 2,187,800
lll Operating profit = EERE 7,335,683 42,829,786
Add: Non-operating income m: EEINEA 2,625,500 3,099,939
Including: Gains on disposal Hp : ERBEE
of non-current assets REME - 763,328
Less: Non-operating expenses B EEINT 141,349 47,427
Including: Losses from disposal Heb : ERSEE
of non-current assets REBXL 41,348 47,426
IV Profit before income tax M - FEgE 9,819,834 45,882,298
Less: Income tax expenses W FSHER Xv21i +H 21 (1,097,308) 14,106,045
V Net profit for the year o FRE 10,917,142 31,776,253
VI Other comprehensive income N HitrsR e s
for the year - -
VIl Total comprehensive income + e ASE
for the year 10,917,142 31,776,253

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
B mRER2015F3 A 12 BEEEGHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
SEEREA ESS FTESHIEEEA:_ THE
Chief Accountant: LiLei

SRHBREA >&

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial FIE N FE80H = E 228 B M SRR LS
statements. R TR AR E D ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20144 /%

(DHEE T - ARKT)

Note Bt zE
| Cash flows from operating activities: — KERDEENRERE
Proceeds from sale of goods HERm - RIHEH
and rendering of services hel:opn
Refund of taxes EINFBRE
Proceeds from other WeE H A B4R 2 E B
operating activities el ik v.a2(l)  E - 42(1)
Sub-total of cash inflows BERBREMADE
Payment for goods and services BEMM  BEXEH
TRMRE
Payment to and for employees SRGRBTIARART
ZRMRE
Payment of various taxes SRAMEERE
Payment for other SR )
operating activities BRNR e V422  F 422
Sub-total of cash outflows RERBReML/
Net cash inflow from REEEELN
operating activities ReneFsE V.43(1)  F - 43(1)
Il Cash flows from investing activities: = RERDEENRERE
Procesds from disposal of WEAA R BEHER
financial assets at fair value HEFTAEHEREN
through profit or loss SRBEKIMRE
Investment retums received REREREMKEINERS
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets R E BT EEREFEERT
and intangible assets WERE 55
Proceeds from disposal of equity interests iz BB AT
of an associate WEERe
Proceeds from other W Eofth gy & A &
investing activities ERnRe V.42(3) T 4203)
Sub-total of cash inflows RETERERANGT

Payment for acquisition of BENAREEER
financial assets at fair value HEB AEHERN

through profit or loss SREEZNRRSE
Payment for acquisition of BEUHHNESHEARE
available-for-sale financial assets ZRMRE
Payment for acquisition of fixed assets ERETEENEREE
and intangible assets % fimERE

DEFREZNOREFE V.432)
REZBRGML /et

Net payment for acquisition of subsidiaries B 432

Sub-total of cash outflows

RERDELD
HeR&FR

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
investing activities

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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2014
—g-mF

938,608,096
79,858,810

8,883,141

2013
—T—=F

968,797,755
69,025,657

12,233,219

1,027,350,047

1,050,056,631

(641,477,864) (728,917,961)
(41,424,905) (37,940,721)
(54,594,929) (33,936,646)
(66,528,395) (81,310,679)

| ey G TR
_____ 223,323,954 167,950,624
4,208,587,855 3,584,683,820
5,450,000 6,750,000

30,447 47,407,967

- 135,966,250

822,499 1,900,468
_A2%4899801  3,776,708,506
(4,227,500,0000  (3,581,870,634)
(10,000,000) -
(7,498,504) (39,028,977)
(50,872,124) -

| Gpmatieg (R
(60,970,827) 155,808,894

TIEN FE B0 A = £ 228 A I ISR M LR
REATEERR AV AR D



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014 F[Z

(2REE - ARKT)

2014 2013
Note KizE —Z—-mF —T—=F
lIl Cash flows from financing activities: = FEAEPELNRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings BSRITERKIINER S 951,395,759 854,613,889
Proceeds from other WeB H R E ) E &)
financing activities BBEMRS V.42(4) T 4204) 9,354,986 28,284,813
Sub-total of cash inflows ELEHHSMANG 960,750,745 882,898,702
Repayment of bank borrowings EBRFOTEFIANES (1,173,281,526) (631,626,747
Payment for dividends AERFILZ AR E (20,226,102) (21,994,720)
Payment for interest ERFIELAREE (38,961,102) (28,883,260)
Repayment of borrowings from BEER A ERZINRE
related parties (93,088,008) (140,739,571)
Payment for purchase of own shares EEATROX RS (34,161,243) -
Payment for other SREMEEEED)
financing activities ERnRe V.42(6) .- 42(5) - (9,354,986)
Sub-total of cash outflows EREHHSTL/ G (1,359,717,981) (832,599,284)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from EETHELN
financing activities ReneFa (398,967,236) 50,299,418
IV Effect of foreign currency exchange rate I ~ EREFHHIRE T
changes on cash and cash equivalents ReZEYNTE 438,126 (599,889)
V Net (decrease)/increase in I BERREEEYD
cash and cash equivalents AC VS bl V.43(1)  F - 43(1) (236,175,983) 373,459,047
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m: EyRekRe
at the beginning of the year EEMHE 427,710,459 54,251,412
VI Cash and cash equivalents N ERRERAEE
at the end of the year BYIEREE V4308  F - 43(09) 191,534,476 427,710,459

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
LA RFRER 2015F 3 A 12 HEEESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
SEREREA ESES FTESHIEEEA:_ THIE
Chief Accountant: LiLei

BIHRBEEA TR

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.
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BEMRER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20144 /%
(DHEE T - ARKT)

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
it zE —Z-MmE —T-=fF
| Cash flows from operating activities: — BEEPELNRERE
Proceeds from sale of goods HERm - RHEH
and rendering of services hell:obkn 467,308,627 531,451,492
Refund of taxes KEINHERE 63,888,139 58,644,459
Proceeds from other WeE B BT 25 B
operating activities BB 13,011,855 10,135,196
Sub-total of cash inflows REEERETANG 544,208,621 600,231,147
Payment for goods and services BERm  BEXBH
IRHRE (390,733,331) (410,877,048)
Payment to and for employees IREBTARABRT
SRMHEE (10,941,657) (10,499,437)
Payment of various taxes XN ERE (8,284,864) (12,772,428)
Payment for other SR )
operating activities BRNR S (69,584,467) (14,679,554)
Sub-total of cash outflows METER S RN (479,544,319) (448,828,467)
Net cash inflow from BEEHELN
operating activities ReneFE XV.22(1) 3 22(1) 64,664,302 151,402,680
Il Cash flows from investing activities: = REFHEANTRENS
Proceeds from disposal of WEN AR EEER
financial assets at fair value HEFAEHERN
through profit or loss eRBEKINAS 4,228,587,855 3,580,765,488
Investment returns received RERBEWEFEINES 4,905,000 6,075,000
Net proceeds from disposal of REETEERENEE
fixed assets and intangible assets P E /Y3 & 548 6,964 10,264,949
Proceeds from disposal of equity REBEERE
interests of an associate WEERe - 135,966,250
Proceeds from other WE| B 847 &5 S
investing activities BENEE 782,309 1,137,231
Sub-total of cash inflows REEHREMANG 4,234,282,628 3,734,208,918
Payment for acquisition of BENAABEER
financial assets at fair value HEH: A EHERN
through profit or loss SRBESINRE (4,227,500,000) (3,580,000,000)
Payment for acquisition of BEUHNECHEE
available-for-sale financial assets RS (10,000,000) =
Payment for acquisition of fixed assets ERETEENEREE
and intangible assets Y AmEE (601,145) (18,840,875)
Net payment for acquisition of subsidiaries BV FA RIS NS F4E (52,120,000) =
Sub-total of cash outflows RAETERSMMNGT (4,290,221,145) (3,698,840,875)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REEHELENREREFH
investing activities (55,938,517) 135,368,043

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.

TIEN FEB0H £ H 228 AT KM LR
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
LB TR ER2015F 3 A 12 HEEESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer:  Wang Yan Hui
EERRA Tz ETEEHIFEREA: _ THE
Chief Accountant: Li Lei

BHBEEEA:_ TR

BERER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014 F[Z
(2REE - ARKT)
2014 2013
Note Btk —Z-mE —2—=f
lIl Cash flows from financing activities: = EERDEEMNRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings BERITERKEINER S 881,395,759 747,680,685
Proceeds from other DEHEnEEETHEENRE
financing activities 9,354,986 28,284,813
Sub-total of cash inflows BREFREMANG 890,750,745 775,965,498
Repayment of bank borrowings EBRFOTEFIANES (1,053,281,526) (484,693,543)
Payment for dividends APERFILZ RS (20,226,102) (21,994,720)
Payment for interest EBRFMESZANES (35,097,790) (24,288,303)
Repayment of borrowings EEBHTEX
from related parties SRN[:0kkA - (140,739,571)
Payment for purchase of own shares EEARRNZ MRS (34,161,243) -
Payment for other FTHNEMEEEES)
financing activities el ik - (9,354,986)
Sub-total of cash outflows EREHHSTL/ G (1,142,766,661) (681,071,623)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from SETPEANTS
financing activities mE R (252,015,916) 94,893,875
IV Effect of foreign currency exchange rate 79 » [T“@J”ﬁﬁi&
changes on cash and cash equivalents SEEINTE 410,643 (543,930)
V Net (decrease)/increase in cash 1 BERREEEYD
and cash equivalents FORD) /g XV.222) T8 22(2) (242,879,488) 381,120,668
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m: E9Re ke
at the beginning of the year R 423,377,863 42,257,195
VI Cash and cash equivalents N ERRE RS
at the end of the year RS 180,498,375 423,377,863

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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2014 FE

(BFHEN - ARHT)

Balance at 31 December 2012
Ad: reclassification

Balance at 1 January 2013
Changes in equty for the year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholoers

Balance at 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January 2014
Changes in equty for the year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholoers
3. Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2014

N12E12A31 A
n:g5%

0131 F1BEE
KELREDE
1fakaEs
21T
~-REBHLE
~HRRNAR

N13E12A31 B

N14F1F1BEE
AEEREEE
1EakaEs
2HESE
~ROERLE
~HRENAR
SREME

N14E12 A3 B

Note

V.26

V.26

V.26

V.23

52

2%

1%

SilA

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
EHBRREZEFH K

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BERBARARENR

Share Capital Surplus Retained
capital reserve reserve earnings Total
&% L AE BaEea
k% O 0 HiE ait
408988000 11239766 167018456  740,163:333 1,428555,666
= - (0699663 6696638 =
408,983,000  112,395766 100,061,818 807,109,971  1,428,555,555
- - - 127520840 127529640
- - 30831 (3083175 -
- - - (0449400)  (20,449,400)
408,983,000 112395766  103,144.998 911,107,086 153,635,795
408,983,000  112,395766 103,144,993 911,107,036 1,535,635,795
- - - 58308908 58,308,903
- - 1,091,714 (1,001,714) -
- - - (20,226,102  (20,226,102)
(16,388,000)  (17,773,243) - - (34,161,243
392,600,000 94622523 104,236,707 948,188,123 1,530,047,353

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.

I BHRREN 2016 F3 A 12 AEEEGHAE -

Legal Representative: Wang An

SEFREA T% FEGH IS
Chief Accountant: LiLei
SHRBEEEA F@

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.
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Chief Financial Officer:

REdthZENRTROBRAF

Wang Yan Hui

ToE
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
RRERSH K

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014 F[Z

(2REE - ARKT)

Share Capital Surplus Retained

Capital Reserve reserve eamings Total
RRHE
Note fifsE k% 50k EBOR  AOEHR &t
Balance at 1 January 2013 N13F1R1BEE 408988,000 138638464 100061818 374128566 1,021,816,848
Changes in equty for the year AEERRHE
1, Total comprehensive income 15a0R8E - - - 317716253 31,776,263
2. Appropriation of profs 2HIEAE V.26 1%
-~ Appropriation for surplus reserve —RHBRLNE - - 3083175 (3083175 -
- Distrioutions to sharefolders ~HRRHAE - - - (204494000 (20,449.400)
Balance at 31 December 2013 N13E12A31 AHE 408,988,000 138638464  103,144993 382,372,244  1,033,143,701
Balance at 1 January 2014 N14F1F1BEE 406,988,000 138,638,464 103,144,993 382,372,244 1,033,143,701
Changes in equty for the year KEEREHEE
1. Total comprehensive income 1ERhaas - - - 10017,142 10917142
2. Appropriation of profs 2LNENE V.26 1%
~ Appropriation for surplus reserve ~RRBSNE - - 1,001,744 (1,001,744) -
- Distriautions to shareholders o DEL - - - (20226102  (20,226,102)
3. Purchase of own shares SREWE V.23 72 (16,388,000)  (17,773,243) - - (34161,243)
Balance at 31 December 2014 N14E2 A AHE 392,600,000 120,865,221 104,236,707 371,971,570 989,673,498

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
LM BREER2015F3 A 12 BEEEEHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer:  Wang Yan Hui
SERHREA - __Fr TERHIEAEA: _ THE
Chief Accountant: Li Lei

SHMBEEA T

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial TSR ESOE EF 228 B MBI MARN T A
statements. R R VBRI S ©
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80 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(RIS - 2AELBARYT)

Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (referred to as the
“Company”), was named Yantai North Andre Juice Company
Limited which was established at Yantai on 30 March 1996.
Headquarter of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong
Province.

The Company and its subsidiaries (referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
condensed juice, pulp, pomace and related products. For
information about the subsidiaries of the Company, refer to
Note VII.

During the reporting period, the information about increases/
decreases in the Group’s subsidiaries is disclosed in Note VI.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates

1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements comply with the requirements
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued
by the Ministry of Finance (MOF) of the People’s Republic
of China (PRC) and present truly and completely the
consolidated financial position and financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
financial performance and financial performance and the
consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended.

2 Accounting period

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31
December.

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF
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et @R R RMDARAR (LA
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TERELEHERBRET R
- EMEAREAEER - ARA]T
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AR B2 RHIEEN o
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% o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

A FEEW AR AW b
(#8)

lll Significant accounting policies and =
accounting estimates (cont’d)

3 Functional currency 3 mERA{HE

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and
these financial statements are presented in Renminbi.
The Company translates the financial statements of
subsidiaries from their respective functional currencies
into the Company’s functional currency (see Note III.8) if
the subsidiaries’ functional currencies are not the same as
that of the Company.

Accounting treatments for a business combination
involving enterprises under common control

A business combination involving enterprises under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
business combination, and that control is not transitory.
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured
based on their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
at the combination date. The difference between the
carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the
consideration paid for the combination (or the total par
value of shares issued) is adjusted against share premium
in the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted against
retained earnings. Any costs directly attributable to
the combination are recognised in profit or loss when
incurred. The combination date is the date on which one
combining enterprise obtains control of other combining
enterprises.

RRRHRBEALESARYE &
HUPBHREEANEERARE -
ARBE D FRAFRAARNRAIRL
BRANL B ASMN B ¥ R AR AR AL
% EREVBHRRE  BETA
A SNE SRR IRIBMIE= - 8
HEITTHE -

B - T EESHNETEE
7
SEAHNERESHAMRIZA
— I SERMNZ T R AR RG] B iR
AW IRE SR - AR —IEH T A
©REH - EHTELFEAFHE
BHEENAEE ZRAHBEESR
ARAEI 77 B GFEA S HRR T eV ARE B
BFFE - BUSHFEERMEEER
S E GHEHERE(EE (S ELT
B EEARE) NER  FHEBEX
RIERHBRAGE  EARTEFH
AR E TR - AREFY
@ o RETERAFRENEERN
BB NBERT AR BB -
B R SEHTERRSHKE 6
TR B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

A FEEW AR
(#8)

lll Significant accounting policies and =
accounting estimates (cont’d)

FE—EHTEXSHNETE

5 Accounting treatments for a business combination 5

82 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

involving enterprises not under common control

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
business combination. Where 1) the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred (including
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control
of the acquiree, exceeds 2) the acquirer’s interest in the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognised as goodwill (see Note
I.17). if 1) is less than 2), the difference is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period. The costs of issuing
equity or debt securities as a part of the consideration
for the acquisition are included in the carrying amounts
of these equity or debt securities upon initial recognition.
Other acquisition-related costs are expensed when
incurred. Any difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount of the assets transferred as consideration
is recognised in profit or loss. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, if the recognition
criteria are met, are recognised by the Group at their
acquisition-date fair value. The acquisition date is the date
on which the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

For a business combination involving enterprises not
under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition date. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
is recognised as investment income for the current
period; the amount recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to the previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree is reclassified as investment income for the
current period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIaE 8} - 2 BB B ARHET)

A FEEW AR
(#8)

lll Significant accounting policies and =
accounting estimates (cont’d)

6 Consolidated financial statements

6 EHMBHRRNERTZE

(1) General principles

The scope of consolidated financial statements is
based on control and the consolidated financial
statements comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control exists when the investor has all
of following: power over the investee; exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
The financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control

commences until the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in
the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. Net profit or loss attributable to non-
controlling shareholders is presented separately in the
consolidated income statement below the net profit
line item. Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling shareholders is presented separately
in the consolidated income statement below the total
comprehensive income line item.

When the amount of loss for the current period
attributable to the non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary exceeds the non-controlling shareholders’
portion of the opening balance of owners’ equity of the
subsidiary, the excess is still allocated against the non-
controlling interests.

(1)

RERA

BHMBHRERNE GrEiEIAE
HAERTARE - BFEAR
A RAREHES T AF] 3%
B EEAKERAHERE
TTHIREN BB IR E T H
HRESMEAAZEWE - X
BAENERHRE T
NP BEORESHE - EHE AR
SEREHAHRNE T A0E
N AEEEZEEFRE
FHRENEE RN (BEAE
BEMEANREMIAZE
BREEEERN) - TRRIRE
Bk - REKRRMRERE
BB e B R =1 45 R B
LEBEERAHIMBEERERT -

FRBEDEBREHAE S -

BaMERe WSAEDRES
HEERBROBRED M
B NEREFRE MRS
HEEHEBREBIR -

MEFATSBRRESEHE
HERBET S RBRELT
S E e et
B - HEABIR B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

A FEEW AR
(#8)

lll Significant accounting policies and =
accounting estimates (cont’d)

6 BOHMBRROERS E (F)
(1) #EEEIRAI (&)

6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
(1) General principles (cont’d)

84  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
represent impairment losses that are recognised in the
financial statements.

(2) Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, the financial
statements of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated financial statements as if the combination
had occurred at the date that the ultimate controlling
party first obtained control. The opening balances and
the comparative figures of the consolidated financial
statements are also restated. In the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, the subsidiary’s
assets and liabilities based on their carrying amounts
in the financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party are included in the consolidated balance
sheet, and financial performance is included in the
consolidated income statement, respectively, from
the date that the ultimate parent company of the
Company obtains the control of the subsidiary to be

consolidated.
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accounting estimates (cont’d) (4#8)
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6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

©

(cont’d)

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
Group derecognises assets, liabilities, non-controlling
interests and other related items in shareholders’
equity in relation to that subsidiary. The remaining
equity investment is remeasured at its fair value at the
date when control is lost. Any resulting gains or losses
are recognised as investment income of the current
period.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary in
multiple transactions in which it disposes of its long-
term equity investment in the subsidiary in stages, the
following are considered to determine whether the
Group should account for the multiple transactions as
a bundled transaction:
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— the occurrence of one arrangement is dependent
on the occurrence of at least one other
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6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
(3) Disposal of subsidiaries (cont’d)

)

— one arrangement considered on its own is not
economically justified, but it is economically
justified when considered together with other
arrangements.

If each of the multiple transactions does not form
part of a bundled transaction, the transactions
conducted before the loss of control of the subsidiary
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies for partial disposal of equity investment in
subsidiaries where control is retained (see Note Ill.6(4)).

If each of the multiple transactions forms part of
a bundled transaction which eventually results in
the loss of control in the subsidiary, these multiple
transactions are accounted for as a single transaction.
In the consolidated financial statements, the
difference between the consideration received and
the corresponding proportion of the subsidiary’s net
assets (subsequently measured since the acquisition
date) in each transaction prior to the loss of control
shall be recognised in other comprehensive income
and transferred to profit or loss when the parent
eventually loses control of the subsidiary.

Changes in non-controlling interests

Where the Company acquires a non-controlling
interest from a subsidiary’s non-controlling
shareholders or disposes of a portion of an interest
in a subsidiary without a change in control, the
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the amount of
the consideration paid or received is adjusted to the
capital reserve (share premium) in the consolidated
balance sheet, with any excess adjusted to retained
earnings.
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7 RERRSEEYNRERE

7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

of financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from
investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign
currency transactions are, on initial recognition, translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the dates of
the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences,
are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they
arise from the re-translation of the principal and interest
of specific borrowings for the acquisition, construction of
qualifying assets (see Note Illl.15). Non-monetary items
that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies
are translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined; the
resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss, except for the differences arising from the re-
translation of available-for-sale financial assets, which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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8 Foreign currency transactions and translation

of financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies (cont’d)

Assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Equity items, excluding “Retained earnings”,
are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at
the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign
operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income. The translation differences accumulated in
shareholders’ equity with respect to a foreign operation is
transferred to profit or loss in the period when the foreign
operation is disposed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on hand,
investment in debt and equity securities other than those
classied as long-term equity investments (see Note IIl.12),
receivables, payables, loans and borrowings and share
capital.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities:
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets
and other financial liabilities.
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9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and

9 £WMIAE
(1) THEEREHBE EAREZN

financial liabilities (cont’d)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured

initially at fair value. For financial assets and financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related

directly attributable transaction costs are charged to

profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are included in their initial costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and

liabilities are measured as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (including financial assets or
financial liabilities held for trading).

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as
at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or if it is a derivative.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and

9 2RTHE)

(1) HEERSHE BEAERH
financial liabilities (cont’d) iTE (&)
— AR ESREE

— Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated upon
initial recognition as available for sale and other
financial assets which do not fall into any of the
above categories.

Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably
are measured at cost subsequent to initial
recognition. Other available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and changes therein are generally
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses from monetary financial assets which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. When
an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss
when the investee approves the dividends. Interest
is recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method (see Note I11.21(2)).

Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities.
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and

financial liabilities (cont’d)

Other financial liabilities (cont’d)

Other financial liabilities include the liabilities arising
from financial guarantee contracts. Financial
guarantees are contracts that require the Group
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
holder) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
subsequent to initial recognition, the guarantee
is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation and the
amount of a provision determined in accordance
with the principles of contingent liabilities (see Note
1.20).

Liabilities other than those arising from financial
guarantee contracts are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

(2) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities generally are

presented separately in the balance sheet, and are not

offset. However, a financial asset and a financial liability

are offset and the net amount is presented in the

balance sheet when both of the following conditions

are satisfied:

the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts

the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

S

)

92 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in profit
or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of
it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised.
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes but is not limited to:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties faced
by the issuer;

(e) significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of an investment
in an equity instrument may not be recovered by
the investor;

(f) a significant or a prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
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For the calculation method of impairment of
receivables, refer to Note [I.L10. The impairment of
other financial assets is measured as follows:

— Available-for-sale financial assets

- AHhESREE

Available-for-sale financial assets are assessed
for impairment on an individual basis and/or on
a collective group basis. When an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss arising from decline in fair value that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity
is reclassified to profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
an available-for-sale debt instrument, the fair value
of the debt instrument increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for an investment in an equity
instrument classified as available-for-sale is not
reversed through profit or loss. The impairment
loss on an investment in unquoted equity
instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured is not reversed.
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9 Financial instruments (cont’d) 9 SRMIE(H)
(5) Equity instrument (5) #m LA

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury stock. All expenditures
relating to the repurchase are recorded in the cost of
the treasury stock, with the transaction entering into
the share register. Treasury stock is excluded from
profit distributions and is stated as a deduction under
shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury stock is cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury stock cancelled. Where the cost of
the treasury stock cancelled exceeds the total par
value, the excess is sequentially deducted from capital
reserve (share premium), surplus reserve and retained
earnings. If the cost of treasury stock cancelled is less
than the total par value, the difference is recorded in
the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury stock is disposed of, if the proceeds
exceed the cost of the treasury stock, the excess is
recorded in the capital reserve (share premium); if the
proceeds are less than the cost of the treasury stock,
the difference is sequentially deducted from capital
reserve (share premium), surplus reserve and retained
earnings.

AR FHTHER T AREI0H
ENBRRHBAE  FTARK
% - AR TR TAS
REHENR DB AR
RS -

EEEAR AR MR - B EE R
NERBFRER - BIBERN
MEBXHBAEFRRA -
RSETHEERL - BFERT
2EMBEOE  EEEABER
RERBCRERMEHIEIERF
o

BIFROEHEE - BOTHRER
BREBERDEA  BEEREA
HBEEERBENED - BIEKX
HREARRE(EAEE) &
BABMARDEANE  EFR
RABEREEARED - EXE
BRI DB INEARRTE (B
() -

EFkEER  EREASR
BEFRERANE D - EIE AR
DE(EAREE) - BEREFER
AR - RITRERR
BORARE) - BHRAE - K
DECAHE

—Z &£ Annual Report 2014 95



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEEgRwEME AR
accounting estimates (cont’d) ($#8)

10 BURRIRHVRRER

10 Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for impairment on an individual
basis and/or on a collective group basis as follows.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated
as the excess of its carrying amount over the present
value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables
share similar credit risk characteristics (including those
having not been individually assessed as impaired), based
on their historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the
observable factors reflecting current economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
receivables, there is a recovery in value of the financial
asset which can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss will not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

11 Inventories

(1)

@

Classification and cost
Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, semi-
finished goods, and finished goods.

Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

Inventories are initially measured at cost.

conversion and other expenditures incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. In
addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods include direct labour costs
and an appropriate allocation of production overheads.

Cost of inventories transferred out

Cost of inventories transferred out is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables
and packaging materials are amortised in full when
received for use. The amortisations are included in the
cost of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss

for the current period.

(#&)

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

= AREERHBRAG I

11 78
(1) FFE 7 ZEFIEE A

@

FEBRERMF - £EM - F
P e AIEER AR ©

FEBKAEITIRTE - 7
ERABEEBRA - T
ARAEF G ZEE| B AT P AR
REPTERAREMSH - FRIEM
RSN - 2 fn K
mEBEEREATINZREE
HOIDBEMEESUEER -

S TP A B %
it 7 S0 TR A SRR DV
FPEEHE -

BESFERLEEYEEAEN
FHRA — R ESHETHE - 51
AHBEENKAREE R

Eo

—Z—EEH Annual Report 2014 97



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESRwEME AR
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)

11 Inventories (cont’d) 11 F& (#|)
(3) Basis for determining the net realisable value and (3) IFE R ZEFEMETEMKER

)

provisioning methods for impairment losses of
inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable
value of materials held for use in the production is
measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated.
The net realisable value of the inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based
on the contract price, to the extant of the quantities
specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion
of inventories is measured based on general selling
prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for the impairment, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventory system
The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments
(1) Investment cost of Long-term equity investments

(@) Long-term equity investments acquired through a

business combination

The initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment acquired through a business
combination involving enterprises under
common control is the Company’s share of
the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s equity
in the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party at the combination
date. The difference between the initial
investment cost and the carrying amount of
the consideration given is adjusted to the share
premium in the capital reserve, with any excess
adjusted to retained earnings.

For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control, the initial
cost comprises the aggregate of the fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity securities issued by
the Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For a long-term equity investment
obtained through a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control
and achieved through multiple transactions
in stages which do not form a bundled
transaction, the initial cost comprises the
carrying value of the previously-held equity
investment in the acquiree immediately
before the acquisition date, and the additional
investment cost at the acquisition date.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)
12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 12 REARRERE (8)
(1) Investment cost of Long-term equity investments (cont’d) (1) RARIER E R EK LK ETF
(&)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than (o) E A 75 N ERAS /Y = HA AR 4
through a business combination wE
- A long-term equity investment acquired — HRBBDLES LI
other than through a business combination is B E At 5 X EUAE E’j%ﬁﬂ
initially recognised at the amount of cash paid if e S & - G
the Group acquires the investment by cash, or B R U NIRS
at the fair value of the equity securities issued MM RERERE
if an investment is acquired by issuing equity AEBIZRBRERE S FH
securities. BEERERYIKIEE

FR7R  HRN TR 1
&S R AR IR
B AEBERBETE
HsERBHFNRAEEE
ARTEIE R

(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity 2) RARER E#EFEREm

investment BRI 2

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (@ HFARINKRE
In the Company’s separate financial statements, £ R A E Bl B 7% &
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries o AR R R RN R
are accounted for using the cost method for FRAEMRARERE#E
subsequent measurement. Except for cash TEE=E HWwKREEE
dividends or profit distributions declared but not 5 %5k &IE S IR F 3k
yet distributed that have been included in the price MEBHARABZEHEH D
or consideration paid in obtaining the investments, ﬁﬁ?ﬁ% EHRE K= B
the Company recognises its share of the cash VISR ERER A EI’JTEE
dividends or profit distributions declared by the m&;ﬂﬁ FEEMNEE
investee as investment income in the current 1B 18 7 2 A IR & B A E‘/;
period. FERRIN o
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment (cont’d)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)

-

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

For the method of impairment testing and
measurement for the investments in subsidiaries,
refer to Note 111.18

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in
accordance with the policies described in Note
1.6.

Investment in joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties have joint control (See
Note Il.12(3)) and rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group
has significant influence (see Note IIl.12(3)).

An investment in a joint venture or an associate
is accounted for using the equity method for
subsequent measurement, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale.
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment (cont’d)

(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

Under the equity method:

Where the initial cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition, the
investment is initially recognised at cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition, the investment is initially recognised
at the investor’s share of the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets, and the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.

After the acquisition of the investment, the
Group recognises its share of the investee’s
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as investment income or losses and other
comprehensive income respectively, and
adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. Once the investee declares any
cash dividends or profit distributions, the
carrying amount of the investment is reduced
by that amount attributable to the Group.
Changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s
owners’ equity, other than those arising
from the investee’s net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or profit distribution,
is recognised directly in the Group’s equity,
and the carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted accordingly.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)
12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 12 RERERE (&)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity 2 REREREZEFTZERBam
investment (cont'd) TEsE T 2% ()
(o) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d) (o) HEEEEMEZDER
®E (&)
In calculating its share of the investee’s net EFTEEZ AN EDIE
profits or losses, other comprehensive income R I E BB IR A F
and other changes in owners’ equity, the B HihRAWE R
Group recognises investment income and FTA &= E &)
other comprehensive income after making E’J{" REAF - ANEE AL
appropriate adjustments to align the accounting SR E R IR B B AL ]
policies or accounting periods with those of the ;”)# RIEFEEAABER
Group based on the fair value of the investee’s e RRASEENE
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. FTEUCR 2 AT HARE LT
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from WERARBIERIZER

transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates
or joint ventures. Unrealised losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no impairment.

The Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses of the investee after
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment and any long-term interest that
in substance forms part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture or associate is
reduced to zero, except to the extent that the
Group has an obligation to assume additional
losses. If the joint venture or associate
subsequently reports net profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESRwEME AR
accounting estimates (cont’d) ($#8)

12 RERERE (&)
Q) RERIERE KB ER Bz

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

For the method of impairment testing and
measurement for the investments in joint ventures
and associates, refer to Note II1.18.

(3) Criteria for determining the existence of joint control or

significant influence over an investee

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities (activities with
significant impact on the returns of the arrangement)
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The following factors are usually considered when
assessing whether the Group can exercise joint control
over an investee:

— Whether no single participant party is in a
position to control the investee’s related activities
unilaterally;

— Whether strategic decisions relating to the
investee’s related activities require the unanimous
consent of all participant parties that sharing of
control.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an investee
but does not have control or joint control over those
policies.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESRwEME AR
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)
13 Fixed assets 13 BEEE

(1) Recognition of fixed assets

(1) BIEEERZIFIT

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the
Group for use in production of goods with useful lives
over one accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of self-
constructed assets is measured in accordance with
the policy set out in Note Ill.14.

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group in
a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.

Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as
assets if the criteria to recognise fixed assets are
satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(2) Depreciation of fixed assets
The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life, unless the fixed asset is classified
as held-for-sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are as

follows:

Class

o)
Plant and buildings B B2 &)
Machinery and equipment RN
Office and other equipment WA R E MR
Motor vehicles EHTH

Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least at each year-end.

(38) For the method of impairment testing and
measurement, refer to Note I11.18.
(4) For the recognition, measurement and depreciation

of fixed assets acquired under finance leases, refer to
Note IIl.25(3)
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(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(56) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is on disposal; or

— when no future economic benefit is expected to be
generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

14 Construction in progress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note Ill.15), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is included in construction in
progress before it is transferred to fixed asset when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided
against construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note 1I1.18).
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESRwEME AR
accounting estimates (cont’d) ($#8)

15 Borrowing costs 15 EREHR

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the

acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are

capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as financial

expenses when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest

(including amortisation of any discount or premium on

borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period is

determined as follows:

Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally
and uses them for the acquisition, construction of
a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the
excess amounts of cumulative expenditures on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.
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A FEEW AR AW b
(#8)

lll Significant accounting policies and =
accounting estimates (cont’d)

15 Borrowing costs (cont’d) 15 fEREA (&)

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the
borrowings.

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when
incurred.

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities of acquisition, construction that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
in progress, and ceases when the assets become ready
for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended when the acquisition, construction activities
are interrupted abnormally for a period of more than three
months.

16 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note II.18).
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortised using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is
classified as held for sale.
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accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)

16 Intangible assets (cont’d) 16 B EE (&)
The amortisation period for intangible assets is as follows: B AENEHEERE
Item Amortisation period (years) IRH PESHEPR (F)
Land use right 35-50 years T A 35-50 4

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite

useful life and is not amortised when there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is
expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.
At the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any

intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure on the research phase
and expenditure on the development phase.

Expenditure on the research phase expensed when
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is
capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note IIl.18). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

17 Goodwill

The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost
of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under the
business combination not involving enterprises under
common control.

Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
Note lI.18). On disposal of an asset group or a set of
asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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18 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

18 REEREMEEINHMBEE

financial assets

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date based on the internal and
external sources of information to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment:

— fixed assets

— construction in progress

— intangible assets

— long-term equity investments
— goodwill

f any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates
the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group
or set of asset groups, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination for the purpose of
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set
of asset groups, hereinafter in this note) is the higher of its
fair value (see Note lIl.19) less costs to sell and its present
value of expected future cash flows.
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18 REEREMEEINHMBEE

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

financial assets (cont’d)

An asset group is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.
An asset group is composed of assets directly relating to
cash-generation. Identification of an asset group is based
on whether major cash inflows generated by the asset
group are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or asset groups. In identifying an asset group,
the Group also considers how management monitors
the Group’s operations and how management makes
decisions about continuing or disposing of the Group’s
assets.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset
is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to an
asset group or a set of asset groups are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the asset group
or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. However, such
allocation would not reduce the carrying amount of an
asset below the highest of its fair value less costs to sell
(if measurable), its present value of expected future cash
flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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19 Fair Value Measurement 19 AAEENE

Unless otherwise specified, the Group determines fair
value measurement as below:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date, and uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data and other information are
available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques
mainly include the market approach, the income approach
and the cost approach.

20 Provisions

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in
reaching the best estimate. Where there is a continuous
range of possible outcomes for the expenditure required,
and each possible outcome in that range is as likely as any
other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range. In
other cases, the best estimate is determined according to
the following circumstances:
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20 Provisions (cont’d)

21
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— Where the contingency involves a single item, the best
estimate is the most likely outcome

— Where the contingency involves a large population of
items, the best estimate is determined by weighting all
possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount to
the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the
following conditions are met.

(1) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when all of the general
conditions stated above and the following conditions
are satisfied:

— Significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair

value of the consideration received or receivable under
the sales contract or agreement.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)
(2) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable effective interest rate.

22 Employee benefits
(1) Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund,
measured at the amount incurred or at the applicable
benchmarks and rates, are recognised as a liability as
the employee provides services, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of
assets where appropriate.

(2) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated
in a defined contribution basic pension insurance
in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group
makes contributions to basic pension insurance
plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognised as part of the cost of
assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.
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22 Employee benefits (cont’d)
(3) Termination benefits
When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a
provision is recognised with a corresponding expense
in profit or loss at the earlier of the following dates:

— When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw
the offer of termination benefits because of
an employee termination plan or a curtailment
proposal

— When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring
plan involving the payment of termination benefits
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting
to implement that plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it.
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23 Government grants 23 BUEED

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of
monetary or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group except for capital contribution from
the government in the capacity as an investor in the
Group. Specific transfers from the government, such as
investment grants that have been clearly defined in official
documents as part of “capital reserve” are also dealt with
as capital contributions, rather than government grants.

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received
or receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a
transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair
value.

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets. A government
grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred
in the future is recognised initially as deferred income,
and released to profit or loss in the periods in which the
expenses are recognised. A grant that compensates the
Group for expenses already incurred is recognised in profit
or loss immediately.
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24 Income tax 24 Fr8Ht

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases, which include the deductible losses
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). Deferred tax is not
recognised for taxable temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of goodwiill.
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24 Fri5%i ()

24 Income tax (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured
based on the tax consequences that would follow from
the expected manner of recovery or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted at the reporting date that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or
the liability is settled.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will
be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if all the following
conditions are met:

— the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets

— different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilites and current tax assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities  simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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25 KEHE  mEHEE
HESRBEHENKLEHE - &
BHERIEERMBRRIKESR
b@ﬁ%t@&?@éé%ﬁ%ﬁ

ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of AR 2 RS MREAORE o K&

whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred. HERERREREUIINE MR

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. g

25 Operating leases and finance leases
A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

(1) Operating lease charges

Rental payments under operating leases are
recognised as part of the cost of another related asset
or as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(2) Assets leased out under operating leases

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
except for investment properties, are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies
described in Note lI.13(2). Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy described in Note Ill.18. Income derived from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss using
the straight-line method over the lease term. If initial
direct costs incurred in respect of the assets leased
out are material, the costs are initially capitalised
and subsequently amortised in profit or loss over the
lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
Otherwise, the costs are charged to profit or loss
immediately.
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25 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d) 25 REHEE  MEHE (&)
(3) Assets acquired under finance leases G) BMEHEHMAEE

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance
lease, the asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. At the commencement of the
lease term, the minimum lease payments are recorded
as long-term payables. The difference between the
carrying amount of the leased assets and the minimum
lease payments is recognised as unrecognised finance
charges. Initial direct costs that are attributable to a
finance lease incurred by the Group are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Depreciation and
impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policies described in Notes Il
13(2) and IIl.18, respectively.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the leased asset is depreciated over its
estimated useful life. Otherwise, the leased asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
estimated useful life.

Unrecognised finance charge under a finance lease
is amortised using an effective interest method over
the lease term. The amortisation is accounted for in
accordance with the principles of borrowing costs (see
Note Ill.15).

At the balance sheet date, the long-term payables
arising from finance leases, net of the unrecognised
finance charges, are analysed and separately
presented as long-term payables or non-current
liabilities due within one year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESRwEME AR
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)

25 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d) 25 REBE  MEHE (&)
(4) Assets leased out under finance leases ) BEHER L EE
At the commencement of the lease term, the Group REEHREHE  KEBEEHRE

recognises the aggregate of the minimum lease
receipts determined at the inception of a lease and
the initial direct costs as finance lease receivable. The
difference between the aggregate of the minimum
lease receipts, the initial direct costs, and the
aggregate of their present value is recognised as
unearned finance income.

Unearned finance income is allocated to each
accounting period during the lease term using the
effective interest method. At the balance sheet date,
finance lease receivables, net of unearned finance
income, are analysed and separately presented as
long-term receivables or non-current assets due within
one year.

EFMBEREEEUKREEY)
MEEERZMEREREE
HEFRARERE  HRIEHR
EWHE - NIREREBRZM
EHIRE 2 ME) ZRFER AR
EHR AW -

AEEFRERNEZERE
HAREHROEABERRE
Wik BEABRE  AKHE
HEKEEHEFREARER
BMEMEOER  DHIFIAE
ERERTREBSFA R —
FREHNIERBEE °

26 Profit distributions to shareholders 26 BRF2E
Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit BEEBGBRAR  KEIHENT
appropriation plan, which wil be approved after the B BE 7 2R B B A BRI 3k R
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at B THERAEEEBEXRANE
the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes & - FEMIEE A B E R o
separately.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI, - 2R ETBARKET)
Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)
27 Related parties 27 B E
If a party has the power to control, jointly control or — i - RS R — k¥R
exercise significant influence over another party, or —F ke buiﬁ%ﬁ% A KRR 75 8%

vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties of the Group. Related parties
of the Group and the Company include, but are not limited
to:

(@ the Company’s parent;

(o) the Company’s subsidiaries;

(c) enterprises that are controlled by the Company’s
parent;

(d) investors that have joint control or exercise significant
influence over the Group;

(e) enterprises or individuals if a party has control or joint
control over both the enterprises or individuals and the
Group;

(f) joint ventures of the Group, including subsidiaries of
joint ventures;

(g) associates of the Group, including subsidiaries of
associates;

(n) principal individual investors of the Group and close
family members of such individuals;

M 73 PA_E RS —J7 4%l
- {BACEARE 7T o R E—D%fl/\
b o Ef

#

H[RI4% I

£ R B ST A7

e EMhEaE T BRI 5 T%EX
AEE R - RSB RAR
RIEAES 5 RIRETRR

()

W)

ZA/NSII:0)S/NC]

EA/NCIE RN

BRR B R[F — B R AR A
Hipfp 3R

HAKEERARZEHHEK
FENRET

EAKERZ— T
PRI EEFHEA

7N |EJ

AEEMEELE  BEEAE
TENFRE]

REBMB S
TENFRE]

BREHE

AEENETRREEM/A RS
HEREINREKE :

—Z—EEEH  Annual Report 2014 123



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)
27 Related parties (cont’d) 27 RS (&)
() key management personnel of the Group and close () ~"EEMEREREBEAENMER
family members of such individuals; FERBETHNREKS
() key management personnel of the Company’s parent; () AARIBRARINBEREEREA
% .

close family members of key management personnel
of the Company’s parent; and

other enterprises that are controlled or jointly
controlled by principal individual investors, key
management personnel of the Group, or close family
members of such individuals.

28 Segment reporting
Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure

of

the Group’s internal organisation, management

requirements and internal reporting system. An operating

segment is a component of the Group that meets all of the

following conditions:

that may earn revenue and incur expenses in daily
business activities;

whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s management to allocate its resources and
assess its performance; and

for which discrete financial information on financial
position, operating results and cash flows of the Group
is available.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A

accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)

28 Segment reporting (cont’d) 28 7 IR E (4&)
Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into 10 R W 1 2k 22 (B 45 & oy 2B 17 E AL
a single operating segment if the segments have similar KES B RIFENL TN A EmEERE
economic characteristics and the segment are similar in FISHEEUER - A AS G A—ER
each of the following aspects: EHEL
- the nature of each product and service; - BEBEMISBHMLEE
— the nature of production process; - AEBEAMNE
— the type or class of customers for their products and - EnRSENEFEEA

services;

- the methods used to distribute the products or provide - HEEMSIRESHEH AR

their services;

— the influence brought by law, administrative regulations - HEEMRREHRESEXEE
on production of products and provision of services. THUEHRFE -
Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of AEBEFBEDIRER - HEBME
actual transaction price for such transactions for segment RSWAIRER X Z B BER:
reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent with 2 o MBS BWMEMFEAR TN
those for the consolidated financial statements. RELR RN BB SRR TR A

BT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and
uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Notes V.13 and IX contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment of
goodwill and fair value of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment of receivables
As described in Note IIl.10, receivables that are
measured at amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, an impairment loss is recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about loss
events such as a significant decline in the estimated
future cash flow of an individual debtor or the portfolio
of debtors, and significant changes in the financial
condition that have an adverse effect on the debtor. If
there is objective evidence of a recovery in the value
of receivables which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

(b)

©

Provision for impairment of inventories

As described in Note Ill.11, the net realisable value
of inventories is under management’s regular review,
and as a result, provision for impairment of inventories
is recognised for the excess of inventories’ carrying
amounts over their net realisable value. When making
estimates of net realisable value, the Group takes
into consideration the use of inventories held on hand
and other information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market prices
and the Group’s historical operating costs. The actual
selling price, the costs of completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes may
vary based on the changes in market conditions and
product saleability, manufacturing technology and the
actual use of the inventories, resulting in the changes
in provision for impairment of inventories. The net profit
or loss may then be affected in the period when the
impairment of inventories is adjusted.

Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets
As described
inventories and financial assets are reviewed at each

in Note .18, assets other than
balance sheet date to determine whether the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the
assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment
loss is recognised.

(%)

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

= AREERHBRAY

29 EEEFHEE R A E ()

®)

(]

FREEIEER

mpt = 11t AEE
EHMEI R #FE
WEFEK A =R ] #3515 E
MEBERATERERK - K
SETERFEENTERF
BF  ZEBEFENERN -
A LA R4 B 69 & BHE B G ETHY
B EReREEENTSE
BRAEBBENLERAN -
FENERERE TIKAKR
HEBERAMM S A RERET S5
BN FERMIERXTFE
WERARSNREMELE
vt At FEREEENSE
Alge b Ll R A mE LS
1t - HFEEREERRFES
FEAFT R EHMER

BEFEREREMEEINIEME
EBE

T EE= 18P - AREE
BEABRKAHGREERER
BEIIMEMEEETTRER
b UEEEEARESERE
BTHREENERKREEE- - I
RERBTIHREFERERMEE
SN ELAth B E O BRE (BB A B
BR2HNE - FHEEES
BRERE - WAARRERRE
B -

—Z—EEH  Annual Report 2014 127



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)
29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 29 FER TR H E (&)
(cont’d)
(c) Impairment of assets other than inventories, financial

) BFE =HEERAMKHY

assets and other long-term equity investments (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or an asset
group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and its present value of expected future cash flows.
Since a market price of the asset (or the asset group)
cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of the
asset cannot be estimated reliably, the recoverable
amount was calculated based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows. In assessing
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
significant judgements are exercised over the asset’s
production, selling price, related operating expenses
and discount rate to calculate the present value. All
relevant materials which can be obtained are used
for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production, selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions.

(d) Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed

assets and intangible assets

As described in Notes Illl. 13 and 16, assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into
account residual value. The estimated useful lives of
the assets are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and the estimated technical changes. If there
have been significant changes in the factors used to
determine the depreciation or amortisation, the rate of
depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) ($#8)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 29 FER TR H E (&)
(cont’d)

(€) Income tax (€) ATiZH

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgment is required from the Group in determining
the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

30 Changes in significant accounting policies
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting

policies

The Group decides to apply the following amendments
and new accounting standards issued by Ministry of
Finance of PRC from 1 January 2014:

e Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 2 — Long-term Equity Investments (“CAS 2
(2014)")

e Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 41 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
(“CAS 417)

In addition, the Company has adopted Accounting
Rules on Classification between Financial Liabilities
and Equity Instruments as well as the Related
Accounting Treatment (“Caikuai [2014] No. 137)
since 17 March 2014 and Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 37 — Financial Instruments:
Presentation and Disclosures (“CAS 37 (2014)”) in the
2014 annual financial statements.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEESHBREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (#8)
30 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d) 30 FEETHBENEE (&)
(a) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting (@) BFLMARRKIREA (&
policies (cont’d)
The significant accounting policies after adopting the RA L2 E0ERE
above Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises ZEEHBREEMZE=FIT

are summarised in Note |ll.

Impacts of the adoption of the accounting standards ANEEFA P Ees |

mentioned above are discussed below: MEEZENT :

() Long-term equity investments () =ERERE
Before adopting CAS 2 (2014), investments where FRAZERI25% (2014) 2 A -
the Group does not have control, joint control or AREEBIFAENEIFKE
significant influence over the investees, and the BN TEEES - £RE
investments are not quoted in an active market flskERTE  WHEF
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured, BmigHRE®RE . 2R
are recognised as other long-term equity BETESTENER
investments. Such investments are then accounted IS & R A H M K HA I
for using the cost method. After adopting CAS 2 BE - BEKARETERE
(2014), such investments are now accounted for = o FAZERI298% (2014)
using the accounting policy related to financial 2% AEEBKEHEKE
instruments (see Note 111.9). MiEE R T ERMBBEEE

BE(2RME=9) -

In addition, the Group has revised its accounting BR bt BB Hh - XE A2 5%

policies in relation to the equity method (see Note C014)BE R EZESE

l.12) as a result of the revision brought about by TTER]  AEBEBRRIE

CAS 2 (2014). EEETATERTHEEA
JEETEUR (R RHE=
12) e

130 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&EHZEFRTROERA T



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

30 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Classification between financial liabilities and equity
instruments and presentation and disclosures of
financial instruments

Caikuai [2014] No.13 provided guidance on the
classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments. The adoption of Caikuai [2014]
No.13 does not have any material impact on the
Group’s financial statements (including current and
comparative periods).

CAS37 (2014) provided further guidance on the
offsetting of a financial asset and a financial
liability and revised the disclosure requirements for
financial instruments. In addition, the Group has
revised disclosures in related notes in accordance
with this standard.

Disclosure of interests in other entities
CAS41
requirements relevant to an enterprise’s interests

modifies and specifies disclosure

in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The Group has
provided disclosures accordingly in related notes
in accordance with this standard.

(b) Effect of changes in accounting policies on the

financial statements

The above changes in accounting policies have no

significant effect on the Group and the Company’s

financial statements.
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IV Taxation

1 Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

Tax type Tax basis Tax rate
Value added QOutput VAT is calculated on product sales 17%, 13%
fax (VAT) and taxable services revenue, based

on tax laws. The remaining halance of
output VAT, after subtracting the
deductible input VAT of the period,

is VAT payable.
Business tax Based on taxable revenue 5%
City maintenance
and construction tax Based on business tax and VAT paid 1%, 5%, 7%
Corporate income tax Based on taxable profits 15%, 25%

2 Tax preferential
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are subject
to income tax rate 25% (2013: 25%) except for the
following subsidiaries and the overseas subsidiaries of the
Company were taxed at the local applicable income tax
rates.

(@ According to implementing the Western Development
Program about taxation preferential policy issued
by Ministry of Finance, State Administration of
Taxation, General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No0.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui No.58[2011]), the
income tax is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020.
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IV Taxation (cont’d)

M| (48)

2 BWEEHE)
b) REBEELEMBHE TERE

2 Tax preferential (cont’d)
(o) According to the EIT Law, profit derived from primary

processing of agricultural produce is exempt from the

PRC income tax. The production of juice concentrate

of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries

and production of bio-stuff of its subsidiaries are

recognised as primary processing of agricultural

produce under the EIT Law and therefore are exempt

from the PRC income tax commenced from 1 January

2008. The following companies are recognised as

primary processing of agricultural produce for the year
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2014:
Name of company Principal activities Preferential policy
GEL REEERS EEHE

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Manufacture and sale of juice

Exempt from income tax

BAEFRENRABRNERAR] RERTEEREE REMEH
Yantai Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BEZEFRREER AR RERTEEREE RBFHER
Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
AKZEMRETER R FRZTEEREE REMREH
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
ML ENMRGTERAR FRETEEREE REMEH
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BEEARENRARHERAR RETEEREE REMEH
Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
ABLENMRGTERAF FRZTEEREE REMEH
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
KXEZENRETERAR RERTHEEREE REFMEH
Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice Exempt from income tax
BMZEN AR ERAR] REDTEEREE REMEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential (cont’d)

M RIEGE)

2 HRBEEGE)

Name of company Principal activities Preferential policy
A REEERY BEBER

Baishui Andre Bio-feedstuff Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of bio-feedstuff Exempt from income tax
BRZENE YR B R AR fRHEE RS SRS

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Cash at bank and on hand

ltem BH
Cash on hand EFRE
Deposits with banks RITHENK
Total =X

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
cash at bank with restrictions (2013: RMB9,354,986), see
note V.15.

2 Bills receivable

ltem EEs

Bank acceptance bills RITHRIESR

All of the above bills are due within one year, and are not
pledged, endorsed or transferred.

134 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&FZEFRTROERA T

I SHMBEERREEE

1

E¥ES
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=4F
133,843 173,013

191,400,633 436,892,432

191,534,476 437,065,445

MR2014F12 A31 8 » A&EERA
FrBREZEIRGIHNELES (2013
&£ AR#09,354,9867T) @ 2 ILH
gh 15

W ESE
2014 2013
—Z—msF —ET—=F
290,000 =

HENRES—FRZE - BX
wEH  BELEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by type are as follows:

Type 5

Related parties E2)i/NG
Third parties F=F
Sub-total /NG

Less: Provision for bad B EEERE(R

and doubtful debts

Total A&t

(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing IR

Within 6 months (inclusive) 6MEALAR(E61EA)

Over 6 months but within 1 year EAE1F(E14)
(inclusive)

Sub-total /NET

Less: Provision for bad
and doubtful debts

Total =

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.

3 PR
(1) EUERFIZERI DT

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

2014 2013
—ZE—mE —ET—=F
31,517,680 10,380,732
114,163,050 140,021,451
145,680,730 150,402,183
145,680,730 150,402,183

FEYSRFIRERIR AT -

2014 2013
—E—mFE —T—=F
137,253,953 150,304,311
8,426,777 97,872
145,680,730 150,402,183
145,680,730 150,402,183

AR B FE W AR N HERR B RERA G

| At
=T HE o
Al 7
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B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

3 B (&)
Q) AEEMENREBRREFE

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(8) Accounts receivable of the Group are individually

significant, therefore the accounts receivable are
assessed for impairment and bad debt provision is
determined on an individual basis and, then, on a
collective group basis. Management is of the view that
no bad debt provision is necessary for the accounts
receivable balances in regard of the sound credit
record of the customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in
prior years.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013, the Group had not written off any
significant accounts receivable.

4 Prepayments

(1)

Prepayments by category are as follows:

REX - Rt HREEERRG R
EREBEBELAER TR
BUAS S XETRERN
Ut R ER - EEER
REBEFAEREMNXT
8% - EH Y EURKERRERT 12
SRR o

R2014FE R2013FE » A&
BB WE S EENURIFER
2R AR KL FIEH R ERE
R FEUBR K -

20145 E M 20134FE » A&
B B R AR EURBR SR

4 FANFIE
(1) ENFESRIIRAT :

2014 2013
ltem 15 B —E—mE —E—=%F
Prepayments to suppliers TEfHEIERS 7,720,751 31,465,053
Other prepayments TR H A 1,260,700 398,390
Total &a&t 8,981,451 31,863,443

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&dHZEFRTRAOERAE




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

4 FENFEE)
(2) AN FIRIRRERIIRNT -

4 Prepayments (cont’d)
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows:

2014 2013

Ageing BRHR —ZT—mE =%
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 KH(%) =l LB (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FLAR(F1F) 8,266,743 92% 30,988,731 97%

Over 1 year but within 1225 (F25)

2 years (inclusive) 714,708 8% 874,712 3%
Total CH 8,981,451 100% 31,863,443 100%

The ageing is counted starting from the date when AR B TR SRIERERR B 1A
prepayments are recognised. FTE o

5 Other receivables 5 HAEWR
(1) Other receivables by type are as follows: (1) HEAabEWEIzERloirm T

2014 2013

Type Ll —E—mE =4

Third parties F=h 6,070,635 5,108,277
Less: Provision for bad B EEERE(R

and doubtful debts 4,132,565 4,132,565

Total &a&t 1,938,070 975,712

(2) As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the (2) 201412 A31 B K& 20134
Group did not hold any other receivables which were 12 A31 8 - REEEINEHAD
denominated in foreign currency. FEUGK ©

—Z—EEH Annual Report 2014 137



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial I SHfMERREBEEAEEE)

statements (cont’d)

5 Other receivables (cont’d)
(8) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing ARER

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FEUAAR(E1F)

Over 1 year but within 1FE2F (52F)
2 years (inclusive)

Over 2 years but within 2FEEIF(E3F)
3 years (inclusive)

Over 3 years 3EME

Sub-total NEE

Less: Provision for bad W AR

and doubtful debts

Total A&t

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

(4) During the year ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in
prior years.

138 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&EHZEFRTROERA T

5 HtEURK ()
Q) EAtfEYFIZARE DTN -

2014 2013
—Z—mF =%
1,933,770 964,808
4,300 6,094

- 3,000
4,132,565 4,134,375
6,070,635 5,108,277
4,132,565 4,132,565
1,938,070 975,712

R B 5 L A A AR SR S AR
hEtH -

(4) R2014FE K2013FE « K&
E)2 BBk EE AR FED
Z RS AR K L 5T IR R 2
R R EL PR LKLK
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial A AHMERREEHEFEE)
statements (cont’d)

6 Inventories 6 =&
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) ZES4E
2014 2013
—Z-mE -
Provision for Provision for
impairment impairment
Book of Carrying Book of Carrying
value inventories amount value  inventories amount
ltem FERA FEGE HBREE 2BERE 2 FERE KESE  KEEE
Raw materials AR 29,280,800 - 29,280,800 28,057,962 - 28,057,962
Finished goods ERm 755,031,745  (2,967,908) 752,063,837 846,642,522 - 846,642,522
Total Rt 784,312,545  (2,967,908) 781,344,637 874,700,484 - 874,700,484
During the year ended 31 December 2014, MR20145FE - FEKREBEEA
provision for impairment of inventories amounting to R # 2,967,908 7T (2013 : £ )
RMB2,967,908 (2013: nil) recognised as a reduction WERBFTERNRIE - WEA
of inventories and was charged to profit or loss during XHEFFAREENFEE
the period.
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no M2014412 A31 B k20134
inventories were pledged as security by the Group. 12 A31 8 * ANEERHARE
REFE ©
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

6 Inventories (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows:

Carrying amount:

At 1 January 2013
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2013

Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2014

FRE(EME :
R2013F1 A 1H
NS

R2013F12 A31H

ARELE
RERD

R2014F12 318

(38) Provision for impairment of inventories:

[tem

Finished goods

Balance at the
beginning of
the year

FRRE FRE

EFEm® -

6 FE (&)
2) FEAXEZEFERSITMT
Raw Finished
materials goods Total
FE##E EFE&R =L
29,992,415 904,926,447 934,918,862
507,313,389 651,789,593 1,159,102,982
509,247,842 710,073,518 1,219,321,360
28,057,962 846,642,622 874,700,484
374,049,645 537,935,462 911,985,107
372,826,807 629,546,239 1,002,373,046
29,280,800 755,031,745 784,312,545
Q) FRHKEER

Additions Written back
during the year during the year Balance
Reversal at the end
provision others  or write-off others  of the year

REEMER KERLEHE
TR Hit, EEIEH Hit  FARHE
2,967,908 - - - 2,967,908
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

7 Available-for-sale financial assets

[tem

Available-for-sale

EH

AHHESREE

(BRI, - B EBARKETT)

SHMBERIAEEE (|)

7 UHHETREE

2014 2013

—ZE—mF —E—=

financial assets 10,000,000
Less:Provision for B OREERE
impairment -
Total BET 10,000,000 -

R2014FE » ARRIZRBRE
EBRARRE T ESMNBMERE
REREEEERTE - #HETA
R¥1,0008 7T - =FEEMER
GFEHRA1F -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
subscribed the trust loan collective trust scheme of
Zhengzhou Navigation Construction from National Trust
Product Ltd., with total amount of RMB10,000,000. The
trust is expected to be matured in one year.

8 Other current assets 8 HthRBEE
2014 2013
ltem 1HH —E—QmE —T—=F
Input VAT recoverable RIS BRI IR 60,263,754 88,282,300
9 Long-term equity investments 9 RERERE
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as (1) RARERE S EAOT -
follows:

2014 2013
ltem 1HH —=—Mm§E =4
Investment in a joint venture HELPEWIEE 53,762,081 57,569,260
Less: Provision for impairment B OREEE - -
Total At 53,762,081 57,569,260
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(BRIESITBS) - 2 FELBARIT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

9 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

I StHMBEHERAEEEE)

9 REKREIRE(H)

@ EMBEREANFEHBERS

Voting rights Cash
percentage dividend
(%) forthe year
ERER
B
RO SERRAH
50% 5,450,000

RHBRBREARNFEHIFERD

year are as follows: MranT -
2014 —E— s
Book value of long-term equity investment
ROBRRABERE
Shareholding
Investment At1 Increase/ Atd1  percentage
cost January Decrease  December (%)
EHRR
Elisk
Investee e bt 1818 bt ] 12A31A Rl (%)
Joint venture REfE
Yanta Tong Beverage Industes Co, Ld. RafHEHTEERAR 50000000 57569260 (3807179 53762081 50%
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the @)
year are as follows: I -
2013 —E=4
Book value of long-erm eqity investment
RERERARARE
Sharenolding
Investment At Increase/ AtS percentage
cost January Decrease December (%)
EhRE
0z
Investee RCED RERK 1318 559 12A3MH $H (%)
Joitventure aetE
Yanta Tongl Beverage Industies Co, Lid. ReGHBHTIFERDR 50000 5827694 (07681 57569260 50%
Associte Beds
Yantai Andre Pectin Co, Lid. e ZEHRBRIERAT 3080000 62598574 (62.698574) - -
Total ait 83080000 12087515 (63306255 57,569,260
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Voting rights Cash

percentage (lvidend

() fortheyear
FikE
fizng

Sl HEREH

50 6,750,000

6,750,000
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V Notes to the consolidated financial i SHMERREEHEFEE)
statements (cont’d)

9 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 9 RERERE (H)
The Group held 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre R R ENBEBREOERAT
Pectin Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group previously. FEAENEBBMELE K&
The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of Yantai JR R AR EE 1 /5 18.95% © W
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties China 20139 A26H © &K & B &
Enterprise Co., Ltd. on 26 September 2013. After the ERELTENRBIEOEED
completion of the transfer, the Group ceased owning A]18.95% # z@ T DSM Food
any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. Specialties China Enterprise

Co., Ltd.  REEREHTE
% AEBTBHEARERE
MRBIAD B R AR (IS

(3) Details of the joint venture @) AETHEER

2014 —E=—mE

Total assets Total liabiliies ~ Netassets Total operating
atdt atdt atdt income Net profit
December ~ December  December  fortheyear  forthe year

2A%A  12ANE  12AMR  BEER L4

Name of veste KEEBNAR #Een AR SEEME ARH $iR
Yantai Tongl Beverage ndustes Co., Ltd. faGHEHIZERAR 141505 417343 107524162 104729890 3,285,642
2013 ey

Totalassels  Tofallabiiies ~ Netassets  Total aperating
a3t a3t a3t income Nt proft
December December ~ December  fortheyear  forthe year
128818 1RNA  12A3R  AEE% &3
Name of vestes R Bl BEEE FEEZE QAgE I

Vantal Tongi Beverage ndustries Co, Lid. aHH IR ERAR 12181000 6671500 115138520 146707476 12084638
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

10 Fixed assets 10 BIE&EE
(1) Details of fixed assets (1) BlEEEIER
Office &
Plant& Machinery & other Motor
buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
RER NG
ftem 13E BEYM  HBRG RAMRE 2 ERIR ChH
Cost R
At 1 January 2013 2013F1A18 463,979,747 785,639,806 20,022,753 12,080,966 1,281,723,332
Additions during the year AEEN
- Purchases -EBE 8,158,078 30,089,608 1,701,229 173,143 40,122,058
- Transfer from construction in progress ~FERIREA 6,149,024 817,704 - - 6,966,728
Disposal or write-off during the year FERELTE (23206,906)  (25,223,001)  (120,108)  (1,219,895)  (49,770,000)
At 31 December 2013 2013F 1274318 455,079,943 791,324,087 21,603,874 11,084,214 1,279,042,118
At 1 January 2014 014%1A18 455,079,943 791,324,087 21,603,874 11,034,214 1,279,042,118
Adations during the year AEEN
- Purchases -2 1,833,170  5190,650 1,198,050 9,188 8,231,058
~ Addltions due to business combinations  —FERI— %I T
involving enterprises not under REAGHEN
common control 46,820,353 56,454,904 726,764 488,096 104,490,117
— Transfer from construction in progress ~HETREA 1,536,060 2,731,658 - - 4,267,118
Disposal or write-off during the year TERESHE - (50,615) (90,366) (145,005  (285,986)
At 31 December 2014 2014F12 74318 505,269,526 855,650,684 23,438,322 11,386,493 1,395,745,025
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V Notes to the consolidated financial I SHfMERREEHEEE)
statements (cont’d)
10 Fixed assets (cont’d) 10 B EEE (&)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d) (1) EIEEEIER (&)
Office &
Plant & Machinery & other Motor
buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
KER LN |
ftem EE BEYM  BERGF REMEE 2 E8IR &t
Accumulated depreciation ZihE
At1 January 2013 013F1E1H (106,805,858 (413,819.266)  (15,835,747)  (9,216,785) (545,677,656
Charge for the year REGHR (10592,743)  (23,069.820)  (1,156,995)  (746,270) (35,565,828)
Disposal or write-off during the year TERELHE 4485485 11210,713 88,146 1078285 16,862,629
At 31 December 2013 2013512431 F (112,913,116) (425678373  (16,904,596)  (8,884,770) (564,380,855
At1 January 2014 014F151H (112,913,116) (425,678,373)  (16,904,506)  (8,884,770) (564,380,855)
Charge for the year AEGHR (10,016,806)  (25,186,769)  (1,230972)  (661,457) (37,105,004)
Disposal or write-off during the year TERERGE - 8,876 81,329 115,200 205,405
At 31 December 2014 201412431 F (122,920,922) (450,856,266) (18,063,239)  (9,431,027) (601,280,454)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2014 014512531 B 382,339,604 404,794,418 5375083 1,955,466 794,464,571
At 31 December 2013 2013512831 B 342,166,827 365645714 4699278 2,149444 714,661,263
As at 31 December 2014, fixed assets with restrictions MR201456F12 A31 A N&E
placed on the Group’s ownership amounted to FEREZZRIINEEEER
RMB65,346,057 (2013: RMB67,090,361), see Note ANER#¥65,346,057 70 (20134 :
V.15. AR#67,090,3617T) © 2Rt
FH15¢
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V Notes to the consolidated financial 7 EHMBEERAEEREE)
statements (cont’d)
10 Fixed assets (cont’d) 10 B EEE (&)
(2) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases (2) FBEEHEHAREEEE
=2
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 72014412 A 31 H & 20134
fixed assets were acquired under finance leases . 12A31 0 - AEEERERSE

HANBEEE °

(3) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (5) BBAZE T B A BT EE
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 7R2014F 12 431 H & 20134
fixed assets were leased out under operating leases . 12A318 - AEEELEHE

HEHBEEEE -

(4) Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership (4) KPZERZFZLNETEEG
P
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, 7R2014F 12 A 31 H & 20134
no fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership 124318 - AEBERIEE
were placed on the Group’s ownership. EEZENEEEEGR
11 Construction in progress 11 EEIRE
(1) Construction in progress (1) EZILEER
2014 2013
—E-mE -5z
Provision for Carrying Provision for Camying
Book value  impairment amount Book value impairment amount
Project L] FaiE WEEH FERE HHHE HEERE HEERE
Sewage treatment project KEEIRE - - - 296,409 - 296,409
Fruit pulp workshop construction RS - - - 1515854 - 151585
Others £ty 15,311 - 15,311 122,389 = 122,389
Total ait 15,311 - 15311 1,034,652 - 1934682
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 7K 2014F 12 431 H & 20134
interest was capitalized in construction in progress of 12A318 - AEE/ERZTLIE
the Group. REFBERE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial h SHMERREEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
11 Construction in progress (cont’d) 11 EEIR ()

(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress (©0) EXEZITEEHZEFH

during the year

Additions due
to business
combinations
involving Percentage
At enterprises  Additions At31  of actual
1 January not under during  Transferto  December  costto  Project Sources
Budget 2014 commoncontrol  theyear fixed assets 014 budget(’s)  progress of funds
#R-# IERA
2014 EmE N4E  HTLR RN auE KRR
Projct %R FEB 1R1B AN #ERM  EREE  0AMA  HR()  IBER RE%E
Sewage treatment project KERLE 500000 296409 - 16287 (469.276) - 100% 100%  Intemal funding
RS
Fruit pulp workshop construction FHEEEL 3000000 1515854 2035146 150364 (3,701,364 - 100% 100%  Intemal funding
HERS
Others i 000 1239 - - (lororg 15311 61% 61%  Intermal funding
BERS
Totd &it 19346 2085146 S8 [TTIE 19301
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

11 Construction in progress (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(RPN - 2 HEBARKET)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress

during the year (cont’d)

013

Project

Sewage treatment project

Frut pulp workshop construction

(Offce bulding renovation

Others

Totd

013
%H

KEEIR

FHEEER

Budget

BRA

6,000,000

2,400,000

1,000,000

500,000

I StHMBEERAEEEE)

11 EZTRE ()
Q) EXEZITERAEZER

(&)
Adatons due
foBusiness
combinafions
ivolving
At enterprises  Additons A3t
1 January not under duing  Trensferto  December
2018 common control theyear fired assels 018
Hi-#
N13E IS KEEN W01
1R1R affEm  FEEM BEEE 12830
2,637,542 - 334018 (5665151 296409
= - 151680 - 151586
- - 0007 (989927) -
37434 - 66606 (311650 122389
3004976 - 5806404 (6,966,728 1934652
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Percentage
of actual
costto
budget(%)
TEEA
[FBE
61 %)

9%

63%

100%

5%

Project

progress

6%

100%

5%

Sources

of funds

RENE

Intemal funding
RS
Intemal funding
HERS
Intemalfunding
BERS
ntemal funding

BRED



Notes to the Financial Statements

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

12 Intangible assets

[tem

Cost
At 1 January 2013
Additions during the year
— purchase
Disposal during the year

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014
Additions during the year
— purchase
— Additions due to business
combinations involving enterprises
not under common control

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Disposal for the year

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2014

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

B H

R1E
2013F1A1H
AREHEN

—BE
REFE

2013412 A 31
20141 A1H

RN
—BE

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(BRI, - B EBARKETT)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

12 BEEE
Land use rights
Tt fERRE
101,885,502

2,889,945
(9,814,248)

H 94,961,199

94,961,199

205,128

—3ER— AT %
ApHEN

2014412 A 31
ESqg s
20131 A1H
AEEHR
AEEE

20183412 A 31

20141 A1H
AEER

2014912 A 31

fRmEEE
2014412 A 31

2013412 A 31

23,740,730

H 118,907,057

(15,590,638)
(2,402,129)
2,150,958

A (15,841,809)

(15,841,809)

(2,364,571)

5] (18,206,380)
5] 100,700,677

H 79,119,390
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

12 Intangible assets (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, all
of the Group’s land use rights are held in the PRC on
medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, intangible assets used by
the Group as mortgage for bank loans amounted to
RMB5,205,910 (2013: RMB5,363,262), refer to Note
V.15.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no land
use rights with pending certificates were placed on the
Group’s ownership.

13 Goodwill

(1) Changes in goodwill

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

12 B EE (&)

MR20144 12 A31 H % 2013412
A318 - AEBFA LERES
FRERFR AT -

MR2014%12 A31 B % 20134F 12
A318 @ AEBEFEERAEE
AR E AR BB,

R20145F12 A31 B » AEEEKF
KB A AR 5,205,9107T
(20134 : AR¥5,363,2627T) -
2HMER 150

R 2014512 A31 B &% 20134 12
A31E  AREERRMLERES
H) T3 FRRE BN ©

13 HE

(1) EEBIER

Provision

Balance at Additions Decrease ~ Balanceat  impairment

1 January during during 31 December atthe end

the year the year 2014 oftheyear

N14E N14E £X

Name of investee BB EfAR 1A1A FERM 3£ 12B%E WEEH

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Lid. BeERZEHNSAMERAR 1,020,683 - - 1,020,683 -

Yongji Andre Juice Co,, Lid. KERENRAARAT 4,566,203 - - 4566293 -
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry REREHEEERNHARAA

Technology Co., Ltd. - 3,066,599 - 3,066,599 -

Total At 5,586,976 3,066,599 - 8,653,575 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)

(@ The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 2003.
The goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s interests in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

(b) The Group acquired the equity interest of Yongji
Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

(c) The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue
Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an
aggregated cash consideration of RMB52,120,000
in 2014. The goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interests in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co.,
Ltd.

(2) Impairment provision for goodwiill
The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill is
recognised are Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.,
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd and Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd.

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(BRI, - B EBARKETT)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

13 BE (&)
() HESHER(E)

(@ M 2003F E @ AEE T
A R #32,035,810 7T U &
BRAKE T HAaiRRRE
FIRT 8RR B R A 7 H 4
7 YR BR AN R 3B IR L
EESNEaREORERR
TR ERAB A HRE
E -BEAREBENESR
AEIRAREDLEMES
SR AR A FIEER R

(b) R2011FfE > RE@EZ
A R #56,201,585 7T I &
AR U BE T KB R R
FOTERARMKEZ - I
A AN BB IR L B 1S K
KEBLZEBNRETERA
RIAHREE BEAAR
BEMNEREAEKERE
FIRB T AR A B HER
BEE

€ M20145FE » "EBEX
A R #52,120,000 7T W B8
PRANWEE T %2 i R 1 ) 1
BEERRBERAQ A E
7 WU PR AN R IR R b )
EBENTERENERE
E¥RBEBRAAIAIHRE
E -BBEARBENER
RETEREMNEEESE
RHE AR A RBEHEE

@) BmEREERE
AEERE R e EARN
BEMAESRREREDZER
RAKHERRA] KBRS
MREABERABRZERRE
MEREXMEZERAT -
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I StHMBEERAEEEE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d) 13 BHE (&)
(2) Impairment provision for goodwill (cont’d) Q) EERELER(E)

The recoverable amount of Yantai Longkou Andre
Juice Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. are
determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows. The present value of expected future
cash flows was projected based on the next five-year
financial forecast approved by management and a pre-
tax discount rate of 7% (2013: 5%). The cash flows
beyond the five-year forecast period were assumed
to be stable. Based on the estimated recoverable
amount, no impairment loss was recognised. The
key assumptions used are subject to change.
Management believes that any adverse change in
the assumptions would cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used in the present value of
expected future cash flows of Yantai Longkou Andre
Juice Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
included gross profit margin of 10%~24% and sales
volume increase of 0%~10%, which were determined
by management based on past performance.
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

14 Deferred tax assets

(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

@

[tem

Deductible tax losses

Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised

deferred tax assets

Year

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Total

B H

AEHIER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(BHFIEHFS) - 2 REEMBARKET)

SHMBRRINEERE(E)

14 EEFBHREE
(1) KB 55 B A

2014 2013
—Z—msE —F—=%F
48,930,441 35,196,885

@) K HEBAEIL T 135 & 1) A

FHIE PRI EIR 18
2014 2013
—ZE—mF —T—=%F
= 11,390,356
4,927,592 4,927,592
13,798,356 13,798,356
2,009,827 2,009,827
3,070,754 3,070,754
25,123,912 =
48,930,441 35,196,885
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

15 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use
As at 31 December 2014, the assets with restrictions

placed on their ownership were as follows:

ltem 12H
Cash at bank and on hand EREd
Fixed assets EEEE
Intangible assets B AR
Total =i

15 FREREXIRFNEE

MN2014F12 A31 8 FiE#ESE

REIEERBRMAT

Balance at Additions Decrease  Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year theyear  of the year

Note izt FAERE ARELE RERD FEXBE
Vi R1 9,354,986 = 9,354,986 -
V10 #-10 67,090,361 - 1,744,304 65,346,057
VA2 f-12 5,363,262 - 157,352 5,205,910
81,808,609 - 11,256,642 70,551,967

Assets pledged for the loans are the cash at bank and on
hand. Assets mortgaged for the loans with mortgage are

the fixed assets and intangible assets.
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V Notes to the consolidated financial i M BEERBEHIEE)
statements (cont’d)
16 Short-term loans 16 EHAfERX
ltem 2014

EE —Z-mE
Annual interest rate Currency Principal Exchange Rate RMB
FfE Wi F%&H HES ARB&H
Credit loans ERER 4.28~4.50% USDET 23,000,000 6.1190 140,737,000
Credit loans ERER 590%  RMBARW - - 45,000,000
Guaranteed loans REBER Base rate+4%-~10%  RMBAE® - - 140,000,000
Guaranteed loans REBMER 550%-6.16%  RMBAE®# - - 97,500,000
Loans secured by mortgage L HfER 6.30%  RMBAE® - - 50,000,000
Total =H1 473,237,000

[tem 2013

A “3-=F
Annual interest rate Currency Principal  Exchange rate RMB
7% BiE R¥5H FEEX AREEE
Loans secured by mortgage ~ #AHRER 630%  RMBARM - - 50,000,000
Credit Loans ERET 580%~6.72%  RVBARM - - 104,518,659
Credit Loans ERER 3.15% USDEL 5,121,625 6.0969 31,226,036
Guaranteed loans REET 6.00%~6.30% RMB AR - - 440773190
Guaranteed loans RERT LIBOR+4.50% USDEn 3,002,420 6.0969 18,305,457
Pledged loans ERER COF+2.25%~COF+3.00% USDZETT 4,500,000 6.0969 27,436,050

Total At 672,259,392
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

16 Short-term loans (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the

Group did not have past due loans (including short-term
loans and long-term loans due within one year).

For the information of assets related to pledged loans and
loans secured by mortgage, refer to Note V.15.

For the information of guaranteed loans, refer to Note X.6.

17 Accounts payable
The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows:
Ageing BRI
Within 6 months (inclusive) 6 1& A AR (& 61EA)
Over 6 months but within FEGESIEAGRED)

1 year (inclusive)
Over 1 year 1FME

Total At

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts payable are recognised.

156 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&HZEFRTROERA T
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16 JEHER ()

R 201412 A31 B & 20134 12
A318 @ AEEEE FIHARERD
BR(BERBERN—FRNEH
B REAEF) ©

ARG MERRERERTARE
HEEREENES  2RME
e 18 @

BRREERNELS  2RME
+ .60

17 FEARRRX

FEMRRFIRRIR AT

2014 2013
~E—mEFE —T=F

53,638,759 129,135,762

4,629,647 5,013,528
8,295,159 1,046,126

66,563,565 135,195,416
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial i SHMERREEHEFEE)
statements (cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable 18 FE{THR T & Ep
(1) Employee benefits payable: (1) JETB T35
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
2014%1A 2014%128

1HER# Eiam FERD 31HER@

Short-term employee benefits FEERE 15,889,032 38,703,898 38,227,777 16,365,153
Post-employment benefits BRiERET

— defined contribution plans — R E - 3,197,128 3,197,128 -

Total it 15,880,032 41,901,026 41424905 16,365,153

(2) Short-term employee benefits (2) FEIE B

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

20145 20145

ltem (= 181 BE# HEEM *E£RY 1231 HBHE

Salaries, bonuses, allowances I% %% 2EAmEES 2,783,504  35372,403 34,780,799 3,375,108

Staff welfare BIGENE 13,105,528 1,596,178 1,713,575 12,988,131
Social insurance reRRE

Medical insurance BERRE - 1,065,709 1,065,709 -

Work-related injury insurance THEREE - 167,470 167,470 -

Maternity insurance EERRE - 152,244 152,244 -

Housing Fund FEAES - 174,339 174,339 -

Labour union feg, staff and IeRENRIHNERE
workers’ education fee - 175,555 173,641 1,914
Total CEHI 15,889,032 38,703,808 38,227,777 16,365,153
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(3) Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

Balance at
1 January
2014
2014%1A
10EE

18 FEBE T B (&)
(3) BEBLZ IR — R EIETFATE]

Accrued Decreased Balance at

during during 31 December
the year the year 2014
20145128

FEiam FERD 31HERA

3,044,884 3,044,884 =

152,244 152,244 =

Basic pension insurance HAERZRE
Unemployment insurance RERBRE
Total CH

3,197,128 3,197,128 -

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Group did not have payment in arrears in the balance
of employee benefits payable.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by municipal governments for its
staff. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at 21.00% (2013: 20.17%) of
the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of its
staff of last year. A member of the plan is entitled to
a pension, to be paid by the municipal governments,
equal to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at
his retirement date. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with these plans beyond the annual
contributions described above.
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B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the annual
general meeting on 25 June 2014, a cash dividend of
RMBO0.05 per share, totaling RMB20,226,102, was
declared and paid to the Company’s shareholders for
2018.

On 12 March 2015, the Board of Directors proposed an
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per Share to
the Company’s shareholders. The proposal is subject to
approval by the shareholders’ general meeting.

The Group did not have dividends payable outstanding at
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

The Group did not have individual or significant dividends
payable denominated in the foreign currency as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

V Notes to the consolidated financial A SHMERREEHEEE)
statements (cont’d)
19 Taxes payable 19 EXHE
2014 2013
ltem 15 H —Z=—mF =4
Corporate income tax TEMEHR 6,742,852 12,014,350
Land use tax TR AR 454,081 236,580
Value added tax HE 6,836,458 19,117,644
Stamp duty ENFER 20,947 20,240
Property tax BER 297,281 108,290
Watercourse maintenance fee KFERZES 58,635 -
Business tax BER 1,055 =
City maintenance and construction tax T AR I AR 426,827 (28,336)
Education surcharges A BHm 309,558 (28,336)
Individual income tax (EUNZiEE 36,316 24,334
Total a&t 15,184,010 31,464,766
20 Dividends payable 20 FEfTRRF

BIEN 201456 B25HFT A FARE
AFEREBBARZER  2013F
ERREAERARK0.057T - A
A HEARYE20,226,102 T E LA
DIRTARAIRLER o

BE2N2015F3 A 128 RFAQ
7] [\ f Bk 2 2014 3R £ fx 7
BRIERERFAREE0.057T ° 1IE
RBNFRRE A HE

M2014F12 A31H Kk2013F 12 A
318 » NEEE AR THRF o

MR20144512 A31 H %2013 12

AB18 » AEEE(ERIEAAINE
BRRE A o
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V Notes to the consolidated financial h SHMERREEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
21 Other payables 21 HAnBE(SR
2014 2013
ltem L1l —E—pmE =T =
Related parties 2} /NG] 7,859,697 165,957
Third parties EF=7 31,960,551 26,512,746
Total CH 39,820,248 26,678,703
22 Non-current liabilities due within one year 22 —FREFWFERBER
Non-current liabilities due within one year by category are —FREPHIERBEES BRI
as follows: SR
2014 2013
ltem 15 H —E—@E —E—=4F

Long-term loans due

within one year —FARZIHHREER - 22,863,375
The long-term loans due within one year were credit loans. Z—ERNT BN EEER A RE
o
23 Share capital 23 A

Changes during the year (+/-)

FEEEERE
Balance at Issue of Balance at
the beginning new Share  Purchase of the end
of the year shares consolidation  own shares Sub-total of the year
FNRE BTHR BRiaHt ERERR It FRBE
2014 —Z-mE
Total number of shares ~ f{3 451 408,988,000 - - (16,388,000)  (16,388,000) 392,600,000
Amount (RMB) NEE 2 408,988,000 - - (16,388,000)  (16,388,000) 392,600,000
2013 g2
Total number of shares ~ f{3 451 4,089,880,000 - (3,680,892,000) - (3,680,892,000) 408,988,000
Amount (RMB) ARBEE 408,988,000 - - - - 408,988,000
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(B1FRIaE 8} - 2 BB B ARHET)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

23 Share capital (cont’d) 23 BB (#8)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26 June
2012 and approvals from relevant government authorities,
the Company consolidated every ten shares with a par
value of RMBO0.10 each into one consolidated share with
a par value of RMB1.00 on 28 January 2013. Upon the
share consolidation, the total number of shares changed
from 4,089,880,000 shares with a par value of RMB0.10
each to 408,988,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each and the Company’s registered capital remained at
RMB408,988,000.

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26 June
2013 and 25 June 2014 as well as approvals from relevant
government authorities, the Company repurchased
16,388,000 H Shares at consideration of HKD42,806,005
(equivalent to RMB34,161,243) at Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited from 17 June 2014 to 25 July
2014. The repurchase shares had been cancelled and
deregistered. The company’s issued share capital was
reduced by the amount equivalent to the par value of the
repurchased shares. Excess of the repurchase price over
the par value of the repurchased shares were charged
against the capital reserve. After the capital reduction, the
total number of shares changed from 408,988,000 shares
to 392,600,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each and the Company’s registered capital changed to
RMB392,600,000.

RIER 201246 A 26 H B A%
RAFARE kAR ZHAR
BARFEEAZERIRR NS @
BRERRE BB E 2 8
- R20183F1 A28 B 5 & + %
FREEARKIOTZERMDE
HAE—RSRAEBEARE1.00T
ZEMHRD - EHFRHE - AR
A] & 7N 48 %8 /7 4,089,880,000 A%
% ¥ Z408,988,000/% © & X ®
B1.007T ' ZMEXRDAEARKE
408,988,000 °

RN 201346 A 26 HAN2014 F
6 A 25 B BRMKRRBFAE KA
NRIZHAREEE R ARITEAZLE
RIRR AR E @il RRR LA I
JTHERA 2 L/ - B 20146 H17
HE7A25H1E RARINES
%8 42,806,005 7% 7T (FHER A R #E
34,161,243 70 ) REBE AR H T
AR QA& & B 16,388,000 f%
fRin o FTEIBERGHOE EHE AR
AR ETRARZERNAEE
FEREER - BB BB AR
HoHBTEARTE AR
A A) A& A 48 %8 B3 408,988,000 A% 5
% 392,600,000 3% * AR E{E 1.00
T At EAEESEERARKE
392,600,0007T °
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

24 Capital reserve

2014
—g-mF

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation

Total

2013

—EF—=F

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation

Total
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SHMBERFAERE ()
24 EXDE

Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
2013 P 3:3. FERD EXBE
112,385,840 - 17,773,243 94,612,597
9,926 - - 9,926
112,395,766 - 17,773,243 94,622,523
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
EERE ARELN RERD FREAE
112,385,840 - - 112,385,840
9,926 - - 9,926
112,395,766 - - 112,395,766
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V Notes to the consolidated financial h SHMERREBEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
25 Surplus reserve 25 BERNE
2014
—g—-mE
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
ltem 15 H EMERE FEIEN EXREFEH
Statutory surplus reserve DN N = 103,144,993 1,091,714 104,236,707
2013
=%
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
ltem 1EH FRRER AN FRERRR
Statutory surplus reserve ETERBRAE 100,061,818 3,083,175 103,144,993
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

26 Retained earnings

[tem

At 1January 2013

Add : Net profits for the year attrioutable
to shareholders of the Company
Less * Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2013

At 1January 2014

Add + Net profits for the year attrioutable
to shareholders of the Company
Less : Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2014

HH

2013118
m: RERBREAF
FEENER
B RRBHAR
FERT & AR

201361231 R

2014118
m: AERBREAF
£ mER
B RRBHAR
FERT & AR

2014612 431 R

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserve of the
Company amounted to RMB 371,971,570 (2013: RMB

382,372,244).
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SHMBHRIAEEE (|)

26 A2 BRI

Note

()

@

Appropriation or
Amount distribution rate
&F ERESELEA

807,109,971
127,629,640

3,083,175 10%
20,449,400

911,107,036

911,107,036

58,398,903
1,091,714 10%
20,226,102

948,188,123

R2014%12 A31 8 » AAR A5
ETARTRR . FEHESBLAEAR
# 371,971,670 7T (20134 : AR
#382,372,244 TC) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

26 A7 B FIE (&)
(1) B EBRLT

26 Retained earnings (cont’d)
(1) Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared

@

during the year

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 25 June 2014, a dividend payable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMBO0.05
per share, totalling 20,226,102 was approved.

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 26 June 2013, a dividend payable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB0.05
per share, totalling RMB20,449,400 was approved.

Retained earnings at the end of the year

Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2014 and
attributable to the Company is RMB6,005,107(2013:
RMB8,804,989).

For consistency of the disclosure, the subsidiaries’
portion of surplus reserve arising in or before 2012
amounting to RMB66,956,638 is reclassified as
retained earnings in the consolidated financial
statements, and the comparative figures for surplus
reserve and retained earnings are restated. The
aforementioned restatement has no other impact
on the financial statements of the Group and the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the consolidated retained
earnings attributable to the Company included
an appropriation of RMB98,134,372 (2013:
RMB92,129,265) to surplus reserve made by the
Company’s subsidiaries.

R E2014F6 A 250 X R &
FREMHE - AARAER
f& M Rk IR e R A FAR
AR¥005TT it ARK
20,226,102 7T °

B #2013 6 A26 H Ik & A
FREHHE  ARRAIEB
Bl RKZERSRKRF S
ARM0057T " HF ARY
20,449,400 7T °

@) FRARD BT EAIHH

FRAIAFRERDNEERE
RAMBHBABARARE
6,005,107 JL (20134 : AR#E
8,804,989 7T) °

R - ARFEEN BT -
REBE B FAF2012F K&
LARTRTHRM BB ATEETAR
#% 66,956,638 TLIE & Hf ik = B
HEDHEARSRANE  WE
MT R T - Bl AEE
R T 2014 FE B SRR 2
Higg -

MR2014612H31H A& H
BN A ANARD BN Ep
BETARRANFA AR
HHBNEARK 98,134,372
(20134 : A R #92,129,265
JT) °
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

27 Operating income and operating costs

I SHMEBEEBRREEEGR)

27 BEWAME XA

2014 2013
—E—MmE —T=F
Income Cost Income Cost
ltem L WA 573 WA B
Principal activities TEEK 838,376,877 641,170,232 887,810,436 710,073,518
Other businesses H AR 6,091,736 3,706,809 5,637,490 3,330,737
Total =H) 844,468,613 644,877,041 893,447,926 713,404,255

Turnover primarily represents income arising from the
sales of condensed juice net of value added tax.
income

Other operating income primarily represents

arising from the sales of packaging materials and so on.

28 Business taxes and surcharges

ltem HH

City maintenance and Y T M R AR
construction tax

Education surcharges HE BHM

Price adjustment fund EBRAGHES

Watercourse maintenance KMEZRES
fee

Total &5t
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28 BRI S R0

2014 2013
—g-mE T =7
3,035,252 2,882,623
2,800,765 2,388,313
85,206 177,251
177,477 314,851
6,098,700 5,762,938
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial A SHMERREEHEEE)
statements (cont’d)
29 Selling and distribution expenses 29 SHEER
2014 2013
ltem THH —Z=—mF =4
Freight expenses BE 35,798,158 39,784,144
Payroll and welfare TERF 1,474,382 1,292,470
Others Eh 12,669,365 14,456,161
Total e 49,941,905 55,532,775
30 General and administrative expenses 30 EEBEHA
2014 2013
ltem 5B —Z—mE —FT—=4F
Payroll and welfare TEw®A 15,325,517 8,760,658
Stamp duty and property tax ENFER B ER SR 6,748,051 1,911,537
Depreciation and amortisation expenses rEEMEHE 5,134,482 4,906,312
Repair and motor vehicles expenses HEEMBHE R 1,125,855 2,247,609
Auditor’s remuneration ETRIEN S
— Audit service —Ei B 1,480,000 1,280,000
— Other services —H b RSB - 1,716,000
Other consulting services fees E A RISE 2,371,772 4,389,198
Others HAth 18,235,637 26,110,796
Total AFr 50,421,314 51,322,110
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(BRFIEFS - 2ATE BARKT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

31 Financial expenses

ltem

Interest expenses on bank borrowings
repayable wholly within five years

Interest income from deposits

Net exchange (gains)/losses

Other financial expenses

Total

32 Impairment losses

[tem
Inventories

33 Investment income
(1) Investment income by item

[tem

Income from long-term equity
investments accounted for
using the equity method
Investment income from disposal of
long-term equity investments
Investment income from
disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

HHE

RAEFAZHHEZ
BIERNSER
FREM B A

FER (Wa),/ FE

R %8R

HH

B ERENRY
BOER A WS

REEHRERE
B RA Y

RENAAEEHEAR
BEE AR HER
SRAEDENRAKS

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

31 BIKEHR
2014 2013
—Z=—mF =4
38,961,102 28,883,261
(822,499) (1,900,468)
(1,295,724) 2,160,247
1,120,467 282,103
37,963,346 29,425,143

32 EERERL

2014 2013
—Z—@mE —T—=F
2,967,908 =

33 ®REW=

(1) BE W25 7B H 187

Note 2014 2013
i —Z—MmF —T-=F
1,642,821 5,208,958
) - 74,201,037
1,087,855 785,186
2,730,676 80,195,181
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

33 Investment income (cont’d)
(2) The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties
China Enterprise Co., Ltd. at 26 September 2013 for
a total consideration of RMB135,966,250. After the
completion of the transfer, the Group ceased owning
any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

34 Non-operating income
(1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(BRI - B EBARKETT)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

33 RE W= (&)

() 2013F9H26H * & &
HEAARENRBRG AR
A7) 18.95% #E 7 T DSM Food
Specialties China Enterprise
Co., Ltd.r BREBAR%K
135,966,2507C © M % HE &
METERE  AEBETBEEER
BLEMNRBRMDERARME
AR o

34 EEIMRA
(1) BEIMLAZIEE [ERZ0T -

Note 2014 2013
ltem 1HH 2 —E—mE =T =
Government grants ERAT 4 B ) 2,775,500 2,508,571
Gains on disposal of non-current assets ~ 3EmMBIEE R E WS 214 6,935,530
Others Hib 15,905 548,385
Total BET 2,791,619 9,992,486
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

34 Non-operating income (cont’d)
(2) Details of government grants

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

34 BRI (&)
@) BB

2014 2013
ltem JBH —Z-mE —E-=fF
Agriculture grants BERB 790,000 600,000
Science and technology ~ RH%7A B ik

project subsidies 1,655,000 1,339,000
Subsidies for agricultural ~ EEE LS

loan interest - 400,000
Environment protection  3R5EIRELEE

award - 60,000
Others Hith 330,500 109,571
Total ast 2,775,500 2,508,571

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
received grants totaling RMB2,775,500 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contributions
in research and development of juice condensation
technology, information technology for juice production
and local agriculture industry.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group received a total of RMB2,508,571 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contribution
to local agriculture industry, local technology
development, local economic development and local
environmental protection.
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Related to HEE,/
assets/income  UiastREE

related to income  ERUNESAER

related to income  EURESHEE

related to income BN ESHEE

related to income  EURES AR
related to assets/ EREE /Wi iAR
income

MR2014FE - REEKE %
18 R AT 56 P 44 B £ 5 A R
2,775,500 TL A SR EN AR R (B R
TTRME TR - BT EE
EE(ERMUAREEEERE
ERf -

MR2013F & - AEB W %
1 B B P9 48 BE HEt A R
2,508,571 A KB AN EEHE
HMBIRER HEMRE Y
IR IR (R A AN b A B
‘2B -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

V Notes to the consolidated financial h SHMERREEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
35 Non-operating expenses 35 BEIIZH
2014 2013
ltem THE —E—mE =T =
Penalty expenses A H - 1,773
Donations provided HINBHE 120,000 11,543
Others HAh, 50,007 120,250
Total ast 170,007 133,566
36 Income tax expenses 36 FTiSHiE MR
Note 2014 2013
ltem 1HH & —E—mF =%
Current tax expenses for the year TWHUERIBRIRE
based on tax law and regulations STEME FTEH 249,092 12,221,813
Changes in deferred tax assets BEIEFTISTRAE D) () - 1,057,961
Reversal of over-accrued income FHEEARIFE ST
tax made in previous years o (1,097,308) (12,754,608)
Total A&t (848,216) 525,166
(1) The analysis of changes in deferred tax assets is set () EEAEHRNESHONNOT -
out below:

2014 2013
ltem IHE —E2—mE —E-=F
Origination and reversal of TR ZEEEE

temporary differences - 1,057,961
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRFIEFS - 2ATE BARKT)

Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

36 Income tax expenses (cont’d)

(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

accounting profit is as follows:

[tem

Profit before taxation

Expected income tax expenses
at a tax rate of 25%

Effect of non taxable income

Effect of different tax rates
applied by certain subsidiaries

Effect of tax loss of tax-exempted
business

Effect of unrecognised
deferred tax assets for
deductible loss

Effect of utilisation of deductible
loss, which had not been
recognised as deferred tax
asset in previous years

Effect of adjusting income
tax for previous years

Effect of non-deductible costs,
expenses and losses

Income tax expenses

36 FISHEM (&)

I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

(2 PTISHE A B &5 A EH B E

R
2014 2013
HH —=S—MmE —E—=fF
AR 57,550,687 128,054,806
R 2R 05% 5 EHY
TEHAPTIS 14,387,672 32,018,702
E N )7 (20,844,258) (21,867,867)
FRARIEATRFE
Gl 520,949 600,412
R EBEENTE
10,834 1,610,479
RNEFEARERELEER
BEMAENEELY
& 6,280,978 767,688
150 FR AT HA oK T RO RE T A5 A%
BEMAENEELY
7
(281,185) -
AEURMFEREROTE
(1,097,308) (12,754,608)
AAHEMAKA - BRAM
BANFE 174,102 155,360
REFFHER (848,216) 525,166

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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I SHMEBERRREEEGR)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

37 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as

37 EEREEMHE

EENEEME 2 FHBWT

follows:
Directors’ and Salaries, Retirement
supervisors’ allowances and scheme
fees benefits in kind contributions Total
BXRER 55 BHRA
Name A ik R R 7 HE#HR &t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB R\VB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ZZ-ME ---F ZE-ME “3--F ZT-ME CT--F ZE-WE CF-CF
AE®  AR¥®  AE® AR¥® AE® AR¥ AEW ARY
Executive Directors: EIEER
Wang An Iz 50000 50000 188,281 136,647 9,779 9283 248,060 195930
Zhang Hui FE 50000 50000 188,281 136,647 9,779 9283 248,060 195930
Wang Yanhui THE 50000 50000 100489 96818 9,779 9283 160,268 156,101
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
LinWu-chung AR 0 - 2080 - - - - - 2080
Liu Tsung-yi ARE 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,00
Independent Non-exective Directors; BUIFHI1TEE :
Gong Fan Ef, 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,00
Yu Shouneng 8T (i - %% - - - - - 249%
QuWen B3 (i) - 20830 - - - - - 2080
Chow Kam Hung Rt 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,00
Li Tongning ZhE ) 50000 2499 - - - - 50000 2499
Supenisors: E%:
LiKungui THE ) - 12500 - - - - - 12500
Li Yesheng 4 (v - 5000 - - - - - 5000
Wang Chuntang I5% 30,000 30,000 - - - - 30000 30000
Xu Jiang B (vl 30,000 25000 - - - - 80000 25000
Zhang Suoping AT (vl 30,000 17,500 - - - - 30000 17,500
Total At 440000 481652 477,051 370,112 29337 27849 946,388 879613
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial I SHfMERRBEEHEEE)

statements (cont’d)

37 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (cont’d)
(i) Resigned on 21 May 2013
(i) Resigned on 26 June 2013
(i) Resigned on 21 May 2013

(iv) Appointed on 27 June 2013

(v) Resigned on 21 May 2013

(vi) Resigned on 4 February2013

(vii) Appointed on 4 February 2013

(viii) Appointed on 21 May 2013

=

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, no emoluments were paid to the directors or
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office.

38 Individuals with the highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
2014, three (2013: three) are executive directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note V. 37 above. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two
(2013: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments e hEMmpe
Retirement scheme contributions RIREFIFT B
Total A&t

The emoluments of the two (2013: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

HKDNil-HKD1,000,000 B E T — 1 1,000,000 7T
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37 EEREEME (&)

() RA—TE—=FRA-+—HEE
iy R=ZZE—=F A=+ B&FE
A\—E—=FRA-_+—HBHEE
—=FERNAZ T+ BEREE
V) R=ZE—=FRA—+—HEHE
vy RZE—=F— AW BT

Vi) AZE—=F_ ANARKRET

R2014FEE K 20134FE * AAR]
WARMEEREEFERBE A
YERIR S| E AR B)H) 5B sk
Hra(E -

38 BEFAL

R2014FEE AN ZEH AL
F o ZA013F : ZA) BT
EF EHMNSERMizER 379F
FLAMREE - Hih— A (20134F : —

AN) ZFHB RER
2014 2013
—E—mF —ET—=%F
285,801 250,817
18,167 18,821
303,968 269,638

Z M E&EEH AL (2013F : =

AN)BFBHAEA TEE 2 -

2014 2013
—ZT—mF —ET—=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AB AE

2 2
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

V Notes to the consolidated financial h SHMERREEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
39 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 39 BENREARMEENER
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders SBENANARIRRZEHEFEE
of the Company includes a profit of RMB6,012,142 FBEINARR M BHRERAEAR
(2013:RMB25,701,258), which has been dealt with in the #6,012,142 70 (2013 F : A R#&
financial statements of the Company. 25,701,2537T) °
40 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per 40 EXBRRENHESRIKEHN
share FTEBRR
(1) Basic earnings per share (1) EXER W
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing EARFRUWESASFB R AR
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary BRI R A B R /F'zEJ[i%L/{
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average ANA B BT N AR A AN
number of ordinary shares outstanding: FHEGEE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —E—=F
Consolidated net profit attributable to AN RS ER N
ordinary shareholders of the Company B& G %%IJ/FEJ 58,398,903 127,529,640
Weighted average number of RRRIBEITEINE BAR
ordinary shares outstanding N T 39 80 401,123,563 408,988,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) BEASRKE (ARE,/BR) 0.146 0.312
The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares NEBERTYRHNEERNET
during the reporting period. BEEREMMNEBELT AR -

—Z—EEEH  Annual Report 2014 175



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial I SHfMERREBEEAEEE)

statements (cont’d)

40 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per 40
share (cont’d)
(2) Weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January FHEBITE R
Effect of repurchase of own shares BN R &
Weighted average number of FREBARA INHETFHE

ordinary shares at 31 December

41 Supplement to income statement 41
Expenses are analysed by their nature:

ltem BH

Operating income =EON
Less: Changes in inventories of finished goods & : ER R EERNFEE
and work in progress

Finished goods purchased NS EE K qn BB AR
Raw materials and consumables used FER R R
Employee benefits expenses BT EME R
Depreciation and amortisation expenses FEMEHER
Financial expenses %8
Impairment losses BERERK
Others expenses Hih &

Add: Investment income o B E

Profit before income tax palREFEt

176 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. H&IHRERZTRHERD T

EXgRUaNHREREEN

HEBRE (8)

@) BB IME TG EBRRE
LI

2014 2013
—2—mEF —E—=fF
(Recalculate)

(EF=tH)

408,988,000 408,988,000
(7,864,437) =

401,123,563 408,988,000

MNERERER

HABRPOERREEDR
2014 2013
—2—nmF —T=F
844,468,613 893,447,926
91,610,777 58,283,925
104,387,580 91,614,518
372,826,807 509,247,842
41,901,026 39,919,744
39,469,575 37,967,957
37,963,346 29,425,143
2,967,908 =
98,521,583 79,129,172
2,730,676 80,195,181
57,550,687 128,054,806
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial 7 EHMBEERAEEREE)
statements (cont’d)
42 Cash flow statement 2 BEREREEFTE

(1) Proceeds relating to other operating activities (1) WEE b BT &F B) 7 7 ) B
&z

2014 2013

—Z2-MmF =%

Proceeds for sale of raw materials HERMBSWEMRE 6,091,736 5,637,490

Proceeds for government

grants and compensation W B BT R B % BE B X 2,791,405 3,056,956

Others Hith - 3,538,773

Total At 8,883,141 12,233,219

(2) Payment relating to other operating activities (©2) S ATHE M EIAE &) F B B H B
%

2014 2013

—Z—mE T-=F

Payment for period expenses RS EARER 66,528,395 81,310,679

(3) Proceeds relating to other investing activities (3) W FE b £1e &% B A 2
z

2014 2013

—Z2-MmF =%

Proceeds relating to interests on deposit WA B UA 822,499 1,900,468

(4) Proceeds relating to other financing activities (4) W2 A b 8155 &)F ) FHH 5
%

2014 2013

—Z—mE —E=F

Proceeds relating to pledge deposits WEIERE HERE 9,354,986 28,284,813

(5) Payment relating to other financing activities (6) TITEMHEZEZEF R
z

2014 2013

—2—nmEF —E—=F

Payment relating to pledged deposits IRERERERS - 9,354,986
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFFIFFIS) - 2BEEN BARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

43 Supplement information on cash flow statement
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

SHMBERIAEEE(|)

43 BEREXREBER
(1) B mEXR G TEN

T E

a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from a. #FFH AN RLEETED
o . L ReEmE :
perating activities:

2014 2013
ltem e —2—-mE —T-=F
Net profit TR 58,398,903 127,529,640
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets m: EEEERE 37,105,004 35,565,828

Amortisation of intangible assets EVEESE 2,364,571 2,402,129
Impairment provisions for assets BERELEE 2,967,908 =
Financial expenses M%ER 37,700,477 27,582,682
Investment income RE W (2,730,676) (80,195,181)
Decrease in deferred tax assets ERFMGEHEERD - 1,057,961
Decrease in gross inventories FERRD 122,507,461 60,218,378
Decrease/(increase) in operating IR B [

receivables w3 119,876,260 (60,742,907)
(Decrease)/Increase in operating S ERIE B /)

payables (RD),/Em (154,907,088) 61,369,400
Losses/(Gains) on disposal of REETEEM

fixed assets FRE/ (M) 41,134 (6,837,306)

Net cash inflow from operating activities e ERELNRASREFE 223,323,954 167,950,624
b. Change in cash and cash equivalents: b. ReMReEEWFES
B3R -

2014 2013
ltem 1HH —Z—mE —T—=F
Cash at the end of the year &M FRERRE 191,534,476 427,710,459
Less: Cash at the beginning

of the year B MR FEYIRE 427,710,459 54,251,412
Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and  R& KIREEEY
cash equivalents FORD), G (236,175,983) 373,459,047

178 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&EFZEFRTROERA T




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial h StMERREEERE(E)
statements (cont’d)
43 Supplement to cash flow statement (cont’d) 43 REREXRMBEBER (&)
(2) Information on acquisition of subsidiaries during the 2) RFIRZF 2 A2
year
2014 2013
ltem 1HH —E—QmE —T—=F
Consideration of acquiring WEFRARIMNER
subsidiaries 52,120,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents BEFARXNHRE
paid for acquiring subsidiaries IR e EEY 52,120,000 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B FARBENEE
held by acquired subsidiaries MRS FEY 1,247,876 =
Net cash paid for the acquisition BEFRAEISZAHRE
HEE 50,872,124 =
As at 15 May 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity R2014%F5 8158 * NEB M
interest of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology BRE AR 52,120,000 THE
Co., Ltd. from Yantai Anlin Fruit Co., Ltd. at a BB LTMRERRQRMEF
cash consideration of RMB52,120,000. After the B EREMESREZRR
acquisition, Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology AR R TI100%%#E o AUEE
Co., Ltd. became a subsidiary of the Group. TR RETEFNEEEE
BEERARKARER 2T
NS
For non-cash assets and liabilities held by the acquired BERSEFRARNIEREEE
subsidiaries, refer to Note VI.1(3). MBRE 2R 1)
(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents (3) Bz FIHE £ E BV
2014 2013
ltem 1HH —ZE—mF —F—=F
Cash at bank and on hand B
Including: Cash on hand Hrb: EFHR$ 133,843 173,013
Bank deposits available AIBER AR ST HY
on demand RITFER 191,400,633 427,537,446
Closing balance of cash and FRESMREEEY
cash equivalents FRRE 191,534,476 427,710,459
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VI Change of consolidation scope

1 Business combinations involving enterprises not
under common control
(1) Business combinations involving enterprises not under
common control during the year

Time of Costof  Proportion  Method of

equity equity of equity equity

acquisition  acquisition  acquisition  acquisition

ik R i it

BARE  BREE  BRUA  BEAA
(%)

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry 15 May

Technology Co., Ltd. 2014 52,120,000 100% Cash
REREHRRES 014%
REERAR 5A15E 52120000 100% Ré

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
is a company registered in Ziyang, Sichuan Province
on 28 February 2011, and is principally engaged in
manufacturing and sales of lemon juice and related
products. Before the acquisition, its ultimate holding
company was Yantai Anlin Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

(2) Combination cost and goodwill

The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue
Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an
aggregated cash consideration of RMB52,120,000 in
2014. The goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of the acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Anyue
Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
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N SHEEmHEE

1 FRE—-EHTEESH

(1)

A FZAE 7Y IR —FEH] FEFE
B e

Acquiree-from acquisition date to

31 December 2014
BRERE
01451231 RRBER
Basis of acqui- Net cash
Acquisition sition date Net profit inflow
date determination Income (loss) (outflow)
REAH B B

WRR  WREGHE KA (B#)  RAGEH)

15May  Change of

20

4 registraion 11,564,533 (759,297) (891,029)

014F TH%E

5A158

@

SF 11564533 (759207 (891029

TEXRNEEEZRREAR
ARIZENR2011F2 A28 BAEN
IR0 AVA: o /N =3
wEEETHEEE®D E’]i%fﬂ
HE - ERE P 2A
%ﬂf%?%ﬂ&ﬁ@ TW
REERARR/EEZHRE
BRATA

N
hu|

—

B R

R2014F & AEBE A
R # 52,120,000 7T 47 B8 Ak 4 Uk
BT REREMNERERERR
BRAAMER - WE AR
B HIESN T B ERE
BEEREERARAIHRE
E BEAREENEE AN
ZELEMNBEEEERNEAR
NEIEENEE -
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VI Change of consolidation scope (cont’d) N SOtEERYEE(F)
1 Business combinations involving enterprises not 1 EE—ZEIThES6 (E)

under common control (cont’d)

(3) Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree at the (3) WHEE T REE H R R EE

acquisition date HME G
Fair value Carrying
amount
RmEEE AREE
Assets BE -
Cash at bank and on hand EikEe 1,247,876 1,247,876
Receivables FEWRIR 3,405,072 3,405,072
Inventories FE 29,151,614 29,151,614
Fixed assets BEE&E 100,572,950 104,490,117
Intangible assets mREE 18,300,970 23,740,730
Construction in progress EEITRR 2,035,146 2,035,146
Liabilities a8fE:
Payables FERIFRIE 115,017,154 115,017,154
Net assets acquired FEE 39,696,474 49,053,401

LA REEFEE RIS
assets, the quoted prices in the active market are used EI’J RS BT 5 R A R (E R
to establish their fair value; if there is no active market, ERARERE: TMrEERm
% BRBALEUEEFTSE
BMiZA - 2BREREMU
active market; if there is no active market for the same BEMNMSEREEEARE
asset or similar types of assets, valuation techniques B HRBERBUEEL T
EEBmSH - BIFRABMEER
firEEE AR EE -

If there is an active market for the above identifiable

their fair value is estimated based on the market prices
of the same or similar types of assets which have an

will be used to determine the fair value.

For the above identifiable liability, the payable amount iR e ERRBEN SR
or the present value of the payable amount is its fair LENEENREEAREAR
value. &8 -
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-t
/N

2 The liquidation and cancellation of subsidiaries 2
During November 2014, the Group liquidated and

deregistered a subsidiary, Xuzhou Andre Pomace

Products Co., Ltd., the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities

had been transferred to Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

based

on the book value. Therefore Xuzhou Andre

Pomace Products Co., Ltd. no longer included in the

scope of consolidation. The liquidation has no significant

effect on the financial position of the Group.

VII. Interests in other entities

1 Interests in subsidiaries
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or

investment
Regis-
tration
Full name Type place
iR
W i 3]
Baishui Andre Juice ~ CompanyLimited  Shaanx;, PRC
Co, Lid. (Sino-foreign
joint venture)
HARENRAT ARREAT  REMEY
ERA (hoha)
Yantai Longkou Andre Company Limted  Shandong, PRC
Juieg Co, Ltd (Sino-foreign
joint venture)
feBNREHRT AREAAT  DALRE
HHERAT (hihag)

Regis-
Business tered
nature capital
RRRE s
Manufacture—~ USD17,000,000
and sale of
condensed juice
BaRt 170000007
HERHE
Manufacture ~~ USD12,110,000
and sal of
condensed uice
BERT 12,10 00ET
FEREE

SfEENEE (|)

EHBEF AT
MR20145F11 A - REBEBEIE
T —RFRA - BINLEFRE
BRBRAR - ZTFRRKBEEE
EXAGEERBERIERAEE S
FTHRMLEBAREABRRAE - &
It BMNZEFRERGBER AR
THWAGHEER  BFEHAEE
BRI AREEEATE -

+t EHRtERPHER

1 EFLARRHER
(1) BiBK L LI EF 7 B iF A
FAA
Closing
balance of
other items
thatin
substance Group Group
from net share- voting
Yearend investment  holding rights
Business actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
scope investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
RELRAS L] £8
FLRRRE R EM
EXRR  HENRE KA R AR
#eag i1 ] %) () Yhx ERERREE
Manufacture ofjice, fut and vegetable USD17,000,000 = 100%  100% Y 732664478
Deverage, and related products, and iron
packaging; and sae of own products
EERETRAT ROMREE 1700000057 - 0% 100% R 7966474
EQfEgnesn HeaEEn
Manufacture ofjuice USD12,110,000 - 100% 100% Y 787220715
and sal of own products
EERRT UREREER 12100057 - 0% 100% R I920115
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VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or

investment (cont’d)

Full name Type

2 i

Xuzhou Andre Juice  Company Limtted
Co, Lid. (Sino-foreign

joint venture)

PhzENRET  BREELT
ERA (Hii2E)

Andre Juice Co,, Ltd.  Company Limited
ZEHHERAR BREFAR

North Andre Juice ~ Company Limited
(USA)Inc.

YrREHSt(ER) AREEAT
BfARA

Dalian Ancle Juice  Company Limited
Co, Ltd.

KEREHRET  BREFELA
FRAR

Regis-
tration
place

iR

SRR

Jangsu, PRC

T

Brtish Virgn
Islands
AB4ER

5

The United States

of America

e

Liaoning, PRC

ARy

Regis-
Business tered
nature capital
SHRE BT
Manufacture — USD10,000,000
and sake of
condensed juice
REET 10,000,000
FEREE i
Investment USD50,000
holding
fEfR 50000
i
S of USD10,000
condensed juice
R 10,000
i i
Manufacture ~ RMBB0,000,000
and sale of
condensed juice
R 80,000,000
HERHE ARET

Business
scope

Egﬁg

Manufacture ofjice, fut and vegetable
everage, and relatedt products; sale of own
products; and manufacture of ron barrelfor
Juicg outer packaging

EERT HRRAEER
HEREER MEREIORER
Ivestment holding

HEMR

Sale of condensed juice

RERTHE

Manufacture and sale of ll kinds of fut
and vegetable beverage; biological
comprehensive Ltization of apple essence,
vegetable and pomace; and purchase of
agricutural and sioeling products (excluding
grain); and manufacture of iron packaging;

imports and exports of goods and technology.

EERERBRATIE BRAR
iR REmEngeiR
REER(TRER)NE - #easlnk
SMRRELNEE -

(B BT A5

B BARET)

+ EHEftERPHOER(])

1 EFQFPEES(F)

(1) BERIAREET R iFH)
Foa (&)
Closing
balance of
other items
thatin
substance Group Group
from net share- voting
Yearend investment  holding rights
actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
RELRAH L] £8
FLRRRE nR o EA
EXRR  HENRE KA R AR
4] ] (%) () Hhx ERERREE
USD10,000,000 - 100%  100% Y 743134258
10,000,000 - 0% 100% = 143134253
9
USD50,000 - 100%  100% Y -
50000 - 0% 100% & -
i
USD10,000 - 100%  100% Y -
10,000 - 0% 100% & -
i
RMB80,000,000 - 100%  100% Y 059940487
80,000,000 - 0% 100% 959042487
ARET
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VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d) + EEMFEREPMHER (E)
1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFARFHES(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or (1) FBK T AR EZ T R IZH]
investment (cont’d) FLE] (&)

Closing
balance of
other items

that in

substance Group Group
from net share- voting

Regis- Regis- Yearend investment  holding rights
tration Business tered  Business actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Full name Type place nature capital scope investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code

RELRRY 1] 58
FATHRE T

R EXRR  HENRE KA A RER
W i 3] RRRE iifigs  #E8E i1 ] %) () Hhx ERERREE
BinzhouAnche Juce  CompanyLimted ~ Shandong, PRC~ Manufacture ~~ USDA2,100,000  Manufacture of beverage, high natural apple ~ USD12,100,000 - 100% 100% Y 751767338
Co, Lid. (Sino-foreign and sae of essence, and ron packaging; biologica
joint venture) condensed juice comprehensive tization of pomace, and other
extended products; winter jujube storage;
sale of own products.
BliwEttes AREfLE HEIEE BRI I000ET  EENE SEARERAR BERER: 1210000%1 - 0% 100% ' 751757338
RRAR (=) EEREE FenthreiRRAERER

AREE HERLAER-

YantaiAndre Juice  CompanyLimtted ~ Shandong, PRC ~ Menufacture USD4832000  Manufacture and processing of lkinds of ~~ USD4,832,000 - 100% 100% Y 73066788-6
Co,, Ltd. (Sino-foreign and sale of frut pulp and related products, and sale of
joint venture) frut pulp own products; wholesale and import and
exportof uice and pulp
FazEHRtes AREALE HEIRE S IBR00ET 4B MIEEARREREGER 4800057 - 0% 100% & T3006788:6
ERAT (hihag) HERHE THEREER (SRART
b gl B
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+ EHEftERPHOER(])

VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFARFHES(E)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations 2) FE[E—FE# T 1P E A GFE A
not under common control FINa]
Closing
balance of
other items
thatin
substance Group Group
from net share- voting
Regis- Regis- Yearend investment  holding rights
tration Business tered  Business actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Full name Type place nature capital scope investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
RELRAH L] £8
FLRRRE R a2
R EXRR  HENRE KA A RER
W i 3] RRRE iifigs  #E8E i1 ] %) () Hhx ERERREE
Longkou Andre CompanyLimted ~ Shandong, PRC ~ Manufacture USD500000  Manufacture of bio-feedstull and related 1SD500,000 - 100% 100% Y 76479244
Bio-feedstuff (Sino-foreign and sale of bio- packaging; and sale of own products
Co, Ltd. joint venture) feedstuff
EOREHENEN AREEAR  GELRE EfEH S000FT  EEEMERERREEERRG S0 000ETE - 0% 100% 7 T5AT04
RRAR (hihag) EEREE HEREER:
Baishui Andre Company Limted ~ Shaanxi, PRC Menufacture USD500000  Menufacture of bio-feedstull and related USD500,000 - 100%  100% Y 762567476
Bio-feedstuff (Sino-foreign and sale of packaging; and sele of own products
Co,, Ltd. joint venture) bio-feedstuft
HAREREDRE AREEAT  RENEE L)) S000ET  EEEMERERREEERRG S0 000ETE - 0% 100% 776267474
RRAR (=) EEREE HEREER:
Yongj Ancre Juice  CompanyLimfted ~ Shenx, PRC Production USD12,960,000  Menufacture and sale of it and vegetable  USD12,960,000 - 100%  100% Y 79638415
Co, Ltd. (Sino-foreign and sale of juice and beverage, high natural apple
joint venture) condensed juice essence, and biologcal comprehensive
utiization of pomace
KERENRRT AREEAR  4ELEE BERT  DW0NET 4R BEREREET M- 1290000£7 - 0% 100% B 79638415
ERAT (h5E) HERHE RERTERER  RENEEATIR
Anyue Andre Lemon  Limted Company ~ Sichuan, PRC Producton ~ RMB50000,000 P, manufacture and sale oflemon; RMB50,000,000 - 100%  100% Y 569716959
Industry Technology and sale of ice manufacture and salg oflemon ol lemon
Co, Ltd. essence, orange ol and orange essence
YEREHERE: RREAN  HERIE BERn 5000000 BE4E BEEE ZEEEERN 50,000,000 - 0% 100% ® 500716059
HiFERAT EEREE ARET BRER BR EER AE#T

—Z—EEEH Annual Report 2014 185



186

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFFIFFIS) - 2BEEN BARKET)

VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d)

2 Interests in joint ventures
(1) Joint ventures

t

HEHMERPRYES (1)

2 EEELEDHER
(1) &E&1%

Accounting
Group Group Related treatmenton Strategic to
Name of Entity Place of Legal Business Registered shareholding voting  investments in the Group's
investee type registration  representative  nature capital (%) rights (%) joint venture activities?
LI HaELR 435
LN RERLE REme EHRE
HREELER RE i) EARE RERE ihEE HRUM)  ARLEAC) EER# AFERE
Yantai Tongli Beverage Limtted company ~ Shandong, ~ Wang An Manufactureand ~ USD14,641,200 50% 50% Equty
Industries Co,, Ltd. (Sino-foreign PRC sale of beverage method no
joint venture)
ReshgHIZERDE  ARRARY  HELRE IR HHEEREE 14641 200%7 50% 50% Eir g
(hha%)
(2) Key financial information of the joint venture: 2) BEPENEERBHBEL
The key financial information of the Group’s joint AEBEELEPENEEMHE
venture are set out in V.9(3), which were adjusted for BERMER - 9Q)F TR > 5%
fair value adjustments at the time of acquisition and AEPENTETHEEER
the differences in accounting policies of the Group. RRERARBEAERNSA
BARSGI— STt BORFAREZH
BHE
VIIL.Risks related to financial instruments I\ B&R T S4ERAY R B

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use
of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
operations, which mainly include:

—  Credit risk

— Liquidity risk

— Interest rate risk

— Foreign currency risk
— Other price risk

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #&dH ZEFRTRAERAE
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VIIl.Risks related to financial instruments

This note mainly presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risks, and their
changes during the year.

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance between
the risks and benefits from its use of financial instruments
and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial
instruments have on the Group’s financial performance.
Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures.

(1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank, receivables,
debt investments and derivative financial instruments
entered into for hedging purposes and other financial
assets. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by
management on an ongoing basis.

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not foresee
any significant credit risks from these deposits and does
not expect that these financial institutions may default and
cause losses to the Group.

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

N\ EemT REMeME (&)

N E E i bl R e ik K B R
RENMEAFRENEL  RRE
BEEZ  BERMBREN NG ERRD
TAERBEEAFRHRENE(F -

AEEREZRREEN B ERERR
Mz FESEE V& kR
1K BB e 3 A o B B 75 AR A 1N )
FE - ARZRREEBR  AKHE
£l 7€ [ B B 3 R R DA % Bl M 0 AT AR
SEFMEROER  RTEEENRR
A] 5% 52K 3 3% AT AR R A PR BB AR A2
F AEEASERRERKE - A&
EerTHERELRAREEBREE
BRI RS ERTSIEAR
AEBEEERHHNE - AEENA
BT BPFTthE Hisk e A A BB 4
HESHBITREEN S EREEBR °

(1) FRERRE

ERER  REERIAN—TF
BEEITE - GRS — B
BRMER - AEENERRRE
EREEBES  BYGFIA - EF
BRENRERBNRITNITES R
TAZ -EEESRESRELRE

RO -

REERREAINERES TR
RN ERAREN SRS - &1
BRR/ETFEEANGEHALR -
BT ERAY T ENMEARE
ERIRK ©
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)

In respect of receivables, the risk management committee
of the Group has established a credit policy under
which individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers to determine the credit limit and terms
applicable to the customers. These evaluations focus
on the customers’ financial position, the external ratings
of the customers and their bank credit records where
available. Receivables are due within 180 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

In monitoring the Group’s credit risk, customer data are
analysed by the Group according to some factors, such
as ageing and maturity date.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry, country or area in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk arise primarily when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, 63% (2013: 64%) of the total accounts receivable
and other receivables were due from the five largest
customers of the Group. In addition, the debtors of the
Group that are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

188 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&FZEFRTROERA T

N\ EemT REMeME (&)
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HREWRFIE AEERBEREE
BE2RREBERBRHIE TERK
%K - HEPETERTELREER
HEEEEE AR - ERMEEE
RIBER P RN  INDRT AR K&
IRITIE AR (B ATEE) - B
FEMGRIE S H ABRE HE 180 KA
FIE o YGRS BRI EIS A S 1
ESREFEMARERARTE 40
NER#E—SMERABEE - K
BT ARETEERkEFREMH
IR -

REEASENERRR - A&E
RIRAREG - 2R SRR AKE
R ERETON -

AEBERRBREERZEERS
BEFMNTE  MTREFME
RITE SRR MR o Bt EANE
BREBEEFHEAEEREAEE
FHEHEREFHERNERZIE -
NEEBEXRE  AEBRATEA
B 5 Y FE SR A 2 52 (B R MK AR SR A
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B HY FE U IR & B2 BT HA D A
BHRBNRZEFBREY -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

N\ EemT REMeME (&)

VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long-term strategic purposes, and counterparties
have equivalent or higher credit ratings than the Group.
Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are
made with counterparties of sound credit standing and
with whom the Group has a signed netting agreement.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet.
Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in Note X.6 the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed

in Note XII.3.

(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) ERE (&)

AEE-RASRENBERMS

VRS (REEBRERI) - MA
R HE T ERFERAR RS EAR
SERER - R HHRITET R
TE RPUHBAEGRIFNER
APAR - I BB IRAEBRTFRRAE
Binek - ERRHHTTERFR
Rif  AEEERBEVTRARS
BheErETER

REBATAZ R A AR A
REEBEBERTEESREE (R
ETESRITRE)NEASE - K
fizE+ - 6 TEAEEEL AR 5
ERIN - AREBRBREAAEA
AR A EEAZEARRLNE
R RNEEBBRAM LR HE
RAK BB (S R R BRI O 2 ZEHT
Ft+— 3T -

(2) Liquidity risk (2) REERBE
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter mENERERE - BRIEREEBITNUR

difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company
and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own
cash management, including short term investment of
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

NHREIHMEBREENTT AE
BHERGHELESRROEAR -
ARAREFRABAEEAINAS
ERTIE BRASEKNERR
ENEREEFTNRNEAREST
KN RIE KRB AR L TR
R BREGAARESSH
) e REBRBREE HIEEE
HMEHANRBEESHRK - URE
BN AERBZEORTE - ARERE
FRMHR S RHEMN A HEER 2R
WEERS  FRNESTIES K
BAGRIRHEHNERES - A
REPMNERPNRBDESFR -
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

Notes to the Financial Statements

N\ EemT REMeME (&)

(2) RENMERBS ()
AEBEREEABRANSREE
MepmBERATRNERBESR
2 (BERAERNE(R2ZEF
LA 12 A 31 BEIRITHIR )&
BFB) KRS L HAR - AR
EXRINOHFEEBAAT :

2014 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

“P-RERFRNEARENE

More than
1 year but
less than

2years

15305

Carmying
More than amount at
2years but balance
less than More than sheet date
5years 5years Total REARR
25E5F SENL it EERE

- - 484744324 473,287,000
- - 93,004,602 93,004,602
- 1,111,000 1,111,000 692,453

Within

1 year or

on demand

1ERE

tem R ERRE
Financial liabilties SHAR

Short-em loans il 49474434

Accounts payable and other payables EARSRANRME  93,004602

Long-em payables REEAR -

Net amount ait 577,838 92

1,111,000 578049926 567,024,055
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

N\ EemT REMeME (&)

(2) FEN LR B (F)

2013 Gontractual unciscounted cash fow

TR-CERARNAERSE

Camying

Within More than More than amount at

1 year or 1 year but 2years bt balance

0n demand less than less than Morg than sheet date

15/ 2years 5 yeas byears Tota EERRR

tem EE BhEE 1550 2EEHE SEN £ H] FERE
Financia iabiltes SHAR

Short-dem oans il 639,946,962 - - - 6RO 67205930

Accounts payable and other payables ENEARELERGE 148155719 - - - 1gfB719 148185719

Non-curent abiies cue vithin one year -ERIEERDER 8819 - - - 8879 2883375

Long-em payables REENR - - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 655,420

Net amount H] 861,381,474 - - 1,111,000 862,492,474 843933906

(3) Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest risk, respectively. The Group
determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed and
floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the
current market conditions and performs regular reviews
and monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed
and floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into
financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

(3) FI=RE
B EFMEFZEHFI XN B m T

AN RlEASE R AR BENX

R RReRENERER - AEKE
REBETSIREFORTE B 7 F R 27
BN ET ALY - WiBAEHE

B

B BS SR M 4 1 B Y B E AF B A

RTHEMES - AEBAURAITES
BT R EHhH R E M -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)

(@ As at 31 December, the Group held the following

interest-bearing financial instruments:

Fixed rate instruments:

Item

Financial assets

- Avallable-for-sale financial assefs
Financial liabilities

- Short-term loans

Total

Variable rate instruments:

ftem

Financial assets
- Cash at bank

Financial liabilities
-Short-term loans

- Non-current liabilties due
within one year

Total

192 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

N\ EemT REMeMEE (&)

() FIRE B (48)
@@ ANEER12 A31 BFAERT A

SRTHEINT :
BEEfIELMIA :
2014 2013
ZZ-mE B
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
15H Bt i gk i
PHEE
-IRIESREE 9.50% 10,000,000 = =
SRR
-8R 4,28%+~6.30% (333,237,0000  3.15% ~6.72% (626,517,885)
At (323,237,000 (626,517,885)
FHFESMTA :
2014 2013
- - =5==
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
iz EflE il £z £
fREE
~517h 0.10%+~3.00% 191,400,633 0.10%~325% 436,892,432
AR
~REER Base rate rise (140,000,000)  COF+2.25%~300% (45,741,507)
ERfIELS LIBOR+4.50%
4%~10%
~—FREHN
FBAG - - LIBOR+3.75% (22.863375)
it

RE B ZENRTROBRAF

51,400,633 368,287,550
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B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

VIIl.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d) I\ HREe&EmT AERRREE (i8)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d) () A=m b ()
(b) Sensitivity analysis (o) BURIEDHT

As at 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a
general increase of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increased the Group’s equity by RMB192,752 (2013:
RMB1,381,078), and net profit by RMB192,752 (2013:
RMB1,381,078).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by
the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the net profit and equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for the previous year.

M2014F12 H31H » fEH M
BETENBERT  BEMEX
LA EER RSB AREE
A% B #E 25 3 0 A R #6192,752
L(20134 « A R &
1,381,078 7T ) * JFFEE A
E#192,752 7T (2013 4 : &N
AFR#1,381,0787T) °

HREERBERAKENER
SEmEmERAREENXRERA
ERTE X LAgURMEDHTH
HFEFE R IR SN T E R
RERAEBERBRRANREL
HE) BRI RS SR
TRETEHTERNTE -
HREERBEXRARKAN - &
AEEHBRRESRENXAR
RFBRRIEOTAET A - Eatt
SURNME DT R HYFENE MR
RENTER LN XS
BREEGLEENFEERIBA
MEE - L —FENDTER
RIERBRRAN A
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFFIFFIS) - 2BEEN BARKET)

Notes to the Financial Statements

VIIl.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d) J\ HemT BIAMEES (1)
(4) Foreign currency risk (4) ERE

In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts HRTRALERNIETENE

receivables and payables, short-term loans and other B4~ FEUGRIEMERZIE - SH

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies EREINEEENEBE  WRER
other than the functional currency, the Group ensures that CHIM AR EBN - AEESENE
its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or B minEXRE ZINE - ARG

selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to SE R R O 4 Al 2 Y KE o

address short-term imbalances.

(@) As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to currency @ AEEmIINEEEBBEIEE =
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities ZPAETTIER - R12A31 B
denominated in foreign currencies is presented in EL A E B EIE R IMNE E [ T
the following tables. For presentation purposes, the HIATF - HRSImE R - Bk
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, WO S EAARBSR - A&
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet EAEXRBRAEERTH o )
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the MR RITEZRBRBIEENR
financial statements denominated in foreign currency
are excluded.

2014 2013

—Z-pmE —T-=f
Balance at  Balance at Balance at Balance at
foreign RMB foreign RMB
currency  equivalent currency equivalent
Xt HHEARE ET  HEARE
ltem = 53] 13 BARE x|
Cash at bank and on hand EEEe 19,636,773 120,157,414 11,852,407 72,262,943
Accounts receivable FEUER R 18,677,982 114,290,574 19,643,468 119,764,260
Accounts payable FEREER (3,989,861) (24,413,959)  (1,148,881)  (7,004,613)
Other payable Hi AR (5,096) (31,182) - -
Short-term loans RHER (23,000,000) (140,737,000) (12,624,046)  (76,967,543)

Non-current liabilities due —EREIHE

within one year FERBAE - - (3,750,000) (22,863,375)
Net balance sheet exposure BEARKMDFR 11,319,798 69,265,847 13,972,948 85,191,672
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIE 8} - 2 BE B BARET)

VIIl.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d) I\ HREe&EmT AERRIREE (i8)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (4) EZREk(E)
(o) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi (b) ZIS’E EE AR A REHINER
against foreign currencies applied by the Group: MEZEATAT -

Reporting date

Average rate mid-spot rate
FigESE ]E A hRESE
2014 2013 2014 2013

“B-mE ~—T-=F CZB-NEFE _—T-=F

Usb = 6.1454 6.1896 6.1190 6.0969
(c) Sensitivity analysis (0) BRRXIED T
Assuming all other risk variables remained constant, 1? B B == DA SN A L Ath [ ez 24
a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi against the US T AEBEMR12A31HA
dollar at 31 December would have decreased the EMQ%EE’]ET“EE/\E
Group’s equity and net profit by the amount shown MHE 5% BB AR R AF
below, whose effect is in Renminbi and translated AMBEER DB RO o e
using the spot rate at the year-end date: REEBERBNHERTE
RANREITR
Equity Net profit
BERER BFE
As at 31 December 2014 2014%12A31H
usD = 2,597,469 2,597,469
As at 31 December 2013 2013 12 A31 H
USD = 3,194,688 3,194,688
A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the US MP12A831H ' EREEMESE
dollar at 31 December would have had the equal but BRETEORIRT @ ARBY
opposite effect on them to the amounts shown above, ETHE RS EAREKETE
on the basis that all other variables remained constant. 5% 1B B AR R AR MIE a5 Ay
{EF LRV RE S5 RME ST
MR o
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B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRFIEHS - 2ATE BARKET)

VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of the
financial statements denominated in foreign currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for the
previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.

Fair value

The following table presents the fair value information and the
fair value hierarchy, at the end of the current reporting period,
of the Group’s assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value at each balance sheet date on a recurring or non-
recurring basis. The level in which fair value measurement
is categorised is determined by the level of the fair value
hierarchy of the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 inputs: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
that are observable at the measurement date
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are either
directly or indirectly observable for underlying
assets or liabilities;

Level 3 inputs: inputs that are unobservable for underlying
assets or liabilities.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&dHZEFRTRAOERAE

N\ EemT REMemE (&)

(4) ELm k()

(o) BURMEDHT (B)
FRGRESTRBREESR
BRAERZELES - UEE
BHEXHEERBRALE
BREEH - HMEREXRRNE
BMTRAETENAESHA -
A A BEINERRTE
ER L—FENDTERF
BRHYRRAITEA

(5) EfhEHE =S
HEMERRREEEMERER -

LRREDHES

TRINRTAREESEEERARSE
BRENERBARABENENE
ENBERARERARNAABER
EMERABEFENEX 2B
BEEARMBERIRNERAE
B EREMEAEEZEENRE
BRONEAE - —EEREAEBNE
FAON

E—ERBAE £ E B ARG
SLECE Y
G LE N
BEEORE

F_EXRBAE: BRE-EBRBAE
SMERBEEH AR
BEEXEEATERRE
EEAE

FZERBAE: HEEEXEEN
TAESRBAE -
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B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

IX Fair value (cont’d) N DREEEOMESE (8)

1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair 1 -UAREEFENEENEEN
value at the end of the year ERDAAEBE
As at 31 December 2014, the Group only has available- R2014F 12 A31 H - AEEER
for-sale financial assets amounting to RMB10,000,000 BrtHESREE 2o mEE
which were measured at fair value under Level 1 (2013: BRUE—EBRXAABEFEMNE
nil). B HiF AR 1,0008 7T (2013

Fom|) o

The following table presents the carrying value of financial TRINTTARAREBEGFEZNESE
instruments measured at fair value as at 31 December EETAEMR2014F12A31H &
2014 and 31 December 2013. The carrying amounts 20134 12 A 31 HRREEE - 1
of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or 201412 31 8 Kk 2013%F 12 A
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair 318 - AEEMEm T AREER
values as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. HARBE AEEAEER -

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Asset BE Note  BfisE —E—MmE =%
Available-for-sale financial assets At HHE S g & E V7 R 7 10,000,000 =
2 Reasons for transfers between different levels, 2 - BFENAAEEEEE  &KF
and the policy of determining the timing of those ABRERER2EERN  BR
transfers for items under the recurring fair value B R B & R E SR R B R BUR
measurements
During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no R2014 5 E - AEE Fuli #5488 A
transfers between different levels of the Group’s above AABEFENEENEESER
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a ZERBEE A - REEELE
recurring basis. The Group recognises transfers between SRR EFHREAREREER
different levels at the end of the current reporting period Z [FRYEEIR o

during which such transfers are made.

3 Current changes in valuation techniques and the I AFABRENMGERNBSERS
reasons BRE
During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no R2014 5 E » AEE Fii#FEM
changes in valuation techniques for the recurring and non- FFEBE AN BENEMEANMGE
recurring fair value measurements. BRI AREAEEE o
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B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

X Related parties and related party transactions + FRABARHEEES

1 Information on subsidiaries of the Company 1 ARQFNFLEER
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in RARKFAREBEEL2 AN
Note VII.1. + 1o

2 Information on joint ventures 2 XRATRNEELEBR
For information about the joint ventures of the Company, REBNESELEERAEEZRR
refer to Note VII.2. + 20

3 Information on other related parties 3 HREBAiER
Name of other related parties Related party relationship
HAtAs A & L] S
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)
IR ZENEEARRF HEEEEREATENEX()
President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd. An entity which has significant influence over the Group ()
G E(RE) REFRAF HAEBEERS AT ENTR()
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
KEG—rEFRmBRRA FAREES% A ERHEDE
Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd. An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
EMG—0EERAA FEAREE L% A ERHBDE
China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited HEAREE L% A ERGHIEE
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. BEALE % A ERIDHLE
Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
MeESEREMNERNERAR INR L ENEERR R RN TFRA
Yantai Andre Real Estate Development Co., Ltd A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
e LENEEREERAR IR ZENEEAR AR FRR
Yantai Kunlong Spring Resort Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
WEeRERREBRAR IWRLZENEERRARMNFRA
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. (i
e ZEMRBRNERAR IR LR E AR R R T2 7 (i)
Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. An entity which was controlled by chairman and his relative
BaHTREZIRER AR ARAEERRARBEMNEE
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

+ BBHEREBRZS(|)

X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

3 Information on other related parties (cont’d)

M

(i)

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President Enterprises
(China)
influence over the Company through shareholders’ meetings

Investment Co., Ltd. exercised their significant
and their representation on the board of directors of the

Company.

The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre
Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties China Enterprise
Co., Ltd. at 26 September 2013. After the completion of
the transfer, the Group ceased owning any equity interest in
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

3 HtvEm s ER (&)

U]

(i)

WRZEMEBARARMS B
¥ (PR REFRARBBLERE
RERARBEZGNHNRRITES
BEFRARKE - KMB AR B EHEER

=20
=

R2013%69A 268 + & & E i
HARSRENRBRNIBRA
718.95% BHEEZENDSM Food
Specialties China Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. - RZEEERTER - Ba
ZERFRBRMHER DT TEHER
SEEEE LB o

4 Transactions with related parties 4 BEEXZER
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group R2014F [Z » ANE B HE 5 #
entered into transactions with related parties as set out T THITER S 2R 5 o & T#%
as follows. Some of these related party transactions SR R 5K TR B 14A
constituted connected transactions or continuing = b8 T MR RS 5 sl i A8 1 R R
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing X5 e
Rules.
(1) Related party transactions (1) B 5
The Group The Company
F5M| FAF
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
i —B—mFE —T-—= ~2-@mE -—T=F
Sales of goods SHE P 97,791,943 71,197,859 28,425,858 6,622,265
Purchases of goods HEmm - 408,969 - 408,969
Purchases of BEHERS
maintenance services 3,644 108,500 3,644 108,500
Disposal of fixed assets RERTEEE () - 675,190 - -
Operating lease charges REHEER (i 509,234 414,893 509,234 414,893
Interest charges FEEA (i) - 1,296,349 - 1,296,349
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

X Related parties and related party transactions + FRBAREREZS ()

(cont’d)
4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d) 4 BEBXZER (&)
(1) Related party transactions (cont’d) (1) B 5 (&)
() Disposal of fixed assets represents the sales of ) REECTEERBEAELRE
machinery and equipment sold by Dalian Andre Juice FMRBAERATHE THA
Co., Ltd. to Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. BREFRBH R SRR
f e
(i) Operating lease charges represent the rental paid by the iy KEHEBREEARAH
Company to Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. for leasing its HERANEINTFREZE
office buildings. FMRBROBRARINES
(i) Interest charges represent interest charges on the loans @iy FEBHERELELRZEF
obtained from Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd., which SEAERATEBAERKF
was repaid on 27 June 2013. B ZEERBEN2013%F6
Bor A{EE -
(2) Key management personnel remuneration ) FIREEASRFE
Key management personnel are those persons holding HAREEABREREINE
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, EEENFEERE - BB
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, HIAREBEEHALS » BFEAR
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors. SENEERES HHARE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the BABRRMnT
Group is as follows:
The Group XEE
2014 2013
ltem IHH —ZT—mE =%
Remuneration of key RASRE IR A B 2R
management personnel 2,370,758 2,320,217
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(2) Key management personnel remuneration (cont’d)

The Company
ltem THE
Remuneration of key FASEE IR A B RN

management personnel

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid to the directors or supervisors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company
or as compensation for loss of office. For the year
ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
no fees or any other emoluments were waived by
directors or supervisors.

5 Receivables from and payables to related parties

The Group
F5%E
31 December
2014
—Z—nmF

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(BRI, - B EBARKETT)

+ BBHEREBRZS(|)

4 BBMXZER ()
Q) BREZEARHF % (&)

EAF
2014 2013
—ZE—mF —T—=4F
1,428,055 1,519,390

R2014FE R2013FE + AR
AR MESE RES T EM
Bl & AYE ARSI EMAR R A
B ERZENSBER A E - M 2014 &
20134 - EENEESEMEN
EZHeEMBE

5 EABSEWENRE

The Company
F0F
31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2014 2013
—T-=F = —F-=f

+-A=+-H +t-A=+—H +ZA=+-B +Z-A=1+—H

Accounts receivable U BR TR 31,517,680
Other payables HAnERER 7,859,697

10,380,732 12,104,464 739,315
165,957 132,889 165,957
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X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

6 Guarantee
2014
(1) The Company as a guarantor

Name of guarantee
HiERA

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
TINEZEANREABRAA

(2) The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

m&EA

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZRANEEBR AR
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZEAEE AR AR

(8) The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

’ES

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZENEEFRAF]
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRZRANEEBR AR

202 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1HZEFRTROERA T

+ BBHEREBRZS(|)

6 EREBER
2014 4
(1) AR EIERIERY

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of 403
guaranty EREE
EReH BiTxE

Y

50,000,000 =

@) AEBIERKIERY

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of i
guaranty BEREE
RReH BiTR2

N

237,500,000 B
Y

759,141,600 =

(3) AL AIERWIERT

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of 403
guaranty EREE
EReH EBiTxE

N

237,500,000 S
Y

759,141,600 =



X Related parties and related party transactions

Notes to the Financial Statements

(cont’d)

6 Guarantee (cont’d)
2013

(1)

@

©

The Company as a guarantor

Name of guarantee

WIERTT

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
ML EFRETHBR AR
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
ML EFRETER AR

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

&R ZEBAMFARNERAF

The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

ERY

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRZENEBER AR
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZEMEEFR AR

The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

R

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZEMEEFR AR
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZEAEEER AR

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI, - B EBARKETT)

+ BBHEREBRZS(|)

6 ERER(E)
20134
(1) AR EIERIERY

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of ER
guaranty TR EK
EReH BiTwE

N

30,000,000 a
Y

30,000,000 =
Y

20,000,000 =

(2) FEEERBERY

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)

Amount of R
guaranty EEE
EReE BiTeE

N

459,078,647 =
Y

167,421,293 =

8) AL AIERBIERT

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of IR
guaranty EEER
R BiTeE

N

459,078,647 £
Y

167,421,293 =
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B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRFIEHS - 2ATE BARKET)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of
equity plus any loans from related parties with no fixed terms
of repayment, less unaccrued proposed dividends. The
balances of related party transactions are not regarded by the

Group as capital.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed to achieve an optimal structure and return for
shareholders. Factors for the Group’s consideration include:
its future funding requirements, capital efficiency, actual and
expected profitability, expected cash flows, and expected
capital expenditure, etc. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group.

The Group’s capital structure is monitored on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
short-term) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less related-
party loans with no fixed repayment terms and cash and cash
equivalents.

During 2014, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2013, was to maintain an adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio of no more than 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, request new loans, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

REdH ZENRTROBRAF

BEER

FEBEAEERNTIZBRRRER
SENFELE - sEREB G EEE
B 7K P AR E B 2 on A0 AR A% (B 48 32 B AR
NAERERANESRENTN @ 7
BRI @R -

AEBUEANTER BRRER N L
78 78 B TE 42 5K B IR 1 B Be 5 8 AR+
FRARERNERZE D BT - KAE
B H) B AT B IR R T 2 R RS
EREREE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Xl Capital management (cont’d)

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio is as follows:

Current liabilities
Short-term loans

Non-current liabilities
Long-term payables-

Obligations under
finance leases

Sub-total

Total debt

Add: Proposed dividends
Less: Cash and
cash equivalents

Adjusted net debt

Shareholders” equity

Less: Proposed dividends

Adjusted capital

Adjusted net debt-to
-capital ratio 20%

Note HisE

RBERE

R

FRPEE
REEMH-
EffREH

4E X
E/TK

e RESRRMRE X =
B BEREE

ZEN V.1 A

EARNFES

BRES

A REARMRA X =

BHRNER

REROFES

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(BRI - 2B EBARKETT)

+—-RBHERE (&)

AR FEHFEARMT

VABXV.I2 B 16/1R 12

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group The Company
350 F0F

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20145 20134
473,237,000 672259392 423,237,000 572,259,392
692,453 655,420 = -
473929453 672914812  423237,000 572,259,392
473929453 672914812 423,237,000 572,259,392
19,630,000 20,226,102 19,630,000 20,226,102
191,534,476  437,065445 180,498,375 432,732,849
302,024977 256075469 262,368,625 159,752,645
1,539,647,353 1535635795 989,673,498  1,033,143,701
19,630,000 20,226,102 19,630,000 20,226,102
1,620,017,353 1515409693 970,043,498 1,012,917,599
20% 17% 21% 16%
RAFIARNRBNFREIGEFTER

HSNERoR B B AR ESK -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

Xl Commitments and contingencies

1

Significant Commitments

T RZERRKAER

1 EERESHE

(1) Capital commitments (1) BEAREE
2014 2013
ltem 1HH —ZE—QmE —T—=F
Contracts for acquisition of fixed BRI IEEREERITH
assets being or to be executed BT EERBEER - 1,297,360

(2) Operating lease commitments
For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013, the Group and the Company had no
non-cancellable operating leases.

Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding
litigations and arbitration and related financial
effect

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Group did not have contingent liabilities arising from
outstanding litigations and arbitration.

Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees
provided for other enterprises and related financial
effect

As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not provide
guarantees (2013: RMB30,000,000) in respect of the bank
loans of subsidiaries. The Board of Directors considers
it is not probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees.
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(2) REHEEHISE
201412 A31 H & 20134 12
A31E » REEKRARARIEE A
B E B E R -

2 RRFBHBERANIEEERE
E 2

2014412 431 H & 2013512 A 31
B - AEERBRRFRFEFKD
KBRE -

3 RHMECRABKERTLANN
REERAEMBR

R2014F12 A31 H » "R AR AEH
TARMERITEFIRHEIER (2013 4F -
AR #30,000,00070) - EEERAN
ARIARITIEHOIE ERETEE
BHIREE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

XIll Post balance sheet date events T EEARTAERER
Profit appropriation after the balance sheet date EESERAEAMN B RIE R A
Amount Amount
&8 G|
2014 2013
ltem 1HH —E—mE —E—=fF
Dividends to be appropriated 5 BRI AEF 19,630,000 20,226,102
Dividends approved and declared KEZHES S 19,630,000 20,226,102
Gl
On 12 March 2015, the Board of Directors proposed an EE2N2015FE3 A 12 HIRZE A AR
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per share to the AR 2014 EER S IEH - %
Company’s shareholders. The proposal is subject to approval IREBEAT A A ¥E0.05 7T o tHIEIR 3 15
by the shareholders’ general meeting. Such cash dividends FREARESHE - REEABXRBRE
are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. HAERENIRSEBRANTAEEEEE
KEOBR/AE -
On 19 March 2014, the Board of Directors proposed an EE@N2014FE3 19 BIZZEANAT]
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per share, the ME IR 2013 FEEIREIKT - &%
proposal was approved by the shareholders’ general meeting IREERE T AR EE0.05 7T ¢ LIERREN
on 25 June 2014, 201456 A25 BERR ARG K -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

XIV Other significant items

Segment reporting
The Group is principally operating in a single reportable
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales of
condensed fruit juice and related products, therefore the
Group has not disclose any further information with respect to
reportable segment.

The geographical location of the Group’s operating income
from external customers is set out as follows:

China a3

North America JEZEM

Asia (excluding China) oM (R EIASN)
Europe BN

Oceania AAFEM

Africa FEM

Total a5t

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of non-
current assets located overseas is RMB336,669 (2013:
RMB385,636).
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THREtERESER

2 EEHE
AEETEGE-REDMALE
BIEEHERERTMAAMER - I
IAREERBARBELEDRER ©

AT RAEEIREF IR FITRH]) &
L ONE

2014 2013
—E=—mf —ET—=fF

263,268,960 248,626,884
200,772,797 260,057,170
159,623,431 224,035,008

115,572,753 76,303,360
92,211,050 56,372,113
13,019,622 28,053,391

844,468,613 893,447,926

MN2014F12 8318 - AEBIEFINE
BHETEEEFEASARE336,6697T
(20134 : AR#5385,6367T) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIaE 8} - 2 BB B ARHET)

11 BAFIMBHRERRAGER

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements

1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 E¥ES
2014 2013
ltem 5 H —Z=—mF =4
Cash on hand’ Be 32,951 88,299
Deposits with banks RITER 180,465,424 432,644,550
Total AFr 180,498,375 432,732,849

R2014F12 A31H » KARLREFRA
SRR EEES (20134F : A
9,354,986 7T) °

As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any
cash at bank with restrictions (2013: RMB9,354,986).

2 FEURBRFX
(1) ERERFIZLEF TR T -

2 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by type are as follows:

2014 2013
Type a5 —Z—mF —E—=4F
Subsidiaries F A 14,951,604 11,312,442
Other related parties H b FEEsE A =) 12,104,464 739,315
Third parties F=h 88,484,312 120,151,744
Sub-total NG 115,540,380 132,203,501
Less: Provision for bad and B EEERE(R - =

doubtful debts

Total &5t 115,540,380 132,203,501
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARIMERRETERBHE

financial statements (cont’d)

2 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing BRHR

Within 6 months (inclusive) NEALA(E5EA)
Less: Provision for bad and W EEEREE

doubtful debts
Total AT

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.

3 Prepayments
(1) Prepayments by category are as follows:

ltem THH
Prepayments to suppliers TafftrERS
Other prepayments TEf EAth
Total A&t

(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows:

2 FEUWERF (&)
() FEWAFIZRR B 2T T -

2014 2013
—E—mF ==

115,540,380 132,203,501

115,540,380 132,203,501

R % 5 B KPR 2K R 1 R 44
-

3 FEMNRER
(1) BABDEEZTIIT -

2014 2013
—E—@mE —T-=F
6,195,974 27,090,545
48,908 10,016
6,244,882 27,100,561

©2) FETEIZIRES AT -

2014 2013
—Z-—mE —T—=fF

Amount  Percentage (%) Amount Percentage (%)

Ageing ik &F el (%) i L1 (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) TERR(E15) 6,197,484 27,033,163 100%
Over 1 year but within 18225 (82%) 47,398 67,398 0%

2 years (inclusive)

Total At 6,244,882 27,100,561 100%

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
prepayments are recognised.
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIaE 8} - 2 BB B ARHET)

financial statements (cont’d)

4 Other receivables

(1)

@

S

Other receivables by type are as follows:

Type

Subsidiaries
Third parties

Sub-total
Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

The ageing analysis of other receivables is

Ageing

Within 1 year (inclusive)

Over 1 year but within 2 years
(inclusive)

QOver 2 years but within 3 years
(inclusive)

Over 3 years

Sub-total
Less: Provision for bad and

doubtful debts

Total

5

FRA]

2%

W AR
st

as follows:

ARk

1TFERR(E1F)
1EE2F(B2%F)

2FEEIF(E3F)

3FEE

It
W R

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

other receivables are recognised.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Company did not hold any other receivables which

were denominated in foreign currency.

ti BAFIMEBERREEREEHE

(&)
4 HigEWRK
(1) Bt EWRFIZIERZ TR T

2014 2013
—E—QmE —ET—=F
393,945,310 244,530,940
4,075,203 4,008,650
398,020,513 248,539,590
3,987,685 3,987,685
394,032,828 244,551,905

@) BRI G DT -

2014 2013
—=—msE —ET—=F
394,032,828 244,550,037
- 1,868

3,987,685 3,987,685
398,020,513 248,539,590
3,987,685 3,987,685
394,032,828 244 551,905

ARk B H (UK TERR B A2 FE

HEE

(3) R2014FE K2013F[F » XA
RSN E A R UK ©
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

4 Other receivables (cont’d)
(4) During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013, the Company had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision

ti BAFMBBRRETERAERE

(#&)

4 HtFEWR ()
(4) M2014FFE R2013FE AR
A)8 78 Y[ =5 85 [B] LA B 4 & DA
RS AR A L FIFH R ER A

which had been fully or substantially provided for in BERE M UGN -
prior years.
5 78
5 Inventory (1) FES4E
(1) Inventories by category are as follows:
2014 2013
k- 12 2
Provision for Provision for
impairment impairment
Book of Carrying Book of Carrying
value inventories amount value  inventories amount
ltem FEER BERE BRER 2BERE 2 FEHE KEEE RAEE
Raw materials RArE 5,766,302 - 5766302 6514575 - 6514575
Finished goods EAEEm 68,792,379 - 68,792,379 164,836,743 - 164,836,743
Total GH) 74,558,681 - 74558681 171,351,318 - 171,351,318

2) KR a7 5 A

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the Fe
year is as follows:
Raw materials Finished goods Total
FE## EFER &t
Carrying amount: REEE:

At 1 January 2013 R2018F1A1R 3,643,588 163,241,937 166,885,525
Additions during the year REHN 100,789,730 619,439,746 720,229,476
Reductions during the year RERD 97,918,743 617,844,940 715,763,683
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A 31 H 6,514,575 164,836,743 171,351,318
Additions during the year AR 57,692,027 385,722,883 443,414,910
Reductions during the year REF D 58,440,300 481,767,247 540,207,547
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 5,766,302 68,792,379 74,558,681
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFMBRREEREERE
financial statements (cont’d) (#8)

6 UHHETRMEE

6 Available-for-sale financial assets

2014 2013
ltem =R —E—mE =T =
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE 10,000,000 =
Less: Provision for impairment B REES - =
Total CH 10,000,000 -

R2014EE - RARZHRBE
EEBR A AR T EoN @A
EREEEFEESEERR
& HFF ARE1,0008 7T © 7%
ERERETTFEHR /14

During the year ended 31 December 2014, The Company
subscribed the trust loan collective trust scheme of
Zhengzhou Navigation Construction from National Trust
Product Ltd., with total amount of RMB10,000,000. The
trust is expected to be matured in one year.

7 HtRBEE

7 Other current assets

2014 2013
ltem 1HH —Z—mE —T—=F
Input VAT recoverable Frif R ERERTR 42,902,832 58,087,647

8 Long-term equity investments 8 RHEIRERE

(1) REIRERE SLELT -

(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as

follows:

2014 2013
ltem TE5B —E—mE —E—=4F
Investments in subsidiaries HFRAIHRE 573,355,647 521,235,647
Investments in a joint venture HEEPENKRE 19,476,107 23,559,696
Sub-total INEE 592,831,754 544,795,343
Less: Provision for impairment B ORBEEE - -
Total A&t 592,831,754 544,795,343
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(RIS - 2 BELBARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARIMERREERHEE

financial statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

(#%&)

8 REREIRE(H)

Q) RERIERE X FEZES

Shareholding  Voting rights

year are as follows: LI -
2014 =M
Book value of long-term equity investment
RURERERARE
at  Increase/ at  percentage
Investmentcost ~ 1January  Decrease 31 December (%)
ke
BlikR
Investee HREE REns 1B1R ERED  12831R B (%)
Cost method-subsidiaries BEE-F47
Baishui Andfe Juice Co, Ltd AZENREARAT 110630430 110630130 - 110630130 7%
YantaiLongkou Andre Juce o, L. i
HHERAA 80626 80622,6% - 806226% 75%
Yuzhou Andre Juice Co,, Lt WNZERZATERA 8645418 58645418 - BRI 7%
Andre Juice Co, Ltd. ENETARAR 8 8 - 8 100%
Dalian Andre Juice Co,, Lid. KEREHEATARAD 56000000 56000000 - 56000000 0%
Binzhou Ande Juice Co,, Ld. ENREHSTHRARAT 107003488 107803488 - 107,893,488 75%
Vanta Andre Juice Co, Lt AREFIZTRHERDE 20000000 30,000,000 - 30000000 75%
Yongi Andre Juice Co, Lid. KERENRARAT T80T TTA43907 - T 75%
Anyue Andre Lemon ndusty FEEEHERES
Technology Co, Ld. HRERLR 52,120,000 - R1000 52120000 100%
Subtotel It ST3R64T 52123647 52120000 573,365,647
Equity method-joint venture faik-280%
Vantal Tongi Beverage hndustres Co, Lid. AROHBHIZEROE 2500006 2855969 (4083589 19476107 2%
Stbtotd It BB 2355969 (4083569 19476,107
Totd GHE BOBIEET3  5LATRS 480641 5983 75A
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percentage

Lt 3
BB %)

1%

7%
5%
100%
10%
5%
5%
7%

100%

%%

Cash
dividend
for the year

L33
Reii

4,905,000

4,905,000




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARIMERREERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (%)
8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 8 RHIRERE (&)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the @) RARIER EARFEZE)E T 5
year are as follows: (cont’d) i (&)
2013 —m =

Book value of long-term equty investment

RERERATEER
Shereholding  Voting rights
ad Increase/ a percenfage  percentage Cash
Ivestmentcost ~ TJanuary  Decrease 31 December (%) (%) dividend
ThRE  EHRE  fortheyear
ik ELRRE k3
Investee RN REWA  1R1A EEE®  1AsA i [ N 7 S 5|
Cost method-subsidiares BKE-T0H
Baishui Ane duice Co, Lid. BAREHRETARAT 110630130 110630190 - 110830130 75% 75% -
YantaiLongkou Andre Juce o, Lo, i
SHERAR 8062269 806226% - 806226% 75% 75% -
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co, L. BNEENRRTARAE 586418 58645418 - 5BB54I8 75% 75% -
Andre Juice Co, Lt REHRTERAT 8 8 - 8 100% 100% -
Dalian Ancre Juice Co,, Lt REREHZAERLR 56000000 56,000,000 - 56000000 0% 0% -
Binzhou Ancre Juce Co,, Lt BINEENRSEERAT 107893488 107808468 - 107,803,488 75% 75% -
Yantai Ancre Juie o, Lt RERERBREARAT 3000000 30000000 - 30000000 T5% 7% -
Yongi Andre Juice Co, Lid. KERENRRIARAT  TIA890T 7743907 - T 75% 75% -
Subioal It 52123047 521,235,647 - 5128647 -
Equity methodfint venture Eaf-oe0s
Yantai Tongl Beverage ndustres o, L. fagHEHIZARA BO00B 26613535 (053839 2355969 2% %% 6075000
Fouity methoo-associte Ear-Bats
Vanta Andre Pecti Co, L. FARETIZEROERAT 33000000 60056541  (60056,54) - - - -
Subtota gt 508006 B6ETO0T6 (63110380 2355969 6,075,000
Totdl GH] SIOIBAT3 60705723 (B3,110380) 54479343 6,075,000
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the
year are as follows: (cont’d)
The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out in
Note VII.1.

The Company held 18.95% equity interest of Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd., an associate of the Company
previously. The Company transferred 18.95% equity
interest of Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food
Specialties China Enterprise Co., Ltd. in 2013. After
the completion of the transfer, the Company ceased
owning any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co.,
Ltd.

(3) Details of the joint venture

Total assets

at 31 December

2014 - 2 12A31H
Name of investee HRERiER BENE

Yantal Tongl Beverage Industries Co, Lid. RAGHAR TEARAT 112,241,505

Total assets

at 31 December
2013 “3-=F 12R31H
Name of investee RREEN AR BEGE
Yantai Tongi Beverage Industries Co,, Lid. RafHAE TEERAT 121,810,020
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ti BAFMBBRRETERAERE
(#&)

8 RIUIRERE (H|)

Q) RERIEREXFEEER D
W (&)
ARRFRAANEBESLE
ffsEtE -~ — o

HeRENRBROHBERAF
RAERXRGBELE AR
Al R 5 AR EE B 718.95% © R
20135 E  ARAIEBERE L
EMRBRN AR LT 18.95%
Mz FDSM Food Specialties
China Enterprise Co., Ltd. * 1
ZEEERTEE  XAFT
B ZENRBIRN,
PR EUE(R R o

@) BELEER

Total operating

Total liabilities Net assets income Net profit
at31 December at31December  fortheyear  forthe year
12B31R 12B31R FEER L ¥:3
RERE  BEEdE KARH R
477343 107524162 104,729,890 3,285,642
Total operating

Totalliabilties Net assets income Net profit
at 31 December  at 31 December for the year for the year
12A318 12318 rEER i

AEEE  RAEER kLR FHR

6671600 115138620 145707475 12,084,638
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B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMERERETERBHE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
9 Fixed assets 9 BEEEE
(1) Details of fixed assets (1) BlEEEIER
Office &
Plant&  Machinery & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
NG|
Item 1R REREEN L F ] REMERE EBIA &t
Cost (g
At 1 January 2013 2013F1 518 106,413,027 109,108,797 7,547,108 4,659,040 226,727,967
Adaltions during the year REEN
- Purchases -iE 5,988,619 12,616,909 300,178 13,675 18,919,281
Disposal or write-off during FEREYHE (11,598,820) - - (619,552 (12218,37)
the year
At 31 December 2013 2013E12A31H 99,802,726 121,725,706 7,847,281 4,053,163 233,428,876
At1 January 2014 2014F1 A 18 99,802,726 121,725,706 7,847,281 4,053,163 233,428,876
Adations during the year REED
- Purchases -fEE 859,340 2,046,782 145,388 9,188 3,061,198
- Transfer from construction ~ERIREN 66,355 = - - 66,355
in progress
Disposal or write-off during the year ~ RNERE 3R - (45,614 (86,406) = (132,020)
At 31 December 2014 2014%12R318 100,728 421 123,726,874 7,906,763 4,062,351 236,424,409
Accumulated depreciation ZiHiE
At1 January 2013 201351718 (7838033 (5514214 (6248266 (3254993  (92,855,506)
Charge for the year KR (1946419  (3993,514) (309,252) (404,875 (6,654,060
Disposal or write-off during TEREYHE 1,400,612 - - 552,811 1953423
the year
At 31 December 2013 2013%12R318 (28,383,840) (69,507,728) (6,557,518) (3,107,057) (97,556,143)
At1 January 2014 2014F1 A 18 (28,383,840) (69,507,728) (6,557,518) (3,107,057) (97,556,143)
Charge for the year REHR (1873642 (4,708,644) (247,345) (336,073)  (7,165,704)
Disposal or write-off during NERE e - 5,943 71,765 = 83708
the year
At 31 December 2014 2014%12 831 A (30257482 (64210429) (6727008  (3443130)  (104,38,139)
Carrying amounts REER
At 31 December 2014 2014%12R318 70,470,939 59,516,445 1,179,665 619,221 131,786,270
At 31 December 2013 2013F12A31H 71,418,886 62,217,978 1,289,763 946,106 135,872,733
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMERERETERBHE
financial statements (cont’d) (#8)

9 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Details of fixed assets (cont’d)

9 EIEEE (&)
(1) BIEEEG (%)

@

©

“)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
no fixed assets with restrictions were placed on the
Group’s ownership.

Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no
fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no
fixed assets were leased out under operating leases.

Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
no fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership
were placed on the Company’s ownership.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMERERETERBHE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
10 Intangible assets 10 B EE
Land use rights
= i {48
Cost [R1E
At 1 January 2013 201341 A1 H 36,823,309
Additions during the year AEIE N
— Purchase —BE 2,889,945
Disposal during the year KERE (4,363,400)
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31 H 35,349,854
At 1 January 2014 2014F1 A1 H 35,349,854
Additions during the year AEIE N
— Purchase —BE 205,128
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31 H 35,554,982
Accumulated amortization ZETEEH
At 1 January 2013 201341 A1 H (6,039,878)
Charge for the year NEFHE (832,292)
Disposal during the year REFE 944,508
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31 H (5,927,662)
At 1 January 2014 201441 A1 H (5,927,662)
Charge for the year REETHR (755,624)
At 31 December 2014 201412 A 31 H (6,683,286)
Carrying amounts BREEE
At 31 December 2014 2014412 A31 H 28,871,696
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31 H 29,422,192
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, all of R 2014412 A 31 H & 20134 12 A 31
the Company’s land use rights are held on medium-term H - NRQFFTA L E AR AR HAE
lease. %4 o
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the MR2014F12 531 H Kk 2013412 A 31
Company does not use any intangible assets as mortgage H  ANARSEHRENEREE -
for bank loans.
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no R2014%F12 A31H K2013F 12 A
land use rights with pending certificates were place on the 31H AR BRAMZEREEN LT

Company’s ownership. HERARERR -
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

11 Deferred tax assets
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

ltem BH

Deductible tax losses CIE:: %)=

(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note Ill.24, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB19,169,145 (2013: RMB15,185,329) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utiised will be available in the
Company before they expire. Deductible tax losses of
RMB19,169,145 will expire in 2019. The deductible tax
losses expire within 5 years from the year when such
losses were incurred under current tax law.

12 Short-term loans

ltem BH
Credit loans ERER
Pledged loans HEIRE K
Guaranteed loans IREEE K
Total =X

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Company does not have past due short-term loans
(including short-term loans and long-term loans due within
one year).
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ti BAFMBBRRETERAERE
(%)

11 EEMSBHREE
(1) KB 55 B A

2014 2013
—Z—msE —ET—=F
19,169,145 15,185,329

Q) BB E= « 24 FTEI 2 5T
R HARARBTERAIBEE
JFRAIARENE BEENERNR
FERANE - FE UL A2 B MR B
AER#19,169,145 7T (2013 4F :
ANER#15185,3297C ) W 218
AENEBERELEMSHE
E - Hi AR#19,169,145 70
15 2019 F 2 ER © ARIRIRITHL
% BETENEBEEEESF
EiE - Al AFE R RS Y HA R
WA PR FERE A o

12 FHMER

2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=4F

185,737,000 115,744,695
- 27,436,050
237,500,000 429,078,647

423,237,000 572,259,392

20144912 B 31 B k2013412
A318 ' RAREB I HAREERN
fER (R ERBRERMN—FNE H
KRB ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

13 Accounts payable

The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows:

Ageing

Within 6 months (inclusive)

Over 6 months but within
1 year (inclusive)

Over 1 year

Total

61EA AR (E61EA)
EAE1F(S1F)

1EE

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

accounts payable are recognised.

14 Employee benefits payable

(1) Employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
— defined contribution plans

Total

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

ti BAFIMEBERREEREEHE
(#&)

13 BARR

FENBRFIRRE AT

2014 2013
—E—@mE —E—=F
54,122,859 199,482,579
1,513,559 3,705,514
44,392,404 -
100,028,822 203,188,093

R B B AR SNFESR A B R A 5t
o

14 BB T 5B

(1) BEAHBRLHBNIIT -

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

20145 20145

1A1B8# FE8IN FERD 12A31 AR

55 R B 1,778,254 10,773,339 10,088,079 2,463,514
BER 22 R

—RERFAE - 853,578 853,578 -

BET 1,778,254 11,626,917 10,941,657 2,463,514
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Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRFFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

14 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(2) Short-term employee benefits

ti BAFIMERREEREEE
(%)

14 FEBETHE ()
©) RHF B

Accrued  Decreased Balance at
during during 31 December
the year the year 2014
20144

IR XERD 12831 HEREE

10,203,900 9,518,640 1,581,500
109,374 109,374 882,014
284,526 284,526 =

44,710 44,710 =
40,647 40,647 =
66,202 66,202 =
23,980 23,980 =

Balance at
1 January
2014
20145
181 08#
Salaries, bonuses, allowances I8 %5
ERLFIFERL 896,240
Staff welfare BIErE 882,014
Social insurance HEREE
Medical insurance BERRE -
Work-related injury insurance TERRE -
Maternity insurance EERBE =
Housing fund FEAES -
Labour union fee, staff TEKEMET
and workers’ education fee HERLE =
Total A&t 1,778,254

10,773,339 10,088,079 2,463,514

(38) Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

(3) BEBLZ IR — REIETFATE)

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

20145 20144

1A1B&#E FEI8M FERD 12A31 HERE

Basic pension insurance EREBEZRE = 812,931 812,931 =
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 40,647 40,647 -
Total a5t - 853,578 853,578 -

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
the Group has no payment in arrears in the balance of
employee benefits payable.
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B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE 8} - 2 BB ALK T)

ti BAFIMEBERREEREEHE
(#&)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

15 Other payables 15 HAEAR

2014 20183
ltem 1] —E—mE —E—=%F
Subsidiaries FAA] 95,027,273 122,717,348
Other related parties il el NG| 132,889 165,957
Third parties E=h 18,869,586 15,918,948
Total &5t 114,029,748 138,802,253

16 Capital reserve 16 EXRRE
2014 —Z—mE
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
ltem JHH EMBH FEEM FERD EXBH
Share premiums BARE 138,628,538 - 17,773,243 120,855,295
Foreign currency translation SNSRI AT E 25 9,926 = = 9,926
Total i 138,638,464 - 17,773,243 120,865,221
2013 —T-=%F
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
ltem JBH ENERE RELN RERD FREE
Share premiums BARE 138,628,538 - - 138,628,538
Foreign currency translation SNSRI AT E 2 E 9,926 - - 9,926
Total CE 138,638,464 = - 138,638,464
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

17 Surplus reserve

2014

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

2013

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

B H

EEBBATE

18 Operating income and operating costs

[tem

Principal activities
Other businesses

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

ti BAFIMEBERREEREEHE

(&)
17 BERATE
—E—MmEF
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
o)) ] FEI/M FXRxE
103,144,993 1,091,714 104,236,707
=%
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
FIRRER RGN FREATE
100,061,818 3,083,175 103,144,993

18 ERWMATME XA

2014 2013

—Z—MmE 2=
Income Cost Income Cost
KA BE WA A
578,868,900 490,421,657 570,070,185 521,754,954
8,578,294 8,147,241 7,697,094 6,982,352
587,447,194 498,568,898 577,767,279 528,737,306

Turnover primarily represents income arising from the

sales of condensed juice net of value added tax.

Other operating income primarily represents
arising from the sales of packaging materials and so on.
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B 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIaE B} - 2 BB BARHET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARIMERRETERBHE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
19 Financial expenses 19 BIER
2014 2013
ltem THE —E—mE =T =
Interest expenses on bank REFAZEEFECRIT
borrowings repayable wholly ERF S &R
within five years 35,097,790 24,288,803
Interest income from deposits FREF B WA (782,809) (1,137,231)
Net exchange (gains)/losses SRIEH (W), EE (1,033,944) 98,291
Other financial expenses H A B %5 & B 990,127 352,353
Total A&t 34,271,164 23,602,216
20 Investment income 20 BRE Wz
2014 2013
ltem 15 H —ZE—mF =%
Income from long-term equity R B & W
investments accounted for
using equity method 821,411 2,187,800
Investment income from EERIRESEELED
disposal of long-term LB W
equity investments - 76,743,070
Investment income from BRENAREETEHEEE)
disposal of financial assets STAEHERSNSREE
at fair value through REREE W=
profit or loss 1,087,855 765,488
Total At 1,909,266 79,696,358
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ¥R 2R Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(RIS - 2 BELBARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

21 Income tax expenses

ltem HH

Current tax expenses ERA MR ERTE R
for the year based on tax EEMEH
law and regulations

Changes in deferred RIEPIS TR &
tax assets

Reversal of over-accrued FELARFEFREHTE

income tax made
in previous years

Total =X

(1) The analysis of changes in deferred tax assets is set

out below:
ltem 5 H
Origination and reversal of TR = 2 A8 [0

temporary differences

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #&dH ZEFRTRAERAE

ti BAFMBEBRREERAESE

(¥%&)

21 FiSBiEHRN

Note 2014 2013
it ~E—mE —T—=F
= 12,154,313

(1) - 1,057,961
(1,097,308) 893,771

(1,097,308) 14,106,045

(1) BEFRSHNESH O

2014
—g—mF

2013
—2—=F

1,057,961




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R AR Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFIEE B} - 2 BB B ARHET)

ti BAFMBEBRREERAESE
(#&)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

21 FRiSBER (&)
(2 PTISHE A B &5 BB E

21 Income tax expenses (cont’d)
(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

accounting profit is as follows: J(u N
2014 2013

ltem 1EH —2—mEF —E—=F
Profits before taxation BRI 9,819,834 45,882,298
Expected income tax R R 25% =+ E 1)

expenses at tax rate TEHAPTIS

of 25% 2,454,959 11,470,575
Effect of non-taxable income AR & (7,247,245) (776,138)
Effect of tax loss of R ESEERNE

tax-exempted business - 1,397,962
Effect of unrecognized deferred ARG R FERIEEFTST B ER

tax asset for deductible loss AR EIE R A 4,792,286 =
Effect of adjusting income

tax for previous years FHEEARTFE TS s & (1,097,308) 1,951,732
Effect of non-deductible costs, ~ NAMEFIRIALAN «

expenses and losses BRMBRNTE - 61,914
Income tax expense REMEHER (1,097,308) 14,106,045
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(B 52955 - £ EIBARMET)

Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

22 Supplement to cash flow statement

ltem

(1) Reconciliation of net profit to cash

flows from operating activities:

Net profit

Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
Decrease in deferred tax assets
Decrease/(Increase) in gross inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in operating receivables
Increase in operating payables

Net cash inflow from operating activities

(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash at the end of the year
Less: Cash at the beginning of the year

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

H

(1) BENERSALEEDALRE

R
n: ERAERE
B AESH
BHER
KBNS
BRHSHAERD
FEmED /(8)
BE YRR M (8m),/Fd
BEMEMERHEN

REFDELNRSREFE
@ RERReFEMIZIRER :
RENFRHE
B RERFIRE

RERALEENF (D) ENE
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(¥%&)

2 REREBRBAEY

ti BAFMBEBRREERAESE

2014 2013
—-mF -z
10,917,142 81,776,253
7,165,704 6,654,060
755,624 832,292
33,904,338 23,696,502
(1,909,266) (79,696,356)

- 1,067,961
96,792,637 (4,465,793)
(113,900,024) 52,603,944
30,938,147 118,944,819
64,664,302 151,402,680
180,498,375 423,377,863
423,371,863 42,057,195
(242,879,489) 381,120,668
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